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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS OF CITYGOLD EDUCATION RESEARCH LIMITED 

Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of CITYGOLD EDUCATION 
RESEARCH LIMITED ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 
2018 the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the 
statement of cash flows and the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended, and 
a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein 
after referred to as "Ind AS financial statement"). 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial 
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance 
(including other comprehensive income),cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in 
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian 
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant 
rules issued thereunder.This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the 
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the lnd AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our 
audit. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing 
standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the 
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under 
Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the Ind AS financial statements are free from material misstatement. 



An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
the disclosures in the · lnd AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind 
AS fin ancial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the 
auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation of the Ind 
AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances . An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by 
the Company's Directors,as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind AS financial 
statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements. 

Opinion 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the financial position of the 
Company as at 31st March, 2018, and its financial loss for the year(including other 
comprehensive income),its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that 
date. 

Emphasis of Matter 

Attention is invited to Note 4 in the financi al statements with regards to investment written 
off in a subsidiary aggregating to ' 27 Crore. As per the information and explanation given to 
us, the company has lodged a complaint against the Directors of the subsidiary for recovery 
of amount of investment. However on conservative basis, the company have written off such 
investments in financi al statements. 
Our opinion is not qualified with respect to this matter. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

l. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order") issued by the 
Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the 
"Annexure A" statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order; 

Il. As required by Section143 (3)ofthe Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and bel ief were necessary fo r the purposes of our audit; 

(b) In our op inion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company 
so far as it appears from our examination of those books; 

(c) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensi~e 
income),the statement of cash flows and the statement ofchanges in equity dealt with by th1s 
Report are in agreement with the books of account; 



(d) In our opmwn, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rule issued thereunder; 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 
20 18 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 
31st March, 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in 
"Annexure B"; and 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with 
Rulell of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of 
our information and according to the explanations given to us : 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in 
its Ind AS financial statements, if any; 

ii. The Company did not have any long term contract including derivative contracts fo r 
which there were any material foreseeable losses; and 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Company. 

Partner 
Membership No .: 30917 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 11th June, 2018 



ANNEXURE"A"REFERRED TO IN OUR REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF CITYGOLD 
EDUCATION RESEARCH LIMITEDON THEIND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 
ENDED 315 tMARCH, 2018; 

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and in terms of the information and 
explanations given to us, we state that: -

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets; 

(b) The Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the Management during the year 
and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification; 

(c) The Company does not own any immovable property therefore provision of clause 
3(1)( c) of the said order are not applicable; 

(ii) The physical verification of inventory has been conducted at the reasonable intervals by 
the management during the year. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of 
inventory as compared to book records were not material and have been appropriately 
dealt with in the books of accounts; 

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted 
any secured or unsecured loans to companies; firms or other parties covered under section 
189 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act'). Therefore, provision of clause 3(iii), 3(iii)(a), 
3 (iii) (b), 3 (iii) (c) of the said order are not applicable to the company; 

(iv) The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments, or provided any 
guarantees or any security to the parties covered under section 185 and 186. Therefore, 
the provisions of clause 3(iv) of the said Order are not applicable to the Company; 

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public during the year, Therefore the 
provisions of clause 3 (v) of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 are not 
applicable to the Company; 

(vi) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company 
has not crossed the threshold limit as prescribed by the Central Government under sub­
section (1) of section 148 of the Act for maintenance of cost records and hence the 
provision for maintenance of records are not applicable to the Company; 

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the 
Company examined by us, in our opinion, except for dues in respect of Tax deduced at 
Source and Interest on tax payable, the Company is generally regular in depositing 
undisputed statutory dues, including Service tax, duty of customs, Value added tax, 
cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate 
authorities . There was an amount of Service tax of~ 94,779, GST of~ 4,770 and 
Interest on tax payable~ 10,57,047/- outstanding as at the last day of the financial 
year for a period exceeding six months from the date they became payable. 



(b) On the basis of our examination of documents and records of the Company, and 
explanation provided to us, there are no disputed dues in respect of Income Tax, 
Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Goods & Service Tax 
or Cess other than mentioned below: 

Name of Nature Period to Amount (f) Amount Balance Forum where the 
he of dues !which the Paidm ~mount(~) dispute is pending 

statute Jamount 
1·elates 
F.Y.) 

Income 143 (3) 2009-10 10,17,08,240 Nil 10,17,08,240 Income Tax Appellate 
!fax Act, rib una! 
1961 (Preferred by Dept.) 

Income 143 (3) 2011-12 12,63,710 Nil 12,63,710 Income Tax Appellate 
~·ax Act, ribunal 
1961 (Preferred by Dept.) 

(viii) As the Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any financial institution or 
bank or Government, nor has it issued any debentures as at the balance sheet date. 
Therefor, the provisions of Clause 3 (viii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

(ix) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer, further public offer 
(including debt instruments) and term loans. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(ix) of 
the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

(x) Based on the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by 
the management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company by its 
officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year; 

(xi) The Company has not paid or provided managerial remuneration during the year and 
hence, the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable. 
Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

(xii) In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 4 
(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company; 

(xiii) The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the 
provisions of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions 
have been disclosed in the financial statements as required under Ind AS 24, Related Party 
Disclosures specified under section 133 to the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2015. 

(xiv) The Company has not made any preferential allotment j private placement of shares or 
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year, the provision of clause 3(xiv) of the 
Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company; 

(xv) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given 
by the management, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with 
directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the 
Order are not applicable to the Company; 



(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45 lA of the Reserve Bank of 
India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xvi) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company. 

L.J. KOTHARI & CO 
Firm Registration No. 105313W 
Chartered Accountants 

L-----" ~ ' pL. ~ 
LALIT KOTHARI 
Partner 
Membership No.: 30917 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 11th June, 2018 



"ANNEXURE B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE 
IND ASFINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF CITYGOLD EDUCATION RESEARCH LIMITED 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of CITYGOLD 
EDUCATION RESEARCH LIMITED ("the Company") as of 31st March, 2018 in conjunction 
with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that 
date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established 
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 
including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 
required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls 
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the 
"Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be 
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, to the extent applicable to an audit 
of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, 
both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was 
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material 
respects . 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of 
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing 
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and 
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risks. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of theind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting. 



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation offinancial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial 
reporting includes those policies and procedures that; 

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and 

(3) providereasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect 
on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to 
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 
In our opinion, the Company has,in all material respects, an adequate internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 
reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March, 2018, based on the internal control 
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company, considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO 
Firm Registration No. 105313W 
Chartered Accountants ~ 
~~' 
LALIT KOTHARI 
Partner 
Membership No.: 30917 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: lith June, 2018 



CITYGOLD EDUCATION RESEARCH LIMITED 

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 3151 MARCH, 2018 
Particulars 

ASSETS 
1. Non-Current Assets 

(a) Property, plant and equipment 
(b) Financial assets 

(i) Investments 
(ii) Other financial assets 

(c) Current tax assets (Net) 
(d) Other non-current assets 
Total Non-Current assets 

2. Current assets 
(a) Inventories 
(b) Financial assets 

(i) Trade Receivables 
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 
(iii) Other financial assets 

(c) Other current assets 
Total Current Assets 
TOTAL ASSETS 

II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
1. Equity 

(a) Equity share capital 
(b) Other equity 
Total Equity 

2. Liabilities 
(i) Non-Current Liabilities 

(a) Financial Liabilities 
(i) Borrowings 
(ii) Other Financial Liabilities 

Total Non-Current Liabilities 

(ii) Current Liabilities 
(a) Financial Liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 
(ii) Trade payables 
(iii) Other financial liabilities 

(b) Other current liabilities 
Total Current Liabilities 
Total Liabilities 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthe financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO. 
Firm Registration No. 105313W 
Chartered Accountants 

~L-5f 
LALIT KOTHARI 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 30917 

Mumbai 
Date: 11'" june, 2018 

Note 
No. 

3 

4 
5 
6 
7 

8 

9 
10 
5 
7 

11 
12 

13 
14 

13 
15 
14 
16 

As at As at 
31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017 

~ ~ 

10,000 270,010,000 
10,000 32,866 

1,069,833 1,069,833 
53,499,242 

1,089,833 324,611,941 

288,936,428 565,433,223 

299,579,353 
759,083 96,756 

20,957,066 22,296,843 
677,237 

610,909,167 587,826,822 
611,999,000 912,438,763 

23,050,000 23,050,000 
(8,691,266) 317,273,862 

14,358,734 340,323,862 

2,693,160 2,448,328 
330,003 

2,693,160 2,778,331 

107,998 
15,222,488 156,395 

572,984,909 554,650,692 
6,739,709 14,421,485 

594,947,106 569,336,570 
597,640,266 572,114,901 
611,999,000 912,438,763 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

SHR~EHTA 
Director 

DIN: 03137231 

D~ 
Director 

DIN: 03142640 
Mumbai 

Date: 11'" june, 2018 



CITYGOLD EDUCATION RESEARCH LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2018 
Particulars 

Income 
Revenue from Operations 
Other Income 
Share of Profit I (Loss) of joint Venture and Firm 
Total Income 

II Expenses 
Costs of Development 
Changes in Inventories of Land and ancilliary costs 
Finance Costs 
Other Expenses 
Total Expenses 

III Profit I (Loss) before Tax 
Tax Expense 

Excess 1 (Short) provision for taxation in respect of earlier years 
IV Profit I (Loss) for the Year 

V Other Comprehensive Income 
VI Total comprehensive income for the year 

VII Earning per equity share of nominal value of ~ 10 I· each (in~ 
Basic 
Diluted 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO. 
Firm Registration No. 105313W 
Chartered Accountants 

~~--~ 
LALIT KOTHARI 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 30917 

Mumbai 
Date: 11th june, 2018 

Note 

No. 

17 
18 

19 
20 
21 
22 

23 
23 

Year ended Year ended 

31" March, 2018 31st March, 2017 
~ ~ 

495,882,570 
456,250 

(1,583) 3,200 
495,880,987 459,450 

53,499,242 
276,496,795 

276,784 234,539 
491,573,294 14,005,993 

821,846,115 14,240,532 
(325,965,128) (13,781,082) 

(325,965,128) (13,781,082) 

(325,965,128) (13,781,082) 

(6,519) (276) 
(6,519) (276) 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

SH~EHTA 
Director 

DIN:~1:1 . · 
DVP U 

Director 
DIN: 03142640 

Mumbai 

Date: 11th June, 2018 



CITYGOLD EDUCATION RESEARCH LIMITED 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2018 

Particulars 

I. CASH F!.OWS ARISING FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Net profit I (loss) before taxation as per Statement of Profit and Loss 
Add / (Less) : 
Depreciation 
Share of loss of firm and joint venture 
Finance cost 
Investment written off 

Operating profit before working capital changes 

Add I (Less) : 
(Increase)/ Decrease in inventories 
(Increase) / Decrease in trade and other receivebles 
Increase/ (Decrease) in trade and other payables 
Direct taxes refund/ (paid) 

Net cash flow from operating activities 

II. CASH F!.OWS ARISING FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Inflow f (Outflow) on account of: 
Sale I (Purchase) of fixed assets 
Net cash flow from investing activities 

III. CASH FI.OWS ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Inflow I (Outflow) on account of : 
Proceeds from borrowings 
Finance costs paid 
Net cash flow from financing activities 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ( I + II + III ) 

Add: Balance at the beginning of the year 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 

Components of cash and cash equivalents (Refer Note 10) 
Cash on hand 
Balances with Banks 
- in Current accounts 

Total 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 

31" March, 2018 
~ 

(325,965,128) 

(1,583) 
276,784 

270,000,000 
270,275,201 
(55,689,927) 

276,496,795 
(245,393,120) 

25,388,529 

56,492,204 
802,277 

(107,998) 
(31,951) 

(139,949) 

662,327 

96,756 
759,083 

61,063 

698,020 

759,083 

31st March, 2017 
~ 

(13, 781,082) 

3,200 
234,539 

237,739 
(13,543,343) 

(2,665,043) 
12,908,653 

3,750,000 
13,993,610 

450,267 

(615,372) 
(11,964) 

(627,336) 

(177,069) 

273,825 
96.756 

59,978 

36,778 

96,756 

Note: The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (lnd AS- 7) statement of cash 

flows. 

As per ou r report of even date 

FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO. 
Firm Registration No. 105313W 
Chartered Accountants 

L~ _ ___.lL'-----' .p(Yt:;_--~ 
LALIT KOTHARI 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 30917 

Mumbai 
Date: 11th june, 2018 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

#? 
SHRENIK MEHTA 

Director 

Di rector 

DIN: 03142640 
Mumbai 

Date: 11th june, 2018 



CITYGOLD EDUCATION RESEARCH LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3151 MARCH, 2018 (in~) 

Notes Amount 

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 
As at 1st April, 2016 23,050,000 
Changes in equity share capital -

As at 31st March, 2017 23,050,000 
Changes in equity share capital -

As at 31st March, 2018 23,050,000 

B. OTHER EQUITY AND CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS 

Reserves and Surplus Total 
Securities Premium Retained Earnings 

Reserve 
Balance at 1st April, 2016 371,800,000 (40,745,056) 331,054,944 
Profit I (Loss) for the year - (13,781,082) (13,781,082) 

Balance at 31st March, 2017 371,800,000 (54,526,138) 317,273,862 

Balance at 1st April, 2017 371,800,000 (54,526,138) 317,273,862 
Profit I (Loss) for the year - (325,965,128) (325,965,128) 
Balance at 31st March, 2018 371,800,000 (380,491,266) (8,691,266) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements. 

As per our report of even date For and on behalf ofthe Board of Directors 

FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO. 
Firm Registration No. 105313W 
Chartered Accountants 

L R '~~ 
LALIT KOTHARI 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 30917 

Mumbai 

Date: 11th June, 2018 

~ 
SHRENIK MEHTA 

Director 

Director 
DIN: 03142640 

Mumbai 

Date: 11th June, 2018 



(JTYGOLD EDUCATION RESEARCH LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2018 

Note 1. Statement of Significant Accounting Policies. 

1.1 Company Overview 

Citygold Education Research Limited is a public limited Company domiciled in India, incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956. The main object of the company 
IS to acqmre by purchase, lease or otherwise, agricultural land for farming, to establish and run farms and to Construct, erect, acquire, equip, lease, furnish, convert, 
adapt, improve, develop, operate & manage all sorts of Agricultural Parks, Industrial Parks, Special Economic Zone & related infrastructure facilities, commercial & 
social infrastructure facilities & amenities. 

1.2 The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 11th june, 2018. 

Note 2. Significant Accounting Policies followed by the Company 

I. Basis of preparation of financial Statements 

[i) Compliance with Ind AS 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the 'Ind AS') as notified by Ministry 
of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('Act') read with of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended 
and other relevant provisions of the Act 

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements. 

(ii) Historical cost convention 
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following: 
1) certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value; 

2) assets held for sale- measured at lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell; 
3) defined benefit plans- plan assets measured at fair value; 

(iii) Current non-current classification 
All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current, wherever applicable, as per the operating cycle of the Company as per the guidance set 
out in Schedule III to the Act. Operating cycle for the business activities of the Company covers the duration of the project/ contract including the defect liability 
period, wherever applicable, and extends upto the realisation of receivables (including retention monies, if any) within the credit period normally applicable to the 
respective project 

II. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS requires management to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures, and 
the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to 
the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. 

a) Judgements 
Classification of property 
The company determines whether a property is classified as investment property or inventory property. Investment property comprises land and buildings 
that are not occupied substantially for use by, or in the operations of, the company, nor for sale in the ordinary course of business, but are held primarily to 
earn rental income and capital appreciation. These buildings are substantially rented to tenants and not intended to be sold in the ordinary course of 
business. Inventory comprises property that is held for sale in the ordinary course of business. Principally, these are properties that the company develops 
and intends to sell before or on completion of construction. 
b) Estimates and assumptions 
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a 
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its 
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future 
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are 
reflected in the assumptions when they occur. 

III. Revenue recognition 
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will accrue to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured and 
also when it is reasonably certain that the ultimate collection will be made and that there is buyers' commitment to make the complete payment 

A. Revenue from Sale of Land 
i. Revenue from sale of land is recognised on transfer of all significant risks and rewards of ownership of such land, as per the terms of the contracts 

entered into with buyerj(s), which generally coincides with the firming of the sale contracts/ agreements, except for contracts where the Company still 
has obligations to perform substantial acts even after the transfer of all significant risks and rewards. 

B. Interest and dividend: 
Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income 
can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding at the effective interest rate applicable, 
which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying 

amount on initial recognition. 

C. Others: 
Other revenues j incomes and costs 1 expenditure are accounted on accrual, as they are earned or incurred. 

D. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3151 MARCH, 2018 

IV. Property plant and equipment and depreciation f ammortisation 

A. On transition to Ind AS, the Company has opted to continue with the carrying values measured under the previous GAAP as at 1st April, 2015 of its 
Property, Plant and Equipment and use that carrying value as the deemed cost on the date of transition i.e. 1st April, 2015. 

B. Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition or construction including attributable interest and finance cost, if any till the date of 
acquisition/installation of the assets, less accumulated depreciation/amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 

C. Subsequent expenditure relating to Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalised only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with 
the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to the 
Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred. The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements, either on 
disposal or when retired from active use and the resultant gain or loss are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

D. Depreciation is provided based on useful life of the assets as prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation on additions to assets 
or on sale/disposal of assets is calculated pro-rata from the month of such addition, or upto the month of such sale/disposal, as the case may be. 

Asset Category 
Computers & Laptops 
Furnitures & Fixtures 
Office Equipments 

Estimated useful life (in Years) 
3 

10 
5 

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property plant equipment are reviewed at each financial year and adjusted 
prospectively, if appropriate. 

V. Financial Instruments 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. 

A. Investment and Financial Assets 
i. Initial recognition 

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business model with an objective to hold these 
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using 
the effective interest rate ("EJR") method. Impairment gains or losses arising on these assets are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

ii. Subsequent measurement 
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories: 

a) Financial Assets at Amortised Cost 
A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect 
contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal 
and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

b) Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value 
Financial assets are measured at fair value through OCI if these financial assets are held within a business model with an objective to hold these assets 
in order to collect contractual cash flows or to sell these financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to 
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Movements in the carrying amount are taken 
through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss. Further, in cases where the Company has made an irrevocable election based on its business model, for its 
investments which are classified as equity instruments, the subsequent changes in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income. 

Financial asset not measured at amortised cost or at fair value through OCI.is carried at FVTPL. 

iii. De-recognition of Financial Assets: 
The Company de-recognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the financial asset 
and substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the 
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognizes its retained interest in the assets and an 
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. 

If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the 
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received. 

B. Equity Instruments and Financial Liabilities 
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered 
into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. 

i. Equity Instruments 
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity 
instruments which are issued for cash are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Equity instruments which are issued for 
consideration other than cash are recorded at fair value of the equity instrument. 

ii. Financial Liabilities 
1. Initial Recognition 
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at FVPL, loans and borrowings and payables as appropriate. All financial 
liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case ofloans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3151 MARCH, 2018 
2. Subsequent Measurement 

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below: 
• Financial liabilities at FVTPL 

Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at FVTPL. 
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses on liabilities 
held for trading are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs 
because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument Financial guarantee contracts are 
recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, 
the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of lnd AS 109 and the amount 
recognised less cumulative amortisation. Amortisation is recognised as finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

· Financial liabilities at amortised cost 

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Any difference 
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of the borrowings in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an 
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

3. De-recognition of Financial Liabilities 

Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. When an existing financial 
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, 
such an exchange or modification is treated as de-recognition of the original liability and recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective 
carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

C. Offsetting Financial Instruments 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to 
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

VI Derecognition of financial instruments 

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expires or it transfers the finacial asset 
and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under IndAS 109. A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized from the Company's 
Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires. 

VII. Impairment 

a. Financial assets 

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not fair valued through profit or loss. 
Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to life time ECL. For all other financial assets, 
expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial 
recognition in which case thoseare measured at lifetime ECL.The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance 
at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognised is recognized as an impairment gain or loss in the statement of profit or loss. 

b. Non-financial assets 

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual 
impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's 
or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the 
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or 
CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount 

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are 
taken into account If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation 
multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators. 

Impairment losses, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 
i. Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment 

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability wheneer events or changes in circumstances indicate that their 
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and 
the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other 
assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs. 

ii. Provisions 
A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that is reasonably estimable, and it is 
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash 
flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. 
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VIII. Taxation 

i. Current Tax 

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from "profit before tax' as reported in the financial statement of profit 
and loss becauseof items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company's 
current tax is calculated using rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

In case the Company is liable to pay income tax u/s llSJB of Income Tax Act, 1961 (i.e. MAT), the amount of tax paid in excess of normal income tax is 
recognized as an asset (MAT Credit entitlement) only if there is convincing evidence for realization of such asset during the specified period. MAT credit 
entitlement is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date. 

ii. Deferred Tax 

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary diferences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding 
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets 
are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those 
deductible temporary differences can be utilized. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that 
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realized, 
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at 
the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. 

iii. Current and deferred tax for the year 
Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in 
equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. 

IX. Inventories 
All inventories are stated at lower of'Cost or Net Realizable Value'. 

A. 'Incomplete Projects' include cost of land for which the Company has not entered into sale agreements and in other cases where the revenue 
recognition is postponed. 'Incomplete Projects" also include initial project costs that relate to a (prospective) project, incurred for the purpose of 
securing the project These costs are recognized as expenditure for the year in which they are incurred unless they are separately identifiable and it is 
probable that the respective project will be obtained. 

B. Cost included in inventory include costs incurred up to the completion of the project viz. cost of land, services and other expenses (including borrowing 
costs) attributable to the projects. Cost formula used is average cost. 

X. Borrowings and Borrowing costs 
Borrowing are initally recognised at Net off transation cost incurred and measured at amortised cost Any difference between the proceeds ( net of 
transation costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in statetment of profit and loss over ther period of the borrowings using the effective interest 
method. 

Interests and other borrowing costs included under finance costs calculated as per effective interest rate attributable to qualifying assets, which takes 
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are allocated as part of the cost of construction f development of such assets. Such allocation is 
suspended during extended periods in which active development is interrupted and, no costs are allocated once all such activities are substantially 
complete. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from 
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. Other borrowing costs are charged to the Profit and Loss Account 

XI. Cash Flow Statement 
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any 
deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. 
The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the company are segregated. 

XII. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or 
less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank 
overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash management 

XIII. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets 
A provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as result of past event and it is probable that an outflow of 
embodying economic benefits of resources will be required to settle a reliably assessable obligation. Provisions are determined based on best estimate 
required to settle each obligation at each balance sheet date. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current 
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of 
time is recognised as a finance cost 

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events, whose existence would be confirmed by the occurrence or 
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. A contingent liability also arises, in rare cases, where a 
liability cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. 
Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements. 
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XIV. Recent accounting pronouncements 

Appendix B to lnd AS 21, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration: On March 28, 2018, Ministry of Corporate Affairs ( .. "MCA'"") has notified 
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 containing Appendix B to lnd AS 21, Foreigncurrency transactions and advance 
consideration which clarifies the date of the transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset. 
expense or income, when an entity has received or paid advance consideration in a foreign currency. 

The amendment will come into force from 1 April 2018. The Company exposure towards foreign currency transation is minimal, hence the impact on the 
financial statements and effect on adoption oflnd AS 21 is expected to be insignificant 

IndAS 115 
In March 2018, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amended Rules, 2018 ("amended rules .. ). As per 
the amended rules, lnd AS 115 .. Revenue from contracts with customers" supersedes Ind AS 11, "Construction contracts .. and lnd AS 18, .. Revenue .. and is 
applicable for all accounting periods commencing on or after 1 April 2018. 

lnd AS 115 introduces a new framework of five step model for the analysis of revenue transactions. The model specifies that revenue should be recognised 
when (or as) an entity transfer control of goods or services to a customer at the amount to which the entity expects to be entitled. Further the new standard 
requires enhanced disclosures about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from the entity's contracts with 
customers. The new revenue standard is applicable to the Company from 1 April 2018. 

The standard permits two possible methods of transition: 
Retrospective approach- Under this approach the standard will be applied retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented in accordance with 

lnd AS 8 -Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors 
Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognized at the date of initial application (Cumulative catch- up approach) 

The Company is evaluating the requirement of the amendment and the impact on the financial statements. The effect on adoption of IND AS 115 is expected 
to be insignificent 
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Note 3. Property, plant and equipment 

Cost or deemed cost 

Balance at 1st April, 2016 
Additions 
Disposals 
Balance at 31st March, 2017 

Accumulated depreciation 

Balance at 1st April, 2016 
Eliminated on disposal of assets 
Depreciation expense 
Balance at 31st March, 2017 

Carrying amount as on 31st March, 2017 

Cost or deemed cost 

Balance at 1st April, 2017 
Additions 
Disposals 
Balance at 31st March, 2018 

Accumulated depreciation 

Balance at 1st April, 2017 
Eliminated on disposal of assets 
Depreciation expense 
Balance at 31st March, 2018 

Carrying amount as on 31st March, 2018 

Computers and 
La to s 

2,580,602 

2,580,602 

2,580,602 

2,580,602 

Computers and 
La to s 

2,580,602 

2,580,602 

2,580,602 

2,580,602 

(in~) 

Furniture and Fixtures Office Equipment Total 

15,396,585 727,762 18,704,949 

15,396,585 727,762 18,704,949 

15,396,585 727,762 18,704,949 

15,396,585 727,762 18,704,949 

Furniture and Fixtures Office Equipment Total 

15,396,585 727,762 18,704,949 

15,396,585 727,762 18,704,949 

15,396,585 727,762 18,704,949 

15,396,585 727,762 18,704,949 
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Note 4.Investments 

Non Current 
A) Investment in equity instruments (At cost)(Unquoted) 

Fellow Subsidiary 
270,000 Equity shares of face value of~ 10/- each 

Jineshwar Multitrade Private Limited (Refer footnote (i)) 

Total 

B) Capital Investment in Partnership Firms and Joint Ventures (At cost) 

M/s Rising Glory Developers (Refer footnote (ii)) 
Total 

Footnotes: 

As at 

31st March, 2018 
~ 

10,000 
10,000 

As at 

31st March, 2017 
'{ 

270,000,000 

270,000,000 

10,000 
10,000 

The Company had in an earlier year invested Rs. 27 crores in Jineshwar Multitrade Private Limited (Hereinafter referred to as "JMPL"), a body 
corporate in which, in lieu ofthe above investment, the Company had been allotted shares constituting approx. 96.43% of the paid-up Equity 
Share Capital of the said body corporate. Subsequent to payment made in lieu of the above investment and despite multiple representation, 
reminders and requests made for handover of the Company, JMPL continued to be operated by Mr. Mahaveer Jain & Mr. Mahaveer Chand, the 
continuing Directors, who not only did not hand over the control of JMPL to the Company but also did not provide any primary and basic 
documents like share certificates, Financials, Bank books, etc, for any financial year, to the Company either. 

During the year, the Company it has come to the knowledge and information of the Company that the directors of JMPL had allegedly 
indulged in nefarious and fraudulent activities since the last number of years. Considering that the Company has unwittingly become a victim 
to an apparent fraud, the Company has approached the Economic Offence Wing ("EOW") and Registrar of Companies ("ROC") and has lodged 
a complaint against the directors of JMPL and have requested a thorough investigation to uncover the true facts of the case so as to enable the 
Company to recover its investment. Considering the background of the case and the doubtful nature of recoverability of the investment, the 
company has conservatively, during the year, written off the investments made by it in JMPL. 

(ii) Details of Investments made in capital of Rising Glory Developers (partnership firm)· 

31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017 
Name of Partners Profit Sharing Ratio Profit Sharing Ratio 

Hubtown Limited 20.00% 20.00% 
Ackruti Safeguard System Private Limited 5.34% 5.34% 
Citygold Education Research Limited 5.34% 5.34% 
Citvgold Farming Private Limited 5.34% 5.34% 
Diviniti Projects Private Limited 5.34% 5.34% 
Halitious Developers Limited 5.34% 5.34% 
Headland Farming Private Limited 5.33% 5.33% 
Heddle Knowledge Private Limited 5.33% 5.33% 
Heet Builders Private Limited 5.33% 5.33% 
Subhsiddhi Builders Private Limited 5.33% 5.33% 
Sunstream City Private Limited 10.66% 10.66% 
Upvan lake Resort Private Limited 5.33% 5.33% 
Vega Developers Private Limited 5.33% 5.33% 
Whitebud Developers Limited 5.33% 5.33% 
Yantti Buildcon Private Limited 5.33% 5.33% 
Total 100% 100% 
Total Capital of the firm in'{ 150,000 150,000 
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Note 5. Other financial assets 

Non-current 
Petrol deposits 

Total 

Current 
Other Advances and Receivables 

Advances recoverable from related party (Refer Note 24) 
Advances recoverable from others 
Other Receivables 
Total 

Note 6. Current tax assets (Net) 

Advance Tax paid 
Less: Provision for tax 

Total 

As at 
31st March, 2018 

~ 

10,000 
10,000 

20,157,066 
800,000 

20,957,066 

1,069,833 

1,069,833 

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's tax rate 

As at 
31st March, 2017 

~ 

32,866 
32,866 

1,460,885 
18,206,960 

2,628,998 
22,296,843 

1,069,833 

1,069,833 

Since the taxable income is negative, there is no current tax payable; hence reconciliation has not been provided. 

Note 7. Other assets 

Non-current 
Advances to land owners (Refer Footnote) 

Total 

Current 
Other Advances 

-Others 
Total 

Footnote: 

53,499,242 
53,499,242 

677,237 
677,237 

No agreement has been entered into for the above advances paid to landowners (farmers) in earlier year's. Advances 
amounting to ~5,34,99,242/- has been debited to land cost during the year. Out ofthe same, an amount of ~ 2,52,91,915/­
is carried as Inventory. 

Note 8. Inventories 

Land and ancilliary costs (Refer Footnote to Note 7) 
Total 

Note 9 . Trade Receivables 

Current 

Unsecured, considered good 
Related Party (Refer Note 24) 

Total 

Note 10. Cash and cash equivalents 

Balances with banks: 
- in current accounts 
Cash on hand 

Total 

288,936,428 
288,936,428 

299,579,353 
299,579,353 

698,020 
61,063 

759,083 

565,433,223 
565,433,223 

36,778 
59,978 
96,756 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31'1 MARCH, 2018 

Note 11. Equity share capital 

Authorised Share Capital: 
50,000 ( P.Y.: 50,000) Equity Shares of~ 10/· each 

2,25,500 (P.Y.: 2,25,000) 8% Non Cumulative Convertible Preference Shares of ~ 100/- each 

1,12,500 (P.Y.: 1,12,500) 10% Non Cumulative Non ·Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of~ 
100/- each (Refer note. 12) 

3,28,700 (P.Y.: 3,28,700) Preference Shares of~ 100/- each 

Total 

Issued and subscribed capital comprises: 

50,000 (P.Y.: 50,000) Equity Shares of~ 10/- each 

2,25,500 (P.Y.: 2,25,000) 8% Non Cumulative Convertible Preference Shares of ~ 100/· each, fully paid 

Total 

Footnotes: 

(i) Reconciliation of the number of Equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year. 

Balance at 1'' April, 2016 
Add : Issued during the year 
Less : Bought back during the year 

Balance at 31 ''March, 2017 
Add : Issued during the year 
Less : Bought back during the year 

Balance at 31" March, 2018 

(ii) Reconciliation of the number of Preference shares outstanding atthe beginning and the end of the year 

Balance at 1" April, 2016 
Add : Issued during the year 
Less: Bought back during the year 

Balance at 31" March, 2017 
Add : Issued during the year 
Less: Bought back during the year 

Balance at 31'' March, 2018 

(iii) Details of shares held by each shareholders holding more than 5% shares 

As at 31st March, 2018 
No of shares held % holding of this 

Fully paid equity shares 
Holding Company of Reporting Company (HCRC): 
Hubtown Limited with Beneficiary Owners 

Convertible Preference Shares 
Aiken Management and Financial Services Pvt Ltd 
Harekrishna Securities Pvt Ltd 
Empower India Limited 
Signora Finance Pvt Ltd 
Lilac Medicines Private Limited 
Sonal Cosmetic (Exports) Ltd 
Prabhav Industries Ltd 
Sonal Sil Chern Limited 
Sonallnternational Ltd 

(iv) Terms frights attached to each class of shares : 
Equity Share 

class of shares 

50,000 100% 

20,900 9.27% 
20,900 9.27% 
41,700 18.49% 
16,700 7.41% 
20,900 9.27% 
20,900 9.27% 
41,700 18.49% 
12,500 5.54% 
16,700 7.41% 

As at As at 

31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017 
~ ~ 

500,000 500,000 

22,550,000 22,550,000 

11,250,000 11,250,000 

32,870,000 32,870,000 
67,170,000 67,170,000 

500,000 500,000 

22,550,000 22,550,000 

23,050,000 23,050,000 

Number of shares Share Capital 
(in~) 

50,000 500,000 

50,000 500,000 

50,000 500,000 

225,500 22,550,000 

225,500 22,550,000 

225,500 22,550,000 

As at 31st March, 2017 
No of shares held o/o holding of this 

class of shares 

50,000 100% 

20,900 9.63% 
20,900 9.63% 
41,700 19.21% 
16,700 7.69% 
20,900 9.63% 
20,900 9.63% 
41,700 19.21% 
12,500 5.76% 
16,700 7.69% 

The company has a single class of equity shares having a par value of~ 10/· per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share. The company 
declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing annual 
general meeting. 

In the event of liquidation of company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential 
amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. 



CITYGOLD EDUCATION RESEARCH LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3151 MARCH, 2018 

Note 12. Other Equity 

Securities premium reserve 

Balance at the beginning of the year 
Add I (Less) : 
Premium on account of shares allotted during the year 
Balance at the end ofthe year 

Retained Earnings 

Balance at the beginning of the year 
Profit attributable to the owners of the company 
Balance at the end of the year 

Total 

Note 13. Borrowings 

Non-current 
Liability component of preference shares (At amortised cost) 
1,12,500 (P.Y.: 1,12,500,) 10% Non Cumulative Non -Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares on" 
100/- each fully paid up 
Total 

As at 

31st March, 2018 
~ 

371,800,000 

371,800,000 

(54,526,138) 
(325,965,128) 

(380,491,266) 

(8,691,266) 

2,693,160 

2,693,160 

As at 

31st March, 2017 
~ 

371,800,000 

371,800,000 

( 40,7 45.056) 
(13,781,082) 

(54,526,138) 

317,273,862 

2,448,328 

2,448,328 

(i) Reconciliation ofthe number of fully paid non convertible preference shares outstanding at the beginning and the end of reporting year 

Balance at 151 April, 2016 
Add : Issued during the year 
Less : Bought back during the year 

Balance at 31st March, 2017 
Add : Issued during the year 
Less : Bought back during the year 

Balance at 31st March, 2018 

(ii) Shareholders holding more than five percent of holdings : 

Celestial Spaces Private Limited 
Note: 

Number of shares 

112,500 

112,500 

112,500 

100% 

Share Capital 
(in~) 

112,500 

11,250,000 

11,250,000 

100% 

The preference shares have been classified as a financial liability as per Ind AS 32 and 109 if the issuer does not have the unconditional right to 
avoid cash outflow at the end of the term of preference shares, the instrument is classified as a financialliabiity. Hence they have been grouped 
under non-current borrowings. 

Cw:re.nt. 
Unsecured 

Loans repayable on demand: 
- From Others 

Total 
107,998 
107,998 



CITYGOLD EDUCATION RESEARCH LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3151 MARCH, 2018 

Note 14. Other financial liabilities 

Non-current 
Retention money payable 
Total 

Cu.rre.nt 
Business Advance from related party (Refer footnote)(Refer Note 24) 
Current account balance in firms and joint ventures 
Payable to related party (Refer note 24) 
Other payables 
Total 

Footnote: 

As at 

31st March, 2018 
~ 

266,418,805 
12,228 

301,887,055 
4,666,821 

572,984,909 

As at 

31st March, 2017 
~ 

330,003 
330,003 

451,303,000 
646 

91,887,055 
11,459,991 

554,650,692 

The Company has received interest free advances from it's Parent Company, considering the nature of business in which the Company operate, the 
amounts so received are considered to be repayable on call I demand as the repayment period of such amounts so received is not measureable precisely. 

Note 15. Trade payables 

Due to micro and small enterprises (Refer Footnote) 

Due to others 
Total 

Footnote: 

15,222,488 156,395 
15,222,488 156,395 

As per information available with the company regarding dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as defined under the Micro Small Medium 
Enterprises Development, Act 2006 (MSMED Act), none of the suppliers of the company are registered under MSMED Act, and the same has been relied 

upon by the auditors. 

Note 16. Other liabilities 

Cu.rre.nt 
Advance from customers (Related Party) 
Overdrawn balance as per books of accounts 
Other payables : 
- Statutory dues 
-Other 
Total 

5,307,769 

1,431,940.00 

6,739,709.00 

12,550,000 
47,474 

1,788,456 
35,555 

14,421,485 



CITYGOLD EDUCATION RESEARCH LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31'1 MARCH, 2018 

Note 17. Revenue from operations 

Sale from operations: 
Sale of plot (Refer Note 24) 

Other operating revenue: 
Liabilities written back to the extent no longer required 

Total 

Note 18. Other income 

Interest on income tax refund 
Total 

Note 19. Costs of Development 

Land cost (Refer Footnote to Note 7) 
Total 

Note 20. Changes In Inventories OfLand and Ancilliary costs 

Opening Inventory: 
Closing Inventory: 

Total 

Note 21. Finance Costs 

Interest on preference shares 
Delayed/penal interest on loans and statutory dues 
Total 

Note 22. Other Expenses 

Land non utilization charges 
Investment written off 
Professional fees 
Filling Fees 
Legal Fees 
Security Charges 
Compensation 
Advances and other debit balance written off 
Other Expenses (Refer footnote) 
Total 

Footnote A: 
Auditors Remuneration (included in the other expenses) 

Audit fees 
Total 

Note 23. EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS) 

Basic earnings per share 
Diluted earnings per share* 

Basic EPS 

Year ended 

31st March 2018 
~ 

494,242,348 
494,242,348 

1,640,222 
1,640,222 

495,882,570 

53,499,242 
53,499,242 

565,433,223 
288,936,428 

276,496,795 

244,833 
31,951 

276,784 

4,177,290 
270,000,000 

3,568,412 
84,041 

146,501 
210,000,000 

2,901,865 
695,185 

491,573,294 

35.000 
35,000 

(6,519.30) 
(6,519.30) 

The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per share are as follows: 
Profit/(Loss) for the year attributable to the owners of the Company (325,965,128) 
Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic earnings per share 50,000 

Diluted EPS 
The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of diluted earnings per share are as follows 
Profit/(Loss) for the year attributable to the owners of the Company (325,965,128) 
Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of diluted earnings per share* 50,000 

Footnote: 

Year ended 

31stMarch2017 
~ 

456,250 
456,250 

565,433,223 
565,433,223 

222,575 
11,964 

234,539 

12,767,058 

124,139 
11,648 

488,196 
560,060 

54,892 
14,005,993 

35.000 
35,000 

(276) 
(276) 

(13,781,082) 
50,000 

(13,781,082) 
50,000 

For the purpose of diluted EPS convertible instruments (8% non cumulative convertible preference shares) deem to have been converted into equity shares at the 
beginning of the period. The conversion ratio has been arrived at on face value basis. 



CITYGOLD EDUCATION RESEARCH LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH 2018 

Note 24. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (As per IND AS. 24) 

A. Name of the related parties and related parties relationship 
Holding Company 

II Subsidiary 

Ill Fellow Subsidiary 

IV Other Significant Influence 

V • Firm in which Company is a partner 

VI Key Management personnel, their relatives and enterprises 

Footnote: 

Related party relationships are identified by the Company and relied upon by the Auditors 

B. Transaction with Related Parties -

Sr. 

No. 
Nature of Transaction 

Business advances taken/ recovered/ adjusted 

Hubtown Limited 

Rubix trading Private Limited 

Business Advance givenjrepaidfadjusted 

Hubtown Limited 

Citygold Farming Private Limited 

iii Reimbursement of expenses 

Heddle Knowledge Private Limited 

iv Compensation towards 

Heddle Knowledge Private Limited 

Citygold Farming Private Limited 

Share of loss from partnership fi rm 

Rising Glory Developers 

vi Sale of plot 

Mr. Hemant M. Shah 

Mrs. Falguni Vyomesh Shah 

Mr. Khilen V Shah 

Mrs. Kunjal Hemant Shah 

Mr. Kushal H. Shah 

Mrs. Lata M Shah 

Mr. Rushank V Shah 

v Corporate guarantee given 

Vishal Techno Commerce Limited 

Note: Previous year figures are given in the brackets 

c. Balance outstanding 

Balance Payables 

Hubtown Limited (Holding Company) 
Rising Glory Developers( Firm in which company is a partner) 

Citygold Farming Private Limited (Fellow Subsidiary) 

Heddle Knowledge Private Limited (Fellow Subsidiary) 

Rubix trading Private Limited 

Mrs. Kunjal Hemant Shah 

Balance Receivable 

Mrs. Falguni Vyomesh Shah 

Mr. Hemant M. Shah 

Mr. Kushal H. Shah 

Mrs. Lata M Shah 
Mr. Rushank V Shah 

iii Corporate Guarantees given for loans availed by others 

Vishal Techno Commerce Private Limited (Refer Footnote) 

Footnote: 

Hubtown Limited 

Jineshwar Multitrade Private Limited (Upto 15th Feb, 2017) 

Citv~old Farmin~ Private Limited 

Heddle Knowledge Private Limited 

Vishal Techno Commerce Private Limited 

M/s Rubix tradin~ Private Limited 

M/s Risin~ Glory Developers 

Mr. Hemant M. Shah 

Mrs. Falguni Vyomesh Shah 

Mr. Kushal H. Shah 

Mrs. Lata M Shah 
Mr. Rushank V Shah 

Mr. Khilen V Shah 

Mrs. Kunjal Hemant Shah 

Holding 
Fellow Subsidiary 

Company 

34,438,220 

(79,815.000) (-) 

(-) (-) 

219,840,100 

(5,850,000) (-) 

(-) (260,000) 

517,685 

(-) (-) 

100,000,000 

(-) (-) 

110,000,000 

(-) (-) 

(-) (-) 

(-) (-) 

(-) (-) 

(-) (-) 

(-) (-) 

(-) (-) 

(-) (-) 

(-) (-) 

358,000,000 

(-) (2,191.300,000) 

Other 
Significant 
Influence 

(-) 

(91,887,055) 

(-) 

(-) 

(-) 

(-) 

(-) 

(-) 

(-) 

(-) 

(-) 

(-) 

(-) 

(-) 

(-) 

in~) 

Firmin which Key Management 
Company is a personnel, their 

partner relatives and 
enterprises 

(-) (-) 

(-) (-) 

(-) (-) 

(-) (-) 

(-) (-) 

(-) (-) 

(-) (-) 

1,583 

(3,200) (-) 

155,320.128 

(-) (-) 

61,579,109 

(-) (-) 

31,034,664 

(-) (-) 

8,206,231 

(-) (-) 

53,448,814 

(-) (-) 

144,877,866 

(-) (-) 

39,775,536 

(-) (-) 

(-) (-) 

As at As at 
31st March, 2018 31stMarch,2017 

265,641,120 451,043,000 

12,228 646 
110,260,000 260.000 
100,517,685 

91,887,055 

5,307,769 

61,579,109 

90,834,029 

52,198,813 

82,477,866 

12,489,536 

2,549,300,000 2,191,300,000 

The loan of~Z54.93lakhs taken by Vishal Techno Commerce Pvt Ltd. has been jointly and severally guaranteed by Citygold Education Pvt Ltd., Heet Builders Pvt Ltd., Hubtown Ltd. and Sunstream City Pvt Ltd. 

There is no contract determining the ratio of individual guarantees by each party. Since there is a joint guarantee, the entire amou uarantee has been disclosed. 



CITYGOLD EDUCATION RESEARCH LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2018 

Note 25. Financial Risk Manaj!ement Objectives 

The Company's activities expose it to a va riety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's focus is to foresee the 
unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance. 
1) Market Risk 
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument which fluctuate because of changes in market prices. 

Interest rate risk 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash fl ows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. 
The company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to company's debt obligations with floating interest rates. 

· The Company has received interest free advances from its holding company and hence it is not exposed to interest rate risk 

2) Credit Risk 
Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty will not meet its obligation under a finan cial instrument or customer contract leading to a financial loss. 
The company is not exposed to cred it risk from its operating activities or trade receivables since the agreement of sale of land is executed only on 
receipt of full consideration. 

Credit risk from balances with banks and inter corporate loans is managed by the company's treasury department in accordance with the company's 
policy. 

3) Liquidity risk 
The operating cash flow requirements are met by interest free funding from sha reholders. 

Note 26. Capital Management 

The primary objective of company's capital management is to ensu re that it maintains strong capital ratios in order to support its business and 
maximise shareholders value. The company's board of directors reviews the capital structure on an annual basis. 

Gearlnf: Ratio 
In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants 
attached to the borrowings that define the capital structure requirements. 

The gearing ratio at the reporting period was as follows 

Unsecured Borrowings 
Interest accrued 
Total Debt 
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 
Net Debt (A) 

Equity Share Capital 
Other Equity 
Total Equity (B) 

Debt Equity Ratio A/B 

Note 27 Fair Value Measurements 

Einan~ial A~~~:ts 
Investment 
Other financial assets 
Cash and cash equivalent 
Total of Financial Assets 

Elnan~ial Llal!illtl!:s 
Borrowings 
Trade payables 
Other Financial liabilities 
Total of Financial Liabilities 

31st March, 2018 
FVPL Amortised Cost 

10,000 
- 20,967,066 

759,083 
21,736,149 

2,693,160 
15,222,488 

572,984,909 
- 590,900,557 

As at As at 
31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017 

2,693,160 2,556,326 

2,693,160 2,556,326 
759,083 96,756 

1,934,077 2,459,570 

500,000 500,000 
(8,691,266) 317,273,862 

(8,191,266) 317,773,862 

(0.236) 0.008 

(~) 

31st March, 2017 
FVPL Amortised Cost 

270,010,000 
22,329,709 

96,756 
292,436,465 

2,556,326 
156,395 

554,980,695 
557,693,416 



CITYGOLD EDUCATION RESEARCH LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2018 

Note28. 
a. The company has obtained permission for purchase of Agricultural lands admeasuring 442.15 hectors in the District Raigad as per villages referred in the 

order dated 12th March 2008 and the details of land shown in the annexure to said order from Directorate of Industries, Maharashtra State, for setting up 
Industrial Estate, Flatted Building, readymade build space, plots custom Built Campuses for IT & ITES services sector. 

b, Further same is subject to permission from town planning department and Agricultural Land Ceiling Act and the provisions of section 36 and 36 A of 
Maharashtra Land Revenue Code 1966 and of the Maharashtra Restoration of Lands to scheduled Tribe Act 197 4 and permission and approval from other 
Government bodies. 

Note 29. Contingent Liability 

As at As at 
Particulars 

31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017 
Claims against the Company, not acknowledged as debts on account of:-

On account of properties purchased pending registration and other formalities under different statutes, for Amount not Amount not 
which confirmations are pending, with regards to consideration paid for the purchase of land through ascertainable at ascertainable at 
aggregator. present present 

Income Tax Matter under Appeal with CIT for the F.Y. 2009-2010 (A.Y. 2010-11) 
10,17,08,240 10,17,08,240 

Income Tax Matter under Appeal with CIT for the F.Y. 2011-2012 (A.Y. 2012-13) 
1,263,710 1,263,710 

On account of Corporate Guarantee issued by the Company to ECL Finance Limited on behalf ofVishal Techno 
Commerce Limited, a fellow subsidary. (Refer footnote a) 2,549,300,000 1,500,000,000 

Footnotes. 
a. The loan of~254.93lakhs taken by Vishal Techno Commerce Pvt. Ltd. has been jointly and severally guaranteed by Citygold Education Pvt. Ltd., Heet 

Builders Pvt. Ltd., Hubtown Ltd. and Sunstream City Pvt. Ltd. There is no contract determining the ratio of individual guarantees by each party. Since there 
is a joint guarantee, the entire amount of guarantee has been disclosed. 

b. Interest 1 Penalty that may accure on original demands are not ascertainable, at present The company has taken the necessary steps to protect its position 
with respect to the above referred claims, which in its opinion, based on professional I legal advice, are not sustainable. 

Note30. 
In the opinion of the board of Directors of the Company, all the items of current assets, current liabilities & loans and advances continue to have a realisable 
value of atleast the amount at which they are stated in the balance sheet 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO. 
Firm Registration No. 105313W 

Proprietor 
Membership No. 30917 

Mumbai 

Date: 11th june, 2018 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

SH'/1:; MEHTA 
Director 

Director 
DIN: 03142640 

Mumbai 

Date: 11th june, 2018 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS OF CITYGOLD FARMING PRIVATE LIMITED 

Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of CITYGOLD FARMING 
PRIVATE LIMITED ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 
2018 the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the 
statement of cash flows and the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended, and 
a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein 
after referred to as "Ind AS financial statement"). 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial 
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance 
(including other comprehensive income),cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in 
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian 
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant 
rules issued thereunder. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the 
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our 
audit We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing 
standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the 
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under 
Section 143(10) of the Act Those Standards require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the lnd AS financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
the disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the 



auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind 
AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the 
auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation of the lnd 
AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances . An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by 
the Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind AS 
financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements. 

Opinion 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the financial position of the 
Company as at 31st March, 2018, and its financial loss for the year(including other 
comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that 
date. 

Emphasis of Matter 

Attention is invited to Note 4 in the financial statements with regards to investment written 
off in a subsidiary aggregating to ' 15 Crore. As per the information and explanation given to 
us, the company has lodged a complaint against the Directors of the subsidiary for recovery 
of amount of investment. However on conservative basis, the company have written off such 
investments in financial statements. 
Our report is not qualified in respect of this matter. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

I. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order") issued by the 
Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the 
"Annexure A" statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order; 

II. As required by Section143 (3)of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit; 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company 
so far as it appears from our examination of those books; 

(c) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive 
income ),the statement of cash flows and the statement of changes in equity dealt with by this 
Report are in agreement with the books of account; 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rule issued thereunder; 



(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 
2018 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 
31st March, 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in 
"Annexure B"; and 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with 
Rulell of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of 
our information and according to the explanations given to us : 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in 
its Ind AS financial statements, if any; 

ii. The Company did not have any long term contract including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable losses; and 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Company. 

FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO 
Firm Registration No. 105313W 
Chartered Accountants 
~/ )'\ 

LALIT KOTHARI 
Partner 
Membership No.: 30917 

Place : Mumbai 
Date: 11th June, 2018 



ANNEXURE"A"REFERRED TO IN OUR REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF CITYGOLD FARMING 
PRIVATE LIMITED ON THE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
JtstMARCH, 2018; 

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and in terms of the information and 
explanations given to us, we state that: -

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets; 

(b) The Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the Management during the year 
and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification; 

(c) The Company does not own any immovable property therefore provision of clause 
3 (I) ( c) of the said order are not applicable; 

(ii) The physical verification of inventory has been conducted at the reasonable intervals by 
the management during the year. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of 
inventory as compared to book records were not material and have been appropriately 
dealt with in the books of accounts; 

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted 
any secured or unsecured loans to companies; firms or other parties covered under section 
189 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act'). Therefore, provision of clause 3(iii), 3(iii)(a), 
3(iii)(b), 3(iii)(c) of the said order are not applicable to the company; 

(iv) The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments, or provided any 
guarantees or any security to the parties covered under section 185 and 186. Therefore, 
the provisions of clause 3(iv) of the said Order are not applicable to the Company; 

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public during the year, Therefore the 
provisions of clause 3 (v) of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 are not 
applicable to the Company; 

(vi) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company 
has not crossed the threshold limit as prescribed by the Central Government under sub­
section (1) of section 148 of the Act for maintenance of cost records and hence the 
provision for maintenance of records are not applicable to the Company; 

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the 
Company examined by us, in our opinion, except for dues in respect of Tax deduced at 
Source, Service tax and Interest on tax payable, the Company is generally regular in 
depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Value added tax, cess and other 
material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities. There was an 
amount of Goods and Service Tax of~ 1,39,431/-, Service tax of ~ 6,56,750/- and 
Interest on tax payable~ 7,15,986/- is outstanding as at the last day of the financial 
year for a period exceeding six months from the date they became payable. 



(b) On the basis of our examination of documents and records of the Company, and 
explanation provided to us, there are no disputed dues in respect of Income Tax, 
Sales Tax, Goods & Service Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty 
or Cess other than mentioned below: 

Name of Nature Period to !Amount(~) !Amount Paid Balance Forum where the 
he of dues !which the m !Amount(~) dispute is pending 
~tatute ~mount 

elates 
F.Y.) 

Income 201 2-13 97,070 - 97,070 Commissioner of 
If ax Act, 143 (3) Income Tax (Appeals) 
1961 

(viii) As the Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any financial institution or 
bank or Government, nor has it issued any debentures as at the balance sheet date. 
Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3 (viii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

(ix) The Company has not ra ised any moneys by way of initial public offer, further public offer 
(including debt instruments) and term loans. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(ix) of 
the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

(x) Based on the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by 
the management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company by its 
officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year; 

(xi) The Company has not paid or provided managerial remuneration during the year and 
hence, the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable. 
Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

(xii) In our opini on, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provi-sions of clause 4 
(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company; 

(xii i) The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the 
provisions of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions 
have been disclosed in the fin ancial statements as required under Ind AS 24, Related Party 
Disclosures specified under section 133 to the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2015. 

(xiv) The Co mpany has not made any preferential allotment I private placement of shares or 
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year, the provision of clause 3(xiv) of the 
Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company; 

(xv) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given 
by the management, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with 
directors or pe rsons connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of 
the Order are not applicable to the Company; 



(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of 
India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xvi) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company. 

L.J. KOTHARI & CO 
Firm Registration No. 105313W 
Chartered Accountants ...A-.. 
l __.).. ~ J~ ' 

LALIT KOTHARI 
Partner 
Membership No.: 30917 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 11th June, 2018 



"ANNEXURE B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE 
IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF CITYGOLD FARMING PRIVATE LIMITED 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of CITYGOLD 
FARMING PRIVATE LIMITED ("the Company") as of 31st March, 2018 in conjunction with 
our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established 
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (!CAl). These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effe ctively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 
including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 
required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls 
over financi al reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the 
"Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be 
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, to the extent applicable to an audit 
of internal fin ancial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, 
both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply 
with ethical r equirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whethe r adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was 
established and mainta ined and if such controls operated effectively in all material 
respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of 
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing 
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and 
operati ng effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risks. The procedures 
selected depe nd on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting. 



- Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial 
reporting includes those policies and procedures that; 

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and 

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect 
on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to 
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 
reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March, 2018, based on the internal control 
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company, considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO 
Firm Registration No. 105313W 
Chartered Accountants 

~L____)f) 

LALIT KOTHARI 
Partner 
Membership No.: 30917 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 11th June, 2018 



CITYGOLD FARMING PRIVATE LIMITED 

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2018 

Particulars 

ASSETS 
Non-Current Assets 
(a) Property, plant and equipment 
(b) Financial assets 

(i) Investments 
(c) Currenttax assets (Net) 
(d) Other non-current assets 
Total Non-Current assets 

Current assets 
(a) Inventories 
(b) Financial assets 

(i) Trade receivables 
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 
(iii) Loans 
(iv) Other financial assets 

(c) Other current assets 
Total Current Assets 
TOTAL ASSETS 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Equity 
(a) Equity share capital 
(b) Other equity 
Total Equity 

Liabilities 
Non-Current Liabilities 

Financial Liabilities 
Other Financial Liabilities 

Total Non-Current Liabilities 

Current Liabilities 
(a) Financial Liabilities 

(i) Trade payables 
(ii) Other financial liabilities 

(b) Other current liabilities 
Total Current Liabilities 
Total Liabilities 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO. 
Firm Registration No. 105313W 
Chartered Accountants 

LALIT KOTHARI 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 30917 

Mumbai 

Date: 11th june, 2018 

Note 

No. 

3 

4 
5 
6 

7 

8 
9 

10 
11 
12 

13 
14 

15 

16 
17 
18 

As at 

31st March,2018 
'{ 

10,000 
24,518,894 

24,528,894 

111,800,007 

694,248,705 
11,501,765 
15,800,000 

156,959,237 

990,309,714 
1,014,838,608 

25,975,000 
(32,957,724) 
(6,982,724) 

2,083,486 
2,083,486 

5,673,894 
950,340,977 

63,722,975 
1,019,737,846 
1,021,821,332 
1,014,838,608 

As at 

31st March, 2017 
'{ 

41,131 

150,010,000 
22,002,393 
12,472,000 

184,525,524 

1,030,582,241 

5,111,766 
2,968,740 

94,705,224 
150,315,012 

1,283,682,983 
1,468,208,507 

25,975,000 
184,144,650 

210,119,650 

1,916,867 
1,916,867 

4,401,116 
1,124,454,082 

127,316,792 
1,256,171,990 
1,258,088,857 
1,468,208,507 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

SHRENIK MEHTA 
Director 

DIN~~~ 
D~H~ · 

Director 
DIN: 03142640 

Mumbai 

Date: 11th june, 2018 



CITYGOLD FARMING PRIVATE LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2018 ___ _ ---::---:-------::--::--
Note Year Ended Year Ended Particulars 

No. 315tMarch,2018 31stMarch,2017 

I INCOME 

Revenue from Operations 19 
Otherlncome 20 
Share of Profit I (Loss) of Joint Ventures 
TOTAL INCOME 

II Expenses 
Costs of Construction I Development 21 
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Stock-in-Trade and Work- 22 
in-Progress 
Finance Costs 23 
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 24 
Other Expenses 25 
TOTAL EXPENSES 

Profit before Tax 

Tax Expense 
Excess I (Short) provision for taxation in respect of earlier years 

Profit I (Loss) for the year 
Other Comprehensive Income 
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 

Earning per equity share of nominal value oH 101- each (in 26 
Rupees) 

Basic 
Diu ted 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO. 
Firm Registration No. 105313W 
Chartered Accountants d..... 

~~' 

LALIT KOTHARI 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 30917 

Mumbai 
th Date: 11 June, 2018 

~ ~ 

1,037,039,865 
2,516,501 

(1,583) 
1,039,554, 783 

141,429,005 
757,495,572 

1,279,610 
41,131 

356,411,839 
1,256,657,157 

(217,102,374) 

(217,102,374) 

(217,102,374) 

(21,710.24) 
(21,710.24) 

35,585,394 
200,000 

4,435 
35,789,829 

3,954,558 
43,302,583 

329,981 
41,132 

7,322,861 
54,951,115 

(19,161,286) 

(19,161,286) 

(19,161,286) 

(1,916.13) 
(1,916.13) 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

SHRENIK MEHTA 
Director 

DIN: 03137231 

D~ 
Director 

DIN:03142640 

Mumbai 
Date: 11th June, 2018 



·. 
CITYGOLD FARMING PRIVATE LIMITED 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31'1 MARCH, 2018 

Particulars 

I. CASH FJ.OWS ARISING FROM OPERATING ACTIYITIES 
Net profit 1 (loss) before taxation as per Statement of Profit and Loss 

Add I (Less) : 
Depreciation and amortisation 
Liabilities wri tten back 
Interest paid 
Share of loss from Partnership Firm and ]oint venture 
Investment written off 
Advances and other debit balance written off 

Operating profit before working capital changes 
Add I (Less) : 
(Increase)/ Decrease in inventories 
(Increase) 1 Decrease in trade and other receivebles 
Increase f (Decrease) in trade and other payables 
Increase 1 (Decrease) in provisions 
Current taxes paid 

Net cash flow from operating activities 

II. CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM INvESTING ACTIVITIES 

Inflow 1 (Outflow) on account of: 
Sale I (Purchase) of fixed assets 
Decrease/ (increase) in loans given 
Share of loss from Partnership Firm and ]oint venture 
Acquisition of current investment 
Net cash flow from investing activities 

Ill. CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTiviTIES 
Inflow I (Outflow) on account of: 
Finance costs paid 
Net cash flow from financing activities 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (I + II + Ill) 
Add: Balance at the beginning of the year 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 

Components of cash and cash equivalents (Refer Note 9) 
Cash on hand 
Balances with Banks 
· in Current accounts 

TOTAL 

31" March, 2018 

~ 

(217,102,374) 

41,131 
(1,177,830) 

1,583 
150,000,000 

148,864,884 
(68,237,490) 

918,782,234 
(588,603,941) 
(235,089,694) 

(2,516,501) 
92,572,098 

24,334,608 

(15,800,000) 
(1,583) 

(15,801,583) 

8,533,025 
2,968,740 

11,501,765 

67,717 

11,434,048 
11,501,765 

31"March,2017 

~ 

(19,161,286) 

41,132 
(20,610) 

(4,435) 

16,087 
(19,145,199) 

48,681,069 
(15,957,381) 

692,640 

(12,644,956) 
20,771,372 

1,626,173 

1,251,067 
4,435 
6,000 

1,261,502 

2,887,675 
81,065 

2,968,740 

83,740 

2,885,000 
2,968,740 

Note: The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS- 7) statement of cash flows. 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements 

As per our report of even date 

FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO. 
Firm Registration No. 105313W 
Chartered Accountants 

~~ 
LALIT KOTHARI 
Proprietor 
Membersh ip No. 30917 

Mumbai 
Date: 11 th june, 2018 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

SHRENIK MEHTA 
Director 

DIN:0~3~~• 

D~· 
Director 

DIN: 03142640 

Mumbai 
Date: 11th june, 2018 



CITYGOLD FARMING PRIVATE LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2018 (in~) 

Notes Amount 

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL (Ref Note 13) 
As at 1st April, 2016 25,975,000 
Changes in equity share capital -
As at 31st March, 2017 25,975,000 
Changes in equity share capital -

As at 31st March, 2018 25,975,000 

B. OTHER EQUITY 
~ 

Reserves and Surolus 
Securities Premium Retained Earnings Total 

Reserve 

Balance at 151 April, 2016 284,625,000 (81,319,064) 203,305,936 

Profit I (Loss) for the year - n 9,161,2861 (19,161,286) 
Other Comprehensive Income - - -
Balance at 3151 March, 2017 284,625,000 (100,480,350) 184,144,650 
Profit I (Loss) for the year - -(217,102,37 4-i (217,102,374) 
Other Comprehensive Income - - -
Balance at 3151 March, 2018 284,625,000 (317,582,724) (32,957,724) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

As per our report of even date 

~ FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO. 
Firm Registration No. 105313W SHRENIK MEHTA 
Chartered Accountants ~ --- - Director 

~ 4-o1'HA1;>1 ~far~ DIN~ ~· cf C' a . 0 
LALIT KOTHARI I ;: MEMBERSHIP .* i) tS' ~~~ ~ . ~ -
Proprietor ~ No. 30917 f!! D \V1 BHU 
Membership No. 30917 ~ # ~ 1) Director 

~ ~ ~IW\'\~ ' ~~D Acco\S DIN: 03142640 - -
Mumbai Mumbai 
Date: 11th June, 2018 Date: 11th June, 2018 



CITYGOLD FARMING PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2018 

Note 1. Statement of Significant Accounting Policies. 

1.1 Company Overview 
Citygold Farming private Limited is a private limited Company domiciled in India, incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956. The main object of the company is 
to acquire by purchase, lease or otherwise, agricultural land for farming, to establish and run farms and to Construct, erect, acquire, equip, lease, furnish, convert, 
adapt, improve, develop, operate & manage all sorts of Agricultural Parks, Industrial Parks, Special Economic Zone & related infrastructure facilities, commercial & 
social infrastructure facilities & amenities. 

1.2 The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 11th june, 2018. 

Note 2. Significant Accounting Policies followed by the Company 

I. Basis of preparation of financial Statements 

(i) Compliance with lnd AS 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the 'Ind AS') as notified by Ministry 
of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('Act') read with of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended 
and other relevant provisions of the Act. 

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements. 

(ii) Historical cost convention 
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following: 
1) certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value; 
2) assets held for sale- measured at lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell; 
3) defined benefit plans- plan assets measured at fair value; 

(iii) Current non-current classification 
All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current, wherever applicable, as per the operating cycle of the Company as per the guidance set 
out in Schedule III to the Act. Operating cycle for the business activities of the Company covers the duration of the project/ contract including the defect liability 
period, wherever applicable, and extends upto the realisation of receivables (including retention monies, if any) within the credit period normally applicable to the 
respective project. 

II. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS requires management to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures, and 
the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to 
the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. 

a) Judgements 
Classification of property 
The company determines whether a property is classified as investment property or inventory property. Investment property comprises land and buildings 
that are not occupied substantially for use by, or in the operations of, the company, nor for sale in the ordinary course of business, but are held primarily to 
earn rental income and capital appreciation. These buildings are substantially rented to tenants and not intended to be sold in the ordinary course of 
business. Inventory comprises property that is held for sale in the ordinary course of business. Principally, these are properties that the company develops 
and intends to sell before or on completion of construction. 
b) Estimates and assumptions 
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a 
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its 
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future 
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are 
reflected in the assumptions when they occur. 

III. Revenue recognition 
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will accrue to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured and 
also when it is reasonably certain that the ultimate collection will be made and that there is buyers' commitment to make the complete payment. 

A. Revenue from Sale ofLand 
i. Revenue from sale of land is recognised on transfer of all significant risks and rewards of ownership of such land, as per the terms of the contracts 

entered into with buyerf(s), which generally coincides with the firming of the sale contracts/ agreements, except for contracts where the Company still 
has obligations to perform substantial acts even after the transfer of all significant risks and rewards. 

B. Interest and dividend: 
Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income 
can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding at the effective interest rate applicable, 
which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying 
amount on initial recognition. 

C. Others: 
Other revenues I incomes and costs I expenditure are accounted on accrual, as they are earned or incurred. 

D. Profit 1 loss from partnership firms I association of persons: 
Share of profit I loss from partnership firms I association of persons (AOP) is accounted n respect of the financial year of the firm I AOP, during the 
reporting period, on the basis of their audited/ management reviewed accounts, which is considered as a part of other operating activity. 

~::;::~ 



CITYGOLD FARMING PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2018 

IV. Property plant and equipment and depreciation f ammortisation 

A. On transition to Ind AS, the Company has opted to continue with the carrying values measured under the previous GAAP as at 1st April, 2015 of its 
Property, Plant and Equipment and use that carrying value as the deemed cost on the date of transition i.e. 1st April, 2015. 

B. Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition or construction including attributable interest and finance cost, if any till the date of 
acquisition/installation of the assets, less accumulated depreciation/amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 

C. Subsequent expenditure relating to Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalised only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with 
the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to the 
Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred. The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements, either on 
disposal or when retired from active use and the resultant gain or loss are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

D. Depreciation is provided based on useful life of the assets as prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation on additions to assets 
or on sale/disposal of assets is calculated pro-rata from the month of such addition, or upto the month of such sale/disposal, as the case may be. 

Asset Category 
Furnitures & Fixtures 
Office Equipments 

Estimated useful life (in Years) 
10 
5 

The residual values, useful 
prospectively, if appropriate. 

lives and methods of depreciation of property plant equipment are reviewed at each financial year and adjusted 

V. Financiallnstruments 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. 

A. Investment and Financial Assets 
i. Initial recognition 

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business model with an objective to hold these 
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using 
the effective interest rate ("EJR") method. Impairment gains or losses arising on these assets are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

ii. Subsequent measurement 
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories: 

a) Financial Assets at Amortised Cost 
A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect 
contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal 
and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

b) Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value 
Financial assets are measured at fair value through OCI if these financial assets are held within a business model with an objective to hold these assets 
in order to collect contractual cash flows or to sell these financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to 
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Movements in the carrying amount are taken 
through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss. Further, in cases where the Company has made an irrevocable election based on its business model, for its 
investments which are classified as equity instruments, the subsequent changes in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income. 

Financial asset not measured at amortised cost or at fair value through OCI is carried at FVTPL. 

On transition to lnd AS, the Company has opted to continue with the carrying values measured under the previous GAAP as at 1st April, 2015 of its 
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures and used that carrying value as the deemed cost of these investments on the date of 
transition i.e. 1st April, 2015. 

iii. De-recognition of Financial Assets: 
The Company de-recognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the financial asset 
and substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the 
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognizes its retained interest in the assets and an 
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. 

If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the 
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received. 

B. Equity Instruments and Financial Liabilities 
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered 
into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. 

i. Equity Instruments 
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity 
instruments which are issued for cash are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Equity instruments which are issued for 
consideration other than cash are recorded at fair value of the equity instrument. 



CITYGOLD FARMING PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3151 MARCH, 2018 
2. Subsequent Measurement 
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below: 

- Financial liabilities at FVTPL 
Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at FVTPL. 
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses on liabilities 
held for trading are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs 
because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument Financial guarantee contracts are 
recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance ofthe guarantee. Subsequently, 
the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of lnd AS 109 and the amount 
recognised less cumulative amortisation. Amortisation is recognised as finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

- Financial liabilities at amortised cost 
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Any difference 
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of the borrowings in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an 
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

3. De-recognition of Financial Liabilities 
Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. When an existing financial 
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, 
such an exchange or modification is treated as de-recognition of the original liability and recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective 
carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

C. Offsetting Financial Instruments 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to 
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

VI Derecognition of financial instruments 
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expires or it transfers the finacial asset 
and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under IndAS 109. A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized from the Company's 
Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires. 

VII. Impairment 

a. Financial assets 

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not fair valued through profit or loss. 
Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to life time ECL. For all other financial assets, 
expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial 
recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL.The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance 
at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognised is recognized as an impairment gain or loss in the statement of profit or loss. 

b. Non-financial assets 

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual 
impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's 
or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the 
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or 
CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount 

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are 
taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation 
multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators. 

Impairment losses, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 
i. Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment 

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability wheneer events or changes in circumstances indicate that their 
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and 
the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other 
assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs. 

ii. Provisions 
A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that is reasonably estimable, and it is 
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash 
flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2018 

VIII. Taxation 

i. Current Tax 
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax' as reported in the financial statement of profit 
and Joss becauseof items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company's 
current tax is calculated using rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

In case the Company is liable to pay income tax ujs 115)B of Income Tax Act, 1961 (i.e. MAT), the amount of tax paid in excess of normal income tax is 
recognized as an asset (MAT Credit entitlement) only if there is convincing evidence for realization of such asset during the specified period. MAT credit 
entitlement is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date. 

ii. Deferred Tax 
Deferred tax is recognized on temporary diferences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding 
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets 
are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those 
deductible temporary differences can be utilized. 
The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that 
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. 
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realized, 
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at 
the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. 

iii. Current and deferred tax for the year 
Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or Joss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in 
equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. 

IX. Inventories 
All inventories are stated at lower of'Cost or Net Realizable Value'. 

A. 'Incomplete Projects' include cost of land for which the Company has not entered into sale agreements and in other cases where the revenue 
recognition is postponed. 'Incomplete Projects' also include initial project costs that relate to a (prospective) project, incurred for the purpose of 
securing the project. These costs are recognized as expenditure for the year in which they are incurred unless they are separately identifiable and it is 
probable that the respective project will be obtained. 

B. Cost included in inventory include costs incurred up to the completion of the project viz. cost of land, services and other expenses (including borrowing 
costs) attributable to the projects. Cost formula used is average cost. 

X. Borrowings and Borrowing costs 
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are 
recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss when the liabilities are de-recognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is 
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is 
included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Interests and other borrowing costs included under finance costs calculated as per effective interest rate attributable to qualifying assets, which takes 
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are allocated as part of the cost of construction f development of such assets. Such allocation is 
suspended during extended periods in which active development is interrupted and, no costs are allocated once all such activities are substantially 
complete. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from 
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. Other borrowing costs are charged to the Profit and Loss Account. 

XI. Cash Flow Statement 
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any 
deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. 
The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the company are segregated. 

XII. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or 
less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank 
overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash management. 

XIII. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets 
A provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as result of past event and it is probable that an outflow of 
embodying economic benefits of resources will be required to settle a reliably assessable obligation. Provisions are determined based on best estimate 
required to settle each obligation at each balance sheet date. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current 
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of 
time is recognised as a finance cost. 

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events, whose existence would be confirmed by the occurrence or 
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. A contingent liability also arises, in rare cases, where a 
liability cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. 

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements. 
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XIV. Recent accounting pronouncements 
Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration: On March 28, 2018, Ministry of Corporate Affairs ('"'MCA"") has notified 
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 containing Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreigncurrency transactions and advance 
consideration which clarifies the date of the transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, 
expense or income, when an entity has received or paid advance consideration in a foreign currency. 

The amendment will come into force from 1 April 2018. The Company exposure towards foreign currency transation is minimal, hence the impact on the 
financial statements and effect on adoption ofind AS 21 is expected to be insignificant. 
lndAS115 

In March 2018, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amended Rules, 2018 ("amended rules") . As per 
the amended rules, Ind AS 115 "Revenue from contracts with customers" supersedes Ind AS 11, "Construction contracts" and Ind AS 18, "Revenue" and is 
applicable for all accounting periods commencing on or after 1 Apri l 2018. 

Ind AS 115 introduces a new framework of five step model for the analysis of revenue transactions. The model specifies that revenue should be recognised 
when (or as) an entity transfer control of goods or services to a customer at the amount to which the entity expects to be entitled. Further the new standard 
requires enhanced disclosures about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from the entity's contracts with 
customers. The new revenue standard is applicable to the Company from 1 April 2018. 

The standard permits two possible methods of transition: 

Retrospective approach- Under this approach the standard will be applied retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented in accordance with 
Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors 

Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognized at the date of initial application (Cumulative catch- up approach) 

The Company is evaluating the requirement of the amendment and the impact on the financial statements. The effect on adoption of IND AS 115 is expected 
to be insignificent 
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Note 3. Property, plant and equipment 

Cost or deemed cost 
Balance at 1st April, 2016 
Additions 
Disposals 
Balance at 31st March, 2017 

Accumulated depreciation 
Balance at 31st March, 2016 
Eliminated on disposal of assets 
Depreciation expense 
Balance at 31st March, 2 017 
Carrying amount as at 31st March, 2017 

Cost or deemed cost 
Carrying amount as at 31st March 2017 
Additions 
Disposals 
Balance at 31st March, 2018 

Accumulated depreciation 
Balance at 31st March, 2018 
Eliminated on disposal of assets 
Depreciation expense 
Balance at 31st March, 2018 
Carrying amount as at 31st March, 2018 

Furniture and 
Office Equipment 

Fixtures 

517,500 630,000 

517,500 630,000 

435,238 630,000 

41,132 
476,369 630,000 
41,131 

Furniture and 
Office Equipment 

Fixtures 

517,500 630,000 

517,500 630,000 

476,370 630,000 

41,131 
517,500 630,000 

Total 

1,147,500 

1,147,500 

1,065,238 

41,132 
1,106,369 

41,131 

Total 

1,147,500 

1,147,500 

1,106,370 

41,131 
1,147,500 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
51 

MARCH, 2018 

As at 
31st March, 2018 

~ 

As at 
31st March, 2017 

~ 

Note 4 . Investments 
(Trade, unless otherwise specified) 

A) Investment in equity instruments (Unquoted) 
150,000 Equity shares of face value of <10/- each 
Asha Multitrade Private limited (Refer footnote) 
Footnote: 

150,000,000 

The Company had in an earlier year invested Rs. 15 crores in Asha Multitrade Private limited (Hereinafter referred to as 
"AMPL"), a body corporate in which, in lieu of the above investment, the Company had been allotted shares constituting approx. 
93.7 5% of the paid-up Equity Share Capital of the said body corporate. Subsequent to payment made in lieu of the above 
investment and despite multiple representation, reminders and requests made for handover of the Company, AMPL continued 
to be operated by Mr. Mahaveer Jain & Mr. Mahaveer Chand, the continuing Directors, who not only did not hand over the 
control of AMPL to the Company but also did not provide any primary and basic documents like share certificates, Financials, 
Bank books, etc, for any financial year, to the Company either. 

During the year, the Company it has come to the knowledge and information of the Company that the directors of AMPL had 
allegedly indulged in nefarious and fraudulent activities since the last number of years. Considering that the Company has 
unwittingly become a victim to an apparent fraud, the Company has approached the Economic Offence Wing ("EOW") and 
Registrar of Companies("ROC") and has lodged a complaint against the directors of AMPL and have requested a thorough 
investigation to uncover the true facts of the case so as to enable the Company to recover its investment. Considering the 
background of the case and the doubtful nature of recoverability of the investment, the company has conservatively, during the 
year, written off the investments made by it in AM PL. 

B) Capital Investment in Partnership Firms and Joint Venture 
a) Capital Investment in Partnership Firm 

M/s Rising Glory Developers 

TOTAL 

10,000 

10,000 

Details oflnvestments made in capital of Partnership firm and Joint Venture: 

a) Partnership Firm 
M/s Rising Glory Developers 

Particulars 31st March, 2018 
Profit Sharine Ratio 

1 Hubtown Limited 20.00% 
2 Ackruti Safeguard Svstem Private Limited 5.34% 
3 Citygold Education Research Limited 5.34% 
4 Citygold Farming Private Limited 5.34% 
5 Diviniti Projects Private Limited 5.34% 
6 Halitious Developers Limited 5.34% 
7 Headland Farming Private Limited 5.33% 
8 Heddle Knowledge Private Limited 5.33% 
9 Heet Builders Private Limited 5.33% 

10 Subhsiddhi Builders Private Limited 5.33% 
11 Sunstream Citv Private Limited 10.66% 
12 Upvan lake Resort Private Limited 5.33% 
13 Vega Developers Private Limited 5.33% 
14 Whitebud Developers Limited 5.33% 
15 Yantti Buildcon Private Limited 5.33% 

Total 100.00% 
Total Capital of the firm in~ 150,000 

10,000 

150,010,000 

31st March, 2017 
Profit Sharing Ratio 

20.00% 
5.34% 
5.34% 
5.34% 
5.34% 
5.34% 
5.33% 
5.33% 
5.33% 
5.33% 

10.66% 
5.33% 
5.33% 
5.33% 
5.33% 

100.00% 
150,000 
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Note 5. Current Tax assets and liabilities 
Advance Tax paid 
Less: Provision for Tax 
TOTAL 

Note 6. Other non current assets 
Non-current 
Advances to land owners (Refer Note 31) 
TOTAL 

Note 7. Inventories 
Inventories (lower of cost or net realisable value) 
- Incomplete projects (Refer Footnote to Note 12) 
TOTAL 

Note 8. Trade Receivables 
Current 
Unsecured, considered good 
- Other trade receivables 
-Related Party (Refer Note 27) 
TOTAL 

Note 9. Cash and cash equivalents 
Balances with banks: 
- in current accounts 
Cash on hand 
TOTAL 

Note 10. Loans 
Current 
Loan to others (Unsecured, considered good) 
TOTAL 
Footnote:-

As at 
31st March, 2018 

~ 

25,950,927 
(1,432,033) 

24,518,894 

111,800,007 
111,800,007 

10,963,405 
683,285,300 

694,248,705 

11,434,048 
67,717 

11,501,765 

15,800,000 
15,800,000 

As at 
31st March, 2017 

~ 

23,434,426 
(1,432,033) 

22,002,393 

12,472,000 
12,472,000 

1,030,582,241 
1,030,582,241 

5,111,766 

5,111,766 

2,885,000 
83,740 

2,968,740 

The Company has not charged interest on loan given by it to certain group entities developing real estate projects, in which the 
Company has a commercial and business interest. 

Note 11. Other financial assets 
Current 
Project Advances to related parties (Refer Note 27) 
Current Account Balances in Partnership Firms 
Advances for Projects 
Other Advances and Receivables: 

-Advances recoverable From others 
- Other receivables (Other than Trade receivables) 

TOTAL 

Note 12. Other current assets 
Current 
Advances to land owners (Refer Note 31) 
TOTAL 
Footnote: 

154,334,384 
1,987,092 

637,761 
156,959,237 

2,341,000 
1,999,635 

88,334,500 

479,169 
1,550,920 

94,705,224 

150,315,012 
150,315,012 
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Note 13. Equity share capital 
Authorised Share Capital: 
10,000 ( P.Y.: 10,000) Equity Shares of < 10/- each) 

9,99,000 ( P.Y.: 9,99,000) 8% Non Cumulative Convertible Preferen ce Shares of lt 100/ - each 
TOTAL 

Issued and subscribed capital comprises: 
10,000 (P.Y.: 10,000) Equity Shares of lt 10/- each 

2,58,750 (P.Y.: 2,58,750) 8% Non Cumulative Convertible Preference Shares of lt 100/- each 

TOTAL 

Footnotes: 

(i) Reconciliation of the number of Equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year 
Balance at 1st April, 2016 

Add: Issued during the year 
Less : Bought back during the year 

Balance at 31st March, 2017 
Add: Issued during the year 
Less : Bought back during the year 

Balance at 31st March, 2018 

(ii) Reconciliation of the number of Preference shares outstanding at the beginning and the end of the year 
Balance at 1st April. 2016 

Add: Issued during the year 
Less : Bought back during the year 

Balance at 31st March, 2017 
Add : Issued during the year 
Less : Bought back during the year 

Balance at 31st March, 2018 

(iii) Details of shares held by each shareholders holding more than 5% shares 

As at 31st March, 2018 
No of shares held %holding 

Fully paid equity shares 
Hubtown Limited w ith Beneficiary Owners 

TOTAL 

Fully paid preference shares 
Harmony Energy Pvt Ltd. 
Aiken Management and Financial Services Pvt Ltd. 
Priority Traders PvtLtd. 
Shree Ganesh Spinners Ltd. 
Tac Technosoft Private Limited 
Azure Exim ServicesLtd. ( Hindustan Continental Limited) 
Epson Trading Pvt Ltd. 
Lilac Medicines Private Ltd. 
Harekrishna Securities Pvt. Ltd. 

10,000 100% 
10,000 100% 

As at 31st March, 2018 
No of shares held %holding 

20,900 8.08% 
20,900 8.08% 
20,900 8.08% 
29,200 11.29% 
16,700 6.45% 
37,500 14.49% 
33,400 12.91% 
16,700 6.45% 
41,700 16.12% 

As at As at 

31st March, 2016 31st March, 2017 

< < 

100,000 100,000 

99,900,000 99,900,000 

100,000,000 100,000,000 

100,000 100,000 

25,875,000 25,875,000 

25,975,000 25,975,000 

Number of shares Share Capital 
Nos. lt 

10,000 100,000 

10,000 100,000 

10,000 100,000 

Number of shares Share Capital 
Nos. < 

258,750 25,875,000 

258,750 25,875,000 

256,750 25,875,000 

As at 31st March, 2017 
No of shares held %holding 

10,000 100% 
10,000 100% 

As at 31st March, 2017 
No of shares held %holding 

20,900 8.08% 
20,900 8.08% 
20,900 8.08% 
29,200 11.29% 
16,700 6.45% 
37,500 14.49% 
33,400 12.91% 
16,700 6.45% 
41,700 16.12% 

(iv) The rights, preferences and restrictions attaching to each class of shares including restrictions on the distribution of dividends and the repayment of capital: 

Equity Share 
The company has a single class of equity shares having a par value of< 10/- per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share. The company declares and pays 
dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting. 

In the event of liquidation of company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution 
will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. 

Preference Shares 
8% Non cumulative convertible Preference Shares of <tOO each. The Preference Shares of the Company shall be converted into fully paid equity shares of the Company on or after 1st April, 
2012 or on such other date as may be decided by Board of Directors of the Company by exercising a call option vested in the Company for conversion of the Preference Shares on such terms 
and conditions as the Board of Directors may deem fit However the Board of Directors has not exercise a ca ll option as on 31st March ,2018. 



CITYGOLD FARMING PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2018 

Note 14. Other Equity 
Securities premium reserve 
Balance at the beginning of the year 
Add I (Less) : 
Premium on account of shares alloted during the year 
Balance at the end of the period 

Retained Earnings 
Balance at the beginning of the year 
Profit attributable to the owners of the company 
Balance at the end of the period 

TOTAL 

Note 15: Other non current liabilities 
Non-current 
Security Deposits 
Advance rentals-Non Current 
TOTAL 

Note 16. Trade payables 
Dues to MSME (Refer Footnote) 
Dues to Others 
TOTAL 

Footnote: 

As at 
31st March, 2018 

~ 

284,625,000 

284,625,000 

(100,480,350) 
(217,102,374) 

(317,582,724) 

(32,957,724) 

1,524,507 
558,979 

2,083,486 

5,673,894 
5,673,894 

As at 
31stMarch,2017 

~ 

284,625,000 

284,625,000 

(81,319,064) 
(19,161,286) 

(100,480,350) 

184,144,650 

1,629,104 
287,763 

1,916,867 

4,401,116 
4,401,116 

As per information available with the company regarding dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as defined under the 
Micro Small Medium Enterprises Development, Act 2008 (MSMED Act), none of the suppliers of the company are registered 
under MSMED Act, and the same has been relied upon by the auditors. 

Note 17: Other Financial Liabilities 
Current 
Advances received from body corporates for projects 
Advance received from others 
Business advances from related party (Refer Note 27) 
Security deposits (Refundable) 
Other payables : 
- Related Party 
-Others 
TOTAL 

Note 18. Other Liabilities 
Current 
Advance from customers 
Other payables : 
- Statutory dues 
TOTAL 

600,000,000 
347,501,000 

1,000,000 

806,231 
1,033,746 

950,340,977 

61,480,000 

2,242,975 
63,722,975 

150,000,000 
600,000,000 
361,508,295 

1,500,000 

11,445,787 
1,124,454,082 

124,933,500 

2,383,292 
127,316,792 
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Note 19. Revenue from operations 
Sale from operations : 
Sale of Properties 

Other operating revenue : 
Lease rentals 
Amortisation of Advance Lease rentals 
Liabilities written back to the extent no longer required 
Provision for doubtful debts written back 
Compensation I surrender of Rights 

TOTAL 

Note 20. Other income 
Miscellaneous income 
TOTAL 

Note 21. Costs of Construction f Development 
Land cost (Refer Footnote to Note 12) 
TOTAL 

As at 
31st March, 2018 

~ 

918,779,800 

918,779,800 

6,682,676 
399,559 

1,177,830 

110,000,000 
118,260,065 

1,037,039,865 

2,516,501 
2,516,501 

141,429,005 
141,429,005 

Note 22. Changes In Inventories Of Incomplete Projects, Finished Properties And FSI 

Opening Inventory incomplete projects 1,030,582,241 

Less: 
Purchase Return (Land) 
Plot cost and Expenses incurred on procurement written off (Refer Note 2 5) 

Closing Inventory incomplete projects 
TOTAL 
Note 23. Finance Costs 
Interest costs: 
Unwinding of security deposit 
Delayed/penal interest on loans and statutory dues 
TOTAL 

Note 24. Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 
Depreciation of property plant and equipment 
TOTAL 

Note 25. Other Expenses 
Brokerage 
Bad Debts written off 
Municipal Taxes & Land non utilization charges 
Investment Written off (Refer footnote to Note 4) 
Legal and professional fees 
Advances and other debit balances written off 
Work in progess written off (Land expenses) (Refer Note 22) 
Other expenses (Refer footnote) 
TOTAL 

FootNote: 
Auditor Remuneration (Included in the other expenses) 
Audit Fees 

2,350,000 
158,936,662 
869,295,579 
111,800,007 

757,495,572 

566,178 
713,432 

1,279,610 

41,131 
41,131 

2,445,975 

954,225 
150,000,000 

2,761,513 
40,475,000 

158,936,662 
838,464 

356,411,839 

As at 
31st March, 2017 

~ 

26,828,750 

26,828,750 

8,505,000 
138,566 

20,610 
92,468 

8,756,644 
35,585,394 

200,000 
200,000 

3,954,558 
3,954,558 

1,079,263,310 

2,609,500 
2,768,986 

1,073,884,824 
1,030,582,241 

43,302,583 

48,807 
281,174 

329,981 

41,132 
41,132 

523,662 
92,468 

2,943,444 

611,735 

2,768,986 
382,566 

7,322,861 
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Note 26. Earnings per share (EPS) 
Basic earning per share 
Diluted earn ings per share"' 

Basic EPS 
The earnings and we ighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per sha re are as follows: 
Profit / (Loss) for the year attributable to the owners of the Company 
Weighted average number of eq uity s hares fo r the purposes of basic ea rnings per share 

Diluted EPS 
The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in th e calculation of basic earnings per share are as follows: 

Profit/(Loss) for the yea r attributable to the owners of the Company 
Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of diluted earnings per share• 

Footnote: 

Year Ended Year Ended 
31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017 

~ ~ 

(21,710.24) (1,916.13) 

(21,710.24) (1,916.13) 

(217,102,374) (19,161,286) 

10,000 10,000 

(217,102,374) (19,161,286) 

10,000 10,000 

For the purpose of diluted EPS convertible instruments (8% non cumulative convertible preference shares) deem to have been converted into equity shares at the beginning of the period. The conversion 

ratio has been arrived at on face value basis. 
8% non cumulative convertible preference shares could potentially dilute basic earnings per share, hence are not included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share because they are antidilutive for 
the period presented. Diluted EPS is restricted to the amount of Basic EPS to the extent the conversion of convertible instruments prove to be anti dilutive. 

Note 27. Related party disclosure 
A) Names of Related Parties and description of Relationships 

I Holding Company 

II Fellow Subsidiary Companies 

Ill Firm In which the company is partner 

IV Entitles With joint Control Of, Or Significant Influence Over, the Entity 

V Key Management personnel and their relatives 

Footnote: 
Related party relationship are identified by the Company and relied upon by the Auditors 

Bl Transactions with Related party 

Sr. 
No. 

Nature ofTransaction 

Business Advances Received/ Recovered/ Adjusted 
Hubtown Limited 

Rubix Trading Private Limited 

Business Advances given/ Repaid/ Adjusted 
Hubtown Limited 

Citygold Education Research Limited 

Heddle Knowledge Private Limited 

]oynest Premises Private Limited 

On behalf payments made (including reimbursment of expenses) 
Hubtown Limited 

Hedd le Knowledge Private Limited 

4 Compensation I surrender of Rights 
Citygold Educat ion Research Limited 

ii. 

Share of loss from Partnership Firm 
Rising Glory Developers 

Contribut ion to Current Account 
Rising Glory Developers 

sa le of Properties 
Mr. Vyomesh M. Shah 

Mr. Khilen V Shah 

Mr. Kushal H. Shah 

Mr. Rushank V Shah 

Balances Outstanding 

Hubtown Limited 
Joynest Premises Private Limited 
Rubix Trading Private Limited 
Heddle Knowledge Private Limited 

Balances Receivable 

Citygold Education Research Limited 
Rising Glory Developers 
Heddle Knowledge Private Limited 
Hubtown Limited 
joynest Premises Private Limited 
Mr. Vyomesh M. Shah 
Mr. Kh ilen V Shah 
Mr. Kushal H. Shah 
Mr. Rushank V Shah 

Footnotes: 
Previous year fi gures are given in brackets. 

Holding 
Company 

320,000 
(69,849,372) 

(·) 

166,936,931 
(89,330,000) 

(·) 

(· ) 

(·) 

735,252 

(·) 

(·) 

(·) 

(·) 

(·) 

(·) 

(·) 

(·) 

(·) 

Hubtown Limited 

Joynest Premises Private Limited 
Heddle Knowledge Private Limited 
Citygold Education Research Limited 

M/S Rising Glory Developers 

Rubix Trading Private Limited [Subsidiary Of Vinca] 

Mr. Vyomesh M. Shah 
Mr. Khilen V Shah 
Mr. Kushal H. Shah 
Mr. Rushank V Shah 

Fellow Subsidiary 

(·) 

(· ) 

(·) 

(1,300,000) 

(1,040,500) 
152,200,000 

(·) 

(·) 
1,846,731 

(· ) 

110,000,000 
(·) 

(·) 

(· ) 

(·) 

(·) 

(·) 

(·) 

Others Significant 
lnnuence 

(·) 

(3 47,S01,000) 

(·) 

(·) 

(·) 

(·) 

(·) 

(·) 

(·) 

(·) 

(· ) 

(·) 

(·) 

(·) 

(·) 

Firmin which 
Company is a partner 

(·) 

(·) 

(·) 

(·) 

(·) 

(· ) 

(·) 

(·) 

(·) 

1,583 
(365) 

(2,000,000) 

(·) 

(·) 

(·) 

(· ) 

As at 

31st March, 2018 

347,501,000 
806,231 

As at 
31st March, 2018 

110,260,000 
1,987,092 

151,874,384 
2,200,000 

146,872,250 
89,526,000 

136,907,500 
199,979,550 

Key Management 
Personnel of the 

Entity 

(·) 

(·) 

(·) 

(·) 

(·) 

(·) 

(·) 

(·) 

(·) 

(· ) 

(· ) 

171,789,750 
(·) 

142,026,000 
(·) 

151,273,500 

(·) 
286,442,050 

(·) 

As at 

31st March, 2017 

14,007,295 
150,000,000 

347,501,000 

As at 
31st March, 2017 

1,300,500 
1,999,635 
1,040,500 



CITYGOLD FARMING PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2018 

Note 28. Financial Risk Management Objectives 
The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk The Company's focus is to foresee the 
unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance. 

1) Market Risk 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument which fluctuate because of changes in market prices. 
Interest rate risk 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The 
company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to company's debt obligations with floating interest rates. 

· The Company has received interest free advances from its holding company and hence it is not exposed to interest rate risk 
2) Credit Risk 
Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract leading to a financial loss. The 
company is not exposed to credit risk from its operating activities or trade receivables since the agreement of sale of land is executed only on receipt of full 
consideration. 
Credit risk from balances with banks and inter corporate loans is managed by the company's treasury department in accordance with the company's 
policy. 

3) Liquidity risk 
The operating cash flow requirements are met by interest free funding from shareholders. 

Note 29. Capital Management 
The primary objective of company's capital management is to ensure that it maintains strong capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise 
shareholders value. The company's board of directors reviews the capital structure on an annual basis. 

Note 30. Categories of Financial Instruments 
Fair Value measurement 

Einan~ial Assets 
Investment 
Loans 
Trade receivables 
Cash and cash equivalent 
Other financial assets 
Total of Financial Assets 

Einan~ial Liabilities 
Trade payables 
Other Financial liabilities 
Total of Financial Liabilities 

31st March, 2018 
FVPL&FVOCI Amortised Cost 

10,000 
- 15,800,000 

694,248,705 
11,501,765 

156,959,237 
878,519,707 

5,673,894 
- 950,340,977 
- 956,014,871 

(~) 

31st March, 2017 
FVPL&FVOCI Amortised Cost 

150,010,000 

5,111,766 
2,968,740 

94,705,224 

- 252,795,730 

4,401,116 
1,124,454,082 

1,128,855,198 

Note 31. The permission under Bombay Tenancy and Agricultura l Land Act (BTAL) from Revenue Department for acquiring Agricultural Land in excess 
of ceiling limit are subject to conditions imposed by Government which state that the approva ls/ permissions under MLR Code, Restoration of 
Land to ST Act, BTAL Act, Forests Acts, CRZ, NDZ and other similar laws wherever applicable are necessary. 

(in~) 

Note 32. Particulars As at As at 
31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017 

Advance paid to farmers for which no agreement have been entered 12,472,000 
Advances pa id to farmers for which agreements have been executed in the name of Company 
and nominee of Company 150,315,012 



CITYGOLD FARMING PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31' ' MARCH Z018 . 
Note 33. Contingent Liability (not acknowledged as debt) 

As at As at 
Particulars 

31st March, Z018 31st March, Z017 

Claims against the Company, not acknowledged as debts on account of: 
Income Tax Matter under u js 143 (3) with CIT for the F.Y. 2009·2010 (A.Y. 2010·11) 122,434,628 
Income Tax Matter under ujs 143(3) with CIT for the F.Y. 2012·2013 [A.Y. 2013·14) 97,070 97,070 
On account of properties purchased pending registration and other formalit ies under different statutes, for 

Nil Nil which confirmations are pending. with regards to consideration paid for the purchase of land through 

Note: Interest f Penalty that may accure on original demands are not ascertainable, at present The company has taken the necessary steps to protect its 
position with respect to the above referred claims, which in its opinion, based on pro fessional f legal advice, are not sustainable. 

Note 34. In the opinion of the board of Directors of the Company, all the items of current assets, current liabilities & loans and advances continue to 
have a realisable value of atleast the amount at which they are stated in the balance sheet 

Note 35. The Company is in the process of acquisition of la nd /properties. Some of the Land purchased standing in the name of nominees of Company 
pending for necessary permissions fro m the Revenue Department 

Note 36. Debtors, Credi tors and Loans and advances include confirmations, reconciliation and adjustments and are considered payable/ realizable, as 
the case may be. 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO. 
Firm Registration No.105313W 

~rtered Ac_::'nts , D ~ 

LALIT KOTHARI 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 30917 

Mumbai 
Date: 11th june, 2018 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

£;MEHTA 
Director 

DIN:.:~~~~ 
DV~ r" 

Director 

DIN : 03142640 

Mumbai 
Date: 11th june, 2018 



Independent Auditor's Report 

SANKET R SHAH & ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 

To the Members of Citywood Builders Private limit ed 

1) Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements: 
We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of 
Citywood Builders Private Limited ('the Company'), which comprise the balance sheet 
as at 31st March, 2018 the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive 
income) and the statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the 
year then ended and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information (herein after referred to as "standalone Ind AS financial 
statements") . 

2) Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements: 
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of 
these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income and 
the statement of changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind 
AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued 
thereunder. 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that 
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair 
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

3) Auditor's Responsibility : 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone Ind AS financial 
statements based on our audit. 

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing 
standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the 
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Aud iting specified under 
Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements are free from material 

misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts 
and the disclosures in the standalone Ind AS financial statements. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to 

Office 307, 3rd Floor, Sai lnfotech, R. B. Mehta Marg, Patel Chowk, Near Ghatkopar Station, Ghatkopar (East), Mumbai- 400077. 

Mob . +91 9022469464 I Email casanketrshah@gmail.com 



fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal 
financia l control relevant to the Company's preparation of the standalone Ind AS 
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the 
accou nting estimates made by the Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements. 

4) Opinion : 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information 
required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Ind 
AS, of the financial position of the Company as at 31st March, 2018, its financial 
performance including other comprehensive income and the statement of changes in 
equity for the year ended on that date. 

5) Emphasis of Matter: 
1. Attention is invited to Note No. 3.1(A) of the financial statements with regarding 

recognition of expense and income for ongoing projects which is based upon 
estimated project costs, as per the judgement of the management, which have 
been relied upon by us, these being technical Matters. 

2. Attention is invited to Note No. 7 of the financial statements with regard to 
inventory including value of incomplete projects transfer from M/s Shreenath 
Realtors (the partnership firm) during the financial year. 

3. Attention is invited to Note No. 15 of the financial statements with regard to non 
current borrowings interest not charged on non convertible debenture from during 
the year. 

4. Attention is invited to Note No. 35 of the financial statements with regard to 
reliance placed by the auditors on certification received from the management with 
regard to the disclosure of contingent liabilities given by the Company. 

5. Attention is invited to Note No. 37 of the financial statements with regards to 
balances that are subject to confirmations, reconciliation and adjustments if any. 

6. The Company has not charged interest on loans and advances given to various 
entities in which the Company has a business interest. 

6) Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements: 
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ('' the Order'') issued 

by the Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give 
in the "Annexure A", a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 
and 4 of the order. 

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 
a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the 

best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 
b) in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by 

the Company so fa r as it appears from our examination of those books; 



c) the balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss, the statement of cash flows 
and the statement of changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account; 

d) in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Jnd AS financial statements comply 
with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with 
relevant rule issued thereunder; 

e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 
March 2018 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is 
disqualified as on 31 March 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 164 (2) of the Act; 

f) with respect to the adequacy of the internal f inancial controls over financia l 
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such contro ls, 
refer to our separate report in "Annexure B"; and 

g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in 
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in 
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us: 
i. the Company has no pending litigations on its financial position in its 

standalone Ind AS financial statements; 
ii. the Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law 

or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long­
term contracts including derivative contracts ; 

iii. there has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be 
transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the 

Company; 

For Sanket R Shah & Associates 

Sanke 
Proprietor 
M. No.: 152369 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 20th June, 2018 



Annexure - A to the Auditors' Report 

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors' Report to the members of the Company 
on the standalone Ind AS fmancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018, we report 
that: 

( i) 

(ii) 

a. The Company has maintained a regi ster of fixed assets, giving description and 
location of its assets; and 

b. As explained to us, the Company has physically verified its fixed assets during 
the year; 

a. The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. 
In our opinion, the frequency of the verification is reasonable. 
b. In our opinion, the procedures of physical verification of Inventory followed by 
the management are reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the 
company and the nature of its business; 
c. On the basis of our examination of the records of the company, we are of the 
opinion that, the company is maintaining proper project-wise records. The 
discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory as compared to its book 
records were not maintained . 

(iii) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company has not granted any secured or unsecured loans to Companies, firms or 
other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the 
Companies Act, 2013; 
a. The above loan is interest free and repayable on demand; and 
b. As the loan repayable on demand, the question of overdue amount does not 

arise; 
(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 

Company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with 
respect to the loans and investments made. 

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public. 
(vi) The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under 

section 148(1) of the Act, for any of the services rendered by the Company. 
(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 

our examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the 
books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, 
income-tax, sales tax, value added tax, duty of customs, service tax, cess and 
other material statutory dues have been regularly deposited during the year by the 
Company with the appropriate authorities. However, there were outstanding 
interest dues of statutory liability and the details of outstanding as follows: 

Sr. No. Particulars Amount in INR 
1. Tax Deducted at Source (TDS) Liability 6,51,128/-
2. Maharashtra Value Added Tax (MVAT) Liability 4,74,497/-
3. Interest on above Statutory Liability 7,05,303/-

Total Statutory Liability 18,30,928/-

(b) On the basis of our examination of documents and records of the Company, 
and explanation provided to us, there were no disputed dues in respect of Income 

......--::::::;;~.,_ Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty or Cess; 
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(viii) The Company have taken loans or borrowings from any financial institution, banks, 
government or debenture holders during the year. On the basis of records 
examined by us the Company default in repayment of fo reign loan taken from 
bank. 

(ix) The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further 
public offer (including debt instruments) and term loans during the year. 
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (ix) of the Order is not applicable. 

(x) According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by 
the Company or on the Company by its offi cers or employees has been noticed or 
reported during the course of our audit. 

(xi) According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has paid/provided fo r 
managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by 
the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. 

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company is not a nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not 
applicable. 

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our 
examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties 
are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and 
details of such transactions have been disclosed in the standalone Ind AS financial 
statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

(xiv) According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any 
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible 
debentures during the year. 

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into 
non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, 
paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xvi) The Company is not required to be reg istered under section 45-IA of the Reserve 
Bank of India Act 1934. 

For Sanket R Shah 8t Associates 

Proprietor 
M. No.: 152369 

Place : Mumbai 
Date: 20th June, 2018 



Annexure - B to the Auditors' Report 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of 
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act" ) 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Citywood Bu ilders 
Private Limited (" the Company") as of 31 March 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the 
standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

1) Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls: 
The Company's management is responsi ble for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 
establ ished by the Company considering the essentia l components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

2) Auditor's Responsibility: 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls 
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance 
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
(the " Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to 
be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent 
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of 
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India . Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established 
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy 
of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial report ing, 
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting. 



3) Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting: 
A company's internal fi nancial contro l over fi nancial reporting is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial con t rol over financial 
reporting includes those policies and procedures that : 
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail , accurately and 
fairly refl ect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to 
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being 
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the 
company; and 
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or t imely detection of 
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a 
material effect on the financial statements. 

4) Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting: 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of 
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected . 
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control 
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or 
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

5) Opinion: 
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls 
over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2018, based on the 
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note 
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India. 

For Sanket R Shah & Associates 

Proprietor 
M. No.: 152369 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 20th June, 2018 
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CITYWOOD BUILDERS PRIVATE LIMITED 

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31' 1 MARCH 2018 
Particulars 

ASSETS 
Non-Current Assets 
(a) Property, plant and equipment 
(b) Current tax assets (Net) 
(c) Other non-current assets 
Total Non-Current assets 

Current assets 
(a) Inventories 
(b) Financial assets 

(i) Investments 
(ii) Trade receivables 
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 
(v) Other financial assets 

(c) Other current assets 
Total Current Assets 
Total assets 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Equity 
(a) Equity share capital 
(b) Other equity 
Total Equity 

Liabilities 
Non-Current Liabilities 

Financial Liabilities 
(i) Borrowings 
(ii) Other Financial Liabilities 

Total Non-Current Liabilities 

Current Liabilities 
(a) Financial Liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 
(ii) Trade payables 
(iii) Other financial liabilities 

(b) Other current liabilities 
(c) Current tax Liabilities (Net) 
Total Current Liabilities 
Total Liabilities 
Total Equity and Liabilities 

Note 

No. 

4 
5 
6 

7 

8 
9 
10 
11 
12 
6 

13 
14 

15 
16 

17 
18 
16 
19 
20 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of Financial Statements. 

As per our report of even date 

FOR SANKET R. SHAH & ASSOCIATES 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 20th june, 2018 

\)v 

As at 

3151 March, 2018 
~ 

232,837 
2,508,461 

26,990194 
29,731,492 

1,067,135,Q63 

110,279,865 
12,097,401 

640,000 
17,355,479 

103,869,027 
1,311,376,835 
1,341,108,327 

100,000 
(143,805,816) 

(143,705,816) 

312,408,138 
6 599 966 

319,008,104 

6,993,319 
213,778,782 
876,482,615 

68,551,323 

1116518061039 
1148418141143 
11341!1081327 

As at 

3151 March, 2017 
t' 

352,368 
1,763,712 

26,990,194 

860,698,775 

15,196,923 
103,145,472 

24,491,531 
640,000 

100,448,503 
106,795,889 

1,211,417,093 
1,240,523,367 

100,000 
(138,652,597) 

(138,552,597) 

351.399,338 
7 094,757 

358,494,095 

7,197,539 
116,807,593 
849,666,962 

46,315,182 
594,592 

1!020!581,869 
11379!075!964 
1!240,523,367 

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD 

JASMii!:D 
DIRECTOR 

DlN:03147669 

PRAP~E 
DIRECTOR 

DIN: 03140671 



CITYWOOD BUILDERS PRIVATE LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2018 
Particulars 

INCOME 

Revenue from Operations 
Other Income 

EXPENSES 

Total Income 

Costs Of Construction I Development 
Purchase of Stock-in-Trade 
Changes in Inventories 
Employee Benefits Expense 
Finance Costs 
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 
Other Expenses 

Total Expenses 

Profit I (Loss) before exceptional items and Tax (I- II) 
Exceptional Items 
Profit I (Loss) before Tax 

Tax Expense 
Current Tax 
Deferred tax 

Profit I (Loss) After Tax 

Earning per equity share of nominal value of~ 101- each 

Basic and Diluted 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of Financial Statements. 

As per our report of even date 

FOR SANKET R. SHAH & ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 20th June, 2018 

tJv 

Note 

No. 

21 
22 

23 

24 
25 
26 
27 
28 

29 

Year ended 

31st March, 2018 
~ 

105,970,146 
3,931,042 

109,901,188 

275,860,149 
2,047,110 

(204,655,257) 
10,906,539 

7,647,024 
119,531 

23,129,311 
115,054,407 

(5,153,219) 

(5,153,219) 

(5,153,219) 

(515) 

Year ended 

31st March, 2017 
~ 

65,457,189 
586,505 

66,043,694 

136,574,279 
370,321 

(167,291,562) 
300,316 

76,810,870 
109,529 

14,215,083 
61,088,836 

4,954,858 

4,954,858 

(594,592) 

(594,592) 
4,360,266 

436 

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD 

]ASM~D 
DIRECTOR 

DIN: 03147669 

DIN: 03140671 



CITYWOOD BUILDERS PRIVATE LIMITED 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018 

Particulars 

I. CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Net profit/(loss) before taxation as per Statement of Profit and Loss 
Add I (Less) : 

Finance costs 

Depreciation and amortisation 

Other gains and losses 

Operating profit before working capital changes 

Add I (Less) : 

(Increase )/Decrease in inventories 
(lncrease)/Decrease in Trade Receivables and Other Receivables 
(Including Current Investment) 

Increase /(Decrease)in trade and other payables 

lncreasef(Decrease) in Other FinanciaJ Liabilities (Current) 

Direct taxes paid 

Net cash flow from operating activities 

II. CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM INVESTING ACTIVJTIES 

Inflow I (Outflow) on account of : 

Other gains and losses( miscellaneous income) 

(lncrease)/Decrease in Loans and advances 
Net cash flow from investing activities 

Ill. CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITJES 

Inflow I (Outflow) on account of : 

Proceeds from Long Term Borrowing 
Finance costs paid 

Net cash flow from financing activities 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ( I + II + Ill ) 
Add: Bala nce at the beginning of the year 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 

Components of cash and cash equivalents (Refer Note 10) 
Cash on hand 
BaJances with banks 
- in Current accounts 
- in Deposits with maturity ofless than six months 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of Financial Statements. 

As per our report of even date 

FOR SANKET R. SHAH & ASSOCIATES 

PROPRJETOR 
Membership No. 152369 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 20th june, 2018 

Uy 

Year Ended 

31•1 March, 2018 

f 

(5,153,219) 

7,647,024 

119,531 

(3,339,709) 

(726,373) 

(206,436,288) 

91,155,554 

123,292,051 

21,641,548 

(744,749) 

28,908,116 
28,181,743 

3,339,709 

2,926,863 
6,266,572 

(39,195,420) 
(7,647,024) 

(46,842,444) 

(12,394,130) 

24,491,531 
12,097,401 

673,045 

8,914,650 
2,509,706 

12,097,401 

Year Ended 

3 1st March,2017 

f 

4,954,858 

76,810,870 

109,529 

(177,761) 

81,697,494 

(166,373,741) 

46,770,266 

151,928,822 

(59,459,179) 

(372,248) 

(27!506!080) 
54,191,415 

177,761 

(53,399,331) 

(53,221!570) 

20,016,552 
(77,549,344) 

(57,532,792) 

(56,562,946) 

81,054,478 
24,491,531 

603,304 

(1,006,516) 
24,894,743 

24,491,531 

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD 

JASMIN~ 
DIRECTOR 

DIN:03147669 

DIN: 03140671 



CITYWOOD BUILDERS PRIVATE LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018 

Particulars Equity Share 
Capital 

Balance at t•' March, 2017 100,000 

Total Comprehensive Income for the year . 
Balance at 31'1 March, 2018 100,000 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of Finandal Statements. 

As per our report of even date 

FOR SANKET R. SHAH & ASSOCIATES 

Membership No. 152369 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 20th June, 2018 

in~ 

Retained Earnings Total 

(138,652,597) (138,552,597) 

(5,153,219) (5,153,219) 

(143,805,816) (143,705,816) 

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD 

JASM~OD 
DIRECTOR 

~47669 

PRA~IIN81! 
DIRECTOR 

DIN: 03140671 



CITYWOOD BUILDERS PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL SfATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31Sf MARCH, 2018 

1. Company Overview and Significant Accounting Policies 

Company Overview 
Citywood Builders Private Limited is a private limited Company domiciled in india, incorporated under The Companies Act, 1956. The 
Company is engaged in real estate business of construction and development of res idential and commercial projects and other real estate 
project etc. 

The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 20th June 2018. 

2. Standards, not yet effective and have not been a dopted early by the Company 

Information on new s tandards, amendments and interpretations that are expected to be relevant to the financial statements is provided 
below. 

lnd AS 115 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers' (lnd AS 115) 

There is one new standard issued by MCA (not yet effective) for revenue recognition which overhauls the existing revenue recognition 
standards including lnd AS 1B - Revenue and lnd AS 11 - Construction contracts. The new standard provides a control-based revenue 
recognition model and provides a five step application principle to be followed for revenue recognition: 

i) Identification of the contracts with the customer 
ii) Identification of the performance obligations in the contract 
iii) Determination of the transaction price 

iv) Allocation of transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract (as identified in step H) 
v) Recognition of revenue when performance obligation is satisfied. 

The effective date of the new standard has not yet been notified by the MCA. The management is yet to assess the impact of this new standard 
on the Comoanv's financial statements. 

3. Basis of preparation of financial statements 

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (lndAS) under the historical cost convention on the 
accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values, the provisions of the Companies Act , 2013 ('Act') (to 
the extent notified). The lnd AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016. 

The Company has adopted all the lndAS standards and the adoption was carried out in accordance with lndAS 101 First time adoption of 
Indian Accounting Standards. The transition was carried out from indian Accounting Principles generally accepted in India as prescribed 
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (IGAAP), which was the previous GAAP. 
Reconciliations and descriptions of the effect of the transition has been summarized in note 40. 

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an 
existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy thereto in use. 

a) Historical Cost Convention 
The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for the following: 

i. certain financial assets and liabilities that have been measured at fair value 

ii. assets held for sale - meas ured at lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell. 
iii. defined benefit plans- plan assets measured at fa ir value. 

b) Current versus non-current classification 

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non current classification. An asset is classified as 
current when it is: 

• Expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle 
• Held primarily for the purpose of trading 
• Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or 

• Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting 
period 

All other assets are classified as non-current 
A liability is classified as current when: 

• It is expected to be settled in normal operati ng cycle 
• It is held primarily for the purpose of trading 

• It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
• There is no unconditional right to defer the sett.lement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period 

All other liabilities are classified as non-current 
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their rea lisation in cash and cash equivalents. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-cur rent assets and liabilities. 

c) Foreign currency translation 

Functional and presentation currency 
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (' INR') which is also the functional and presentation currency of the Company. 

3.1 REVENUE RECOGNITION 

A. Revenue from Construction Activity 

a. The company has adopted the principles of revenue recognition on the basis of • Guidance note on Accounting for Real Estate 
Transactions· issued by the Insti tute of Chartered Accountants of India, for the entities to whom lndAS is applicable. 



CllYWOOD BUILDERS PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018 

b. Revenue from sale of 'finished properties I buildin~ I rights' Is recognised on transfer of all significant risks and rewards of ownership 
of such properties I building I rights, as per the terms of the contracts entered into with buyerf(s), which generally coincides with the 
firming of the sales contracts/ agreements, except for contracts where the Company still has obhgabons to perform substantial acts even 
after the transfer of all significant risks and rewards. 

c. Revenue from sale of incomplete properties I projects is recognized on the basis of percentage of completion method only If the following 
thresholds have been met; 

1. All critical approvals necessary for the commencement of the project have been obtained; 
2. The expenditure incurred on construction and development costs, excluding land costs, is not less than 25% of the total estimated 

construction and development costs of the project; 

3. Atleast 25% of the saleable project area is secured by agreements with the buyers; and 
4. Atleast 10% of the sale consideration of each sold unit has been received at the reporting date in respect of such contracts with the 

buyers. 

Further, revenue recognized in the aforesaid manner ~nd related costs are both restricted to 90% until the construction activity and 
related formalities are substantially completed. Recognition of revenue relating to agreements entered into with the buyers, which are 
subject to fulfillment of obligations f conditions imposed on the Company by statutory authorities is postponed till such obligations are 
substantially discharged. 
Estimated costs relating to construction f development are charged to the statement of profit and loss in proportion with the revenue 
recognized during the year. The balance costs are carried as part of 'Incomplete Projects' under inventories under current assets. 
Amounts receivable f payable are reflected as Trade Receivables f Unbilled Receivables or Advances from Customers, respectively, after 
considering income recognized in the aforesaid manner. 

d. Losses expected to be incurred on projects under construction, are charged in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which the 
losses are known. 

B. Interest Income 
Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the 
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest Income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding at the 
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the 
financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition. 

C. Others 
Revenues f Income and Costs/ Expenditure are generally accounted on accrual, as they are earned or incurred 

3.2 PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION / AMORTISATION 

A Tangible Fixed Assets are stated at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, 
if any. 

B. Depreciation is provided on the straight line method on the basis of estimated useful life of the asset in the manner specified in Schedule 
II to the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation on additions to assets or on sale/disposal of assets is calculated pro-rata from the month of 
such addition, or up to the month of such sale/disposal as the case may be. 

Asset Category 

Computer 
Office Equipments 
Furniture and Fixture 

3.3 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
3.3.1 Initial recognition 

Estimated useful life (In Years) 

3 
5 
10 

The Company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument All 
financial assets and liabilities are recognized at fair value on initial recognition except for trade receivables which are initially measured at 
transaction price. Transaction costs that are di rectly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities, that are 
not at fair value through profit or loss.are added to the fair value on initial recognition. Regular way purchase and sale of financial assets are 
accounted for at trade date. 

3.3.2 Subsequent meas urement 
a. Non-derivative finan cial instruments 
{I) Financial assets carried at amortised cost 

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it Is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order 
to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

(II) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive Income 
A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held with in a business model whose 
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give 
rise on specified dates to cash flows that a re solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Further, in cases 
where the Company has made an irrevocable election based on Its business model, for its investments which are classified as equity 
instruments, the subsequent changes in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive Income. 
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CJTYWOOD BUILDERS PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018 

(iii) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued through profit or loss. 

(lv) Financialliabilities 
Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method, except for contingent consideration 
recognized in a business combination which is subsequently measured at fair value through profit and loss. For trade and other payables 
maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these 
instruments. 

(v) Fair value of financial instruments 
In determining the fair value of its fina ncial instruments, the Company uses a variety of methods and assumptions that are based on market 
conditions and risks existing at each reporting date. The methods used to determine fair value include discounted cash flow analysis, available 
quoted market prices and dealer quotes. All methods of assessing fair value result in general approximation of value, and such value may 
never actually be realized. 

3.3.3 Derecognitlon offinandal instruments 
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or it transfers the 
finacial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under lndAS 109. A fi nancial liability (or a part of a financial liabili ty) is derecognized 
from the Company's balance sheet when the obligation specifi ed in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires. 

3.3.4 Impairment 
a. Financial assets 

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the fi nancial assets which are not fair valued through 
profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to life time ECL.. 
For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant 
increase in credit r isk from initial recognition in which case thoseare measured at lifetime ECL.. The amount of expected credit losses (or 
reversal) that is required to adjus t the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognised is recognized as an 
impairment gain or loss in the statement of profit or loss . 

b. Non-financial assets 
Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment 
Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability wheneer events or changes in circumstances indicate 
that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing. the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair 
value less· cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are 
largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs. 

3.4 Taxation 
i. Current Tax 

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax' as reported in the 
consolidated fi nancial statement of profit and loss becauseof items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and 
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company's current tax is calculated using rates that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

In case the Company is liable to pay income tax ufs 115]8 of Income Tax Act, 1961 (i.e. MAT), the amount of tax paid in excess of normal 
income tax is recognized as an asset (MAT Credit entitlement) only if there is convincing evidence for realization of such asset during the 
specified period. MAT credit entitlement is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date. 

II. Deferred Tax 
Deferred tax is recognized on temporary diferences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial 
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for 
a ll taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized fo r all deductible temporary differences to the extent that 
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting period a nd reduced to the extent that it is no longer 
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part ofthe asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or 
the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the 
Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. 

iii. Current and deferred tax for the year 
Current and deferred tax are recognized in profi t or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive 
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in 
equity respectively. 

3.5 INVENTORIES 
All inventories are stated at Cost or Net Realizable Value, whichever is lower. 
'Incomplete Projects' include cost of inco~plete properties for which the Company has not entered into sale agreements and in other cases 
where the revenue recognition is postponed. 'Incomplete Projects' also include initial project costs that relate to a (prospective) project, 
incurred for the purpose of securing the project These costs are recognized as expenditure for the year in which they are incurred unless they 
are separately identifiable and it is probable that the respective project will be obtained. 

Cost included in inventory include costs incurred up to the completion of the project viz. cost of land f rights, value of FSI, materia ls, services 
and other expenses (including borrowing costs) attributable to the projects. Cost formula used is average cost 

-



CI1YWOOD BUILDERS PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018 

3.6 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Post-Employment Benefits 

3.6.1 Defined contribution plans: Company's contribution to State governed Provident Fund Scheme is recognised during the year in which the 
related service is rendered; 

3.7 BORROWING COSTS 
Borrowings are initially recognised at the net transaction costs incurred and measured at ammortised cost. Any difftt"ence between the 
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in the statement of profit and loss ovtt" the period of the 
borrowings using the effective interest method. 

Interests and other borrowing costs calculated as per effective interest rate attributable to qualifying assets are allocated as part of the cost of 
construction f development of such assets. Such allocation is suspended during extended periods in which active development is interrupted 
and, no costs are allocated once all such activities are substantially complete. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of 
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. Other 
borrowing costs are charged to the Profit and Loss Account 

3.8 cash Flow Statement 
Cash nows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit fo r the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash 
nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with 
investing or financing cash nows. The cash nows from operating. investing and financing activities of the company are segregated. 

3.9 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS 
I. All transactions in foreign currency are recorded in the reporting currency, based on closing rates of exchange prevalent on the dates of 

the relevant transactions. 
U. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency, outstanding as on the Balance Sheet date , a re converted in reporting currency at the 

closing rates of exchange prevailing on the said date. Resultant gain or loss is recognized during the year in the statement of profit and 
loss. 

Iii. Non monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are carried a t the exchange rate prevalent on the date of the 
transaction. 

3.10 Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities 
Provisions are recognized only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events, and when a reliable estimate of the amount of 
obligation can be made at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best 
estimates. Provisions are discounted to their present values, where the time value of money is material. 

Contingent liability is disclosed for. 

Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Company or 

Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outnow of resources will be required to settle the obligation 
or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made. 

3.11 Use of estimates 
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with lndAS requires management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions. 
These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, 
the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses 
during the period. Application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates involving complex a nd subjective judgments 
and the use of assumptions in these financial statements have been disclosed in note 3.11.1. Accounting estimates could change from period to 
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as managem ent becomes aware of 
changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are renected in the financial statements in the period in which 
changes are made and, if material, their effects a re disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 

3.11.: Critical accounting judgements and estimates 
a. Revenue recognition 

The Company uses the percentage-of-completion method in accounting for its revenue. Costs of the project are based on the 
management's estimate of the cost to be incurred upto the completion of the projects and include cost of land, Floor Space Index (FSI), 
materials, services and other expenses attributable to the projects. Estimates of project income, as well as project costs, are reviewed 
periodically. Costs expended have been used to measure progress towards completion of work. Provisions for estimated losses, if any, on 
uncompleted contracts are recorded in the period in which such losses become probable based on the expected contract estimates at the 
reporting date. 

b. Property, plant and equipment 
The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset's expected useful life and the expected 
residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual values of Company's assets a re determined by m anagement at the time 
the asset is acquired and reviewed peiodically, including at each financial year end. The lives are based on h istorical experience with 
similar assets as well as anticipation of future events, which may impact their life, such as changes in technology. 

c. Fair value measurements and valuation processes 
Some of the company's assets are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes. In estimating the fair value of an asset or 
liability, the Company uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Company 
engages third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The Company works closely with the qualified external valuers to 
establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model. 

-



CITYWOOD BUILDERS PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018 
As at As at 

31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017 
~ ~ 

4. Property, plant and equipment 
Carrying amounts of: 
Computers and Laptops 
Furniture and Fixtures 232,839 232,839 
Office Equipment 

Total 232,839 232,839 

Capital work-in-progress 
232,839 232,839 

Computers and Furniture and Office Equipment Total 
LaEtOES Fixtures 

4. Property, Plant and Equipment 
Cost or deemed cost 

Balance at 151 April, 2016 6,814 1,299,827 1,159,710 2,466,351 
Additions 
Disposals 
Transfers 

Balance at 31" March, 2017 6,814 1,299,827 1,159,710 2,466,351 

Accumulated depreciation and impairment 

Balance at 1st Aprll, 2016 6,814 847,930 1,149,710 2,004,454 
Eliminated on disposal of assets 
Depreciation expense 109,529 109,529 

Balance at 31st March, 2017 6,814 957,459 1,149,710 2,113,983 

Carrying amount as on 31st March 2017 342,368 10,000 352,368 

Computers and Furniture and Office Equipment Total 
LaEtOES Fixtures 

Cost or deemed cost 

Balance at 31st March, 2017 1,299,827 1,159,710 2,459,537 
Additions 
Disposals 
Balance at 31st March, 2018 1,299,827 1,159,710 2,459,537 

Accumulated depreciation and impairment 

Balance at 31st March, 2017 957,459 1,149,710 2,107,169 
Eliminated on disposal of assets 
Depreciation expense 109,529 10,000 119,529 

Balance at 3151 March, 2018 1,066,988 1,159,710 2,226,698 
Carrying amount as at 31st March 2018 232,839 232,836 



CITYWOOD BUILDERS PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018 

5. Current tax assets (Net) 
Advance Tax paid 
Less : Provision for Tax 
Curent Tax Asset I (Liability) 

6. Other assets 
Non-current 
Advances to land owners 

Current 
Project Advances 
Advances to Suppliers, Contractors and Professionals 
Balance with statutory authorities 
Unbilled revenue 
Other Advances 

- Others. 
- Prepaid Expense 

7. Inventories 
Inventories (lower of cost or net realisable value) 
-Stock of material at site 
- Incomplete projects (Refer footnote) 
Reversal of Loan Processing Fees /Last Year 

Total 

Total 

Total 

As at 

31' 1 March, 2018 
~ 

25,08,461 

25,08,461 

2,69,90,194 
2,69,90,194 

1,02,27,855 
31,70,739 
36,66,501 

2,37,11,199 

6,28,91,722 
2,01,010 

10,38,69,027 

43,10,145 
1,06,42,08,902 

(13,83,984) 
1,06, 71,35,063 

As at 

31' 1 March, 2017 
~ 

17,63,712 

17,63,712 

2,69,90,194 
2,69,90,194 

2,11,93,528 
50,26,788 

5,52,43,599 

2,51,00,000 
2,31,974 

10,67,95,889 

25,29,114 
85,81,69,661 

86,06,98,775 

Footnote: During the financial year incomplete projects including of iNR 18,31,43,717/- Work In Progress (WIP) relating 
to six projects i.e. (1. Kamaraj Nagar CHS Ltd., 2. jai Mata Di CHS Ltd., 3. Shiv Kripa I Anand Aman CHS Ltd., 4. Ambedkar 
Nagar CHS Ltd., 5. Nirmal Nagar CHS Ltd., 6. Om Shivaji SRA CHS.) 

8. Investments 
Current Investments 
Investment in Mutual Funds (Quoted) 
(At Fair Value) (Other than Trade) 

a) L & T Short Term Opportunities Fund- Growth 
Current Year: Nil (Previous Year: 649173.824 units) 

(NAVas on 31st March, 2017 ~ 15.65) 

b) Canara Robeco Plus Fund · Regular Daily Dividend Current 
Year: Nil (Previous Year: 490988.9410 units) 

(NAY as on 31st March, 201 7 ~ 10.26) 
Total 

Aggregate amount of quoted investments 

Note: 
Quoted investment in Mutual Funds (Quoted) are fair valued at their closing NAY. 

1,01,59,376 

50,37,547 
1,51,96,923 

1,51,96,923 



CITYWOOD BUILDERS PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018 

9. Trade Receivables 
Current 
Trade Receivables 
Unsecured, considered good 

Others 

10. Cash and cash equivalents 
Balances with banks: 

- in current accounts 
- in escrow accounts 

Cash on hand 

11. Other bank balances 
Deposits with maturity of more than three months but less 

than twelve months(Refer footnote) 

Footnote: 

As at 

31st March, 2018 
~ 

As at 

31st March, 2017 
~ 

110,279,864 103,145,472 
Total 110,279,864 103,145,472 

----~~~~----~~~~ 

8,914,650 (1,006,516) 
2,509,706 24,894,743 

673,045 603,304 
Total 12,097,401 24,491,531 

----~~~~~----~~~~~ 

640,000 640,000 
Total 640,000 640,000 

------~~~~------~~~~ 

Balances with bank in margin money and fixed deposits are kept as security for guarantees I other facilities. 

12. Other financial assets 
Current 

Security deposits 
Advances recoverable from others 

Reimbursement 
- Related parties 

Interest accrued on fixed deposits 
Total 

185,500 185,500 
16,478,030 99,022,825 

499,530 1,097,964 
192,420 142,214 

17,355,479 100,448,503 



CITYWOOD BUILDERS PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31sr MARCH, 2018 

13. Equity Share Capital 
Authorised Share Capital: 
50,000 (As at 31st March, 2017: 50,000;) Equity Shares of 
~ 101- each fuJly paid up 

Issued and subscribed capital comprises: 
10,000 (As at 31st March, 2017: 10,000) Equity Shares of 
~ 101- each fuJly paid up 

Footnotes: 
(i) Reconciliation of the number of Equity shares outstanding at the beginning 
and at the end ofthe year. 

Balance at 1st April , 2016 
Add : Issued during the year 
Less : Bought back during the year 

Balance at 31st March, 2017 
Add : Issued during the year 
Less : Bought back during the year 

Balance at 31st March, 2018 

(ii} Details of shares held by each shareholders holding more than 5% shares 

31st March, 2018 
No of shares %holding 

held 

Fully paid equity sha res 
Hubtown Limited 9,994 99.94% 
Maya Vaidya I Hubtown Limited 1 0.01% 
D.V Prabhu I Hubtown Limited 1 0.01% 
Kamal Matalia I Hubtown Limited 1 0.01% 
Nancy Pereira I Hubtown Limited 1 0.01% 
Anil Ahluwalia I Hubtown Limited 1 0.01% 
Chetan Mody I Hubtown Limited 1 0.01% 
Total 10,000 100% 

(iii) Terms I rights attached to Equity Shares: 

As at 
31ot March, 2018 

~ 

5,000,000 

100,000 

Number of 
shares 

10,000 

10,000 

10,000 

As at 
31st March, 2017 

~ 

5,000,000 

100,000 

Share Capital 
~ 

100,000 

100,000 

100,000 

31st March, 2017 
No of shares held o/o holding 

9,994 99.94% 
1 0.01% 
1 0.01% 
1 0.01 o/o 
1 0.01 o/o 
1 0.01% 
1 0.01% 

10,000 100% 

The company has a single class of equity shares having a face value of~ 101- per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled 
to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining 
assets of the company, after distribution of aJI preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of 
equity shares held by the shareholders. 



CITYWOOD BUILDERS PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018 

14. Other Equity 
Retained Earnings 
Balance at the beginning of the year 
Profit attributable to the owners of the company 
Balance at the end of the year 

15. Non-current borrowings 
Secured 

Debentures 
300 (Previous Year 300) 0% Redeemable 
non-convertible debentures of the face value of~ 10,00,000 each 

Total 

Footnote: 

i. Debentures are to be redeemed on 6th May, 2019. 

Year ended 

3151 March, 2018 
~ 

(138,652,597) 
(5,153,219) 

(143,805,816) 

312,408,138 
312,408,138 

Year ended 

3151 March, 2017 
~ 

(143,012,863) 
4,360,266 

(138,652,597) 

351,399,338 
351,399,338 

ii. The Debentures shall be redeemed at a premimum such that the Debenture Holders earn an IRR of 22% on 
Subscription Amount 

iii. If Issuer commits a default in payment of Redemption Amount or Amounts Due or in redemption of Debenture 
(including Target Return thereupon) for two consecutive months, then the Debenture Holder shall have the right to 
exchange/convert (the "Conversion Option"), as its option, the whole or part of the defaulted amount of the 
outstanding Debentures into 100% of the equity shares of the Issuer. 

iv. The debentures are secured by: 
a) Personal gurantee of the promoters of Hubtown Limited. 
b) Unconditional and irrevocable Corporate Guarantee ofHubtown Limited. 
c) Pledge of unencumbered equity shares valued at INR SO million ofHubtown Limited. 

v. No Interest charged on debenture during the Financial Year. 

16. Other financial liabilities 
Non-current 

Retention money payable 

Current 
-From related parties (Refer Footnote) 
- From others 
Other payables 

Footnote : 

Total 

Total 

6,599,966 
6,599,966 

719,655,057 
69,289,071 
87,538,487 

876,482,615 

7,094,757 
7,094,757 

652,843,615 
69,289,071 

127,534,276 
849,666,962 

The Company has received interest free Advances from it's Parent Company, considering the nature of business in which the 
Company operate, the amounts so received are considered to be repayable on call 1 demand as the repayment period of 
such amounts so received is not measureable precisely. 



CITYWOOD BUILDERS PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018 

17. Current borrowings 
- From Companies (Refer footnote 2) 

Total 

Footnotes: 
Unsecured loans from Companies carry interest rates within range of nil . 

18. Trade payables 
Trade Payables (Refer Footnote) 

- Others 

Footnote: 

Total 

As at 

31st March, 2018 
f 
6,993,319 

6,993,319 

213,778,782 
213,778,782 

As at 
31., Ma rch, 2017 

f 
7,197,539 

7,197,539 

116,807,593 
116,807,593 

As per information available with the Company regarding dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as defined under the Micro Small 
Medium Enterprises Development, Act 2006 (MSMED Act), none of the suppliers of the Company are registered under MSMED Act, and 
the same has been relied upon by the auditors. 

19. Other current liabilities 

.c.u.mn.t 
Advance from customers 
Statutory dues 

20. Current Tax assets liability 
Provision for Tax 

21. Revenue from operations 
Sale from operations : 

Total 

Total 

Revenue from Incomplete Properties on cancellation of flats 
Revenue from sale of Trading Materials 

Other operating revenue: 
Liabilities written back to the extent no longer required. 

22. Other income 
a) Interest Income: 

Bank fixed deposits 
Others 

b) Dividend Income 
Dividend received 
Gain on fair valuation of investments 
Gain on sale of current investments 
Gain on foreign currency fluctuation (Net) 

c) Miscellaneous Income 

Total 

(a+b+c) 

66,826,257 
1,725,066 

68,551,323 

91,412,181 
1,852,726 

93,264,907 

12,705,238 
12,705,238 

105,970,146 

57,489 
474 398 

531,887 

59,446 

163,723 

3,175,986 
3,339,709 
3,931,042 

44,959,719 
1,355,464 

46,315,182 

594,592 
594,592 

64,974,819 
421,400 

65,396,219 

60,970 
60,970 

65,457,189 

364,369 
14,929 

379,298 

29,446 
61,787 

105,689 
10,285 

177,761 
586,505 



CITYWOOD BUILDERS PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018 

Year Ended Year Ended 

3151 March, 2018 31st March, 2017 
~ ~ 

23. Costs of Construction I Development 
Land I rights acquired 205,110,617 400 
Material and labour costs 23,419,383 101,841,011 
Approval and consultation expenses 24,385,331 10,082,473 
Other direct development expenses 22,944,818 24,650,395 

Total 275,860,149 136,574,279 

24. Changes In Inventories Oflncomplete Projects, Finished 
Properties And FSI 

Opening Inventory: 
Incomplete projects 859,553,645 692,262,083 

Closing Inventory: 
Incomplete projects 1,064,208,902 859,553,645 

Total po4,655,257l (167,291,562l 

25. Employee Benefits Expense 
Salaries, bonus, etc. 10,500,486 214,958 
Contribution to provident and other funds 378,565 21,602 
Staff welfare expenses 6,562 57,456 
Other fund expenses 20,926 6,300 

Total 10,906,539 300,316 

26. Finance Costs 
Interest costs:-

Interest on Debentures 75,763,064 
Other interest expense 4,235,549 146,235 
Delayed/penal interest on loans and statutory dues 3,411,475 901,571 

Total 7,647,024 76,810,870 

27. Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 119,531 109,529 

Total depreciation and ammortisation expense 119,531 109,529 

28. Other Expenses 
Insurance 370,634 281,123 

Rent 900,000 4,551,500 
Rates and taxes 1,077,647 
Advertisement expenses 6,828,412 2,558,551 
Brokerage 1,425,068 521,052 
Repairs and society maintenance charges 642,855 85,551 
Legal and professional fees 2,022,386 2,267,621 
Compensation on cancellation of flats/written off 4,794,408 
Other expenses (Refer Footnote) 6,145,548 2,872,038 

Total 23,129,311 14,215,083 

Footnote: 
Auditors, Remuneration: 

Audit fees 60,000 60,000 
GST 9,000 

Total 60,000 69,000 



CITYWOOD BUILDERS PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31sr MARCH, 2018 

29. EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS) 
Bas ic Earning Per Share and Diluted 

(i) Basic a nd Diluted EPS 

The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of 
basic and diluted earnings per share are as follows: 

Profit fo r the year attributable to the owners of the Company 
Earnings used in the calculation of basic earnings per share 

(ii) Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic and diluted 
earnings per share 

30. Financial Risk Management Objectives 

Year Ended 
31st March, 2018 

~ 

(515) 

(5,153,219) 
(5,153,219) 

10,000 

Yea.r Ended 
31st March, 2017 

~ 

436 

4,360,266 
4,360,266 

10,000 

The company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk The company's management oversees the management of these 
risks. The company's board of directors review and agrees policies for managing each of these risks summarized below: 

1) Market Risk 
a) Interest rate risk 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 
interest rates. The company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to company's long term debt 
obligations with floating interest rates. 

b) Foreign currency risk 
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate on account of changes in foreign 
exchange rates. The company does not have any exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates from its operating activities 

There is no purchase of materials of imported materials hence foreign currency risk does not arise. 

c) Commodity price risk 
The Company is not affected by the price volatility of commodities 
The Company has awarded building construction contracts to its contractors on turnkey basis. 

2) Credit Risk 
Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract leading to a 
financial loss. The company is not exposed to credit risk from its operating activities or trade receivables since the sale I lease 
buildings are yet to be constructed and there is no sale or leasing in relation to the same. 

Credit risk from balances with banks and inter corporate loans is managed by the company's treasury department in accordance with 
the company's policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved companies and within credit limits assigned to each 
company. The credit limits of parties to whom loans are granted are reviewed by board of Directors on an annual basis. The limits are 
set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty's potential failure to make 
repayments. 

3) Liquidity risk 
The company is in stage of construction of buildings. All allowable expenses are inventorised by as per the policy of the company. 
Liquidy risk is dependent on the market demand for completed flats. 



CITYWOOD BUILDERS PRIVATE UMJTED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018 

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

a. LIST OF RELATED PARTIES: 

A. Names of related parties and description of relationship 

I. HOLDING COMPANY 
Hubtown Limited 

II. FELLOW SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES 
Heet Builders Private Limited 
HUBTOWN BUS TERMINAL (MEHASANA) PRIVATE LIMITED 

Ill. Entities With Joint Control Of, Or Significant Influe nce Over, the Entity 
Rubix Trading Private Limited [Subsidiary Of Vinca] 

V. JOINT VENTURES OF HOLDING COMPANY 
Shreenath Realtors 

Note:(i) Related party relationships are as identified by the Company and relied upon by the Auditors. 
(ii) Previous year's figures are given in brackets 

b Transactions with Related Parties· 
Sr. Particulars Key Managerial Holding Company 
No. Personnel 

1 Loans and advances received /recovered/adjusted 
Hubtown Limited - 517,300,000 

(-) (36 007 21!} 

2 Loans and Advances given/ repaid/adjusted 
Hubtown Limited - 242,490,152 

_(-) (3B 299 80()) 
3 On behalf payments made/ adjusted (Including 

reimbursement 

Shreenath Realtors - -
(-) (-) 

Hubtown Bus Terminal (Mehasana) Private Limited - -
1:1 __[-) 

4 On behalf payments received/ Adjusted 
Heet Builders Private Limited - -

(-) (-) 
Hubtown Limited - -

(-) ( -) 

5 Project Purchased 
Shreenath Realtors - 116,830,194 

(-) n 

Balance outstanding receivables: 

Joint Ventures of Holding Company 
Shreenath Realtors 
Hubtown Bus Terminal (Mehasana) Private Limited 

Balance outstanding payables: 

Associates of Holding Company 
Rubix Trading Private Limited 

Holding Company 
Hubtown Limited 

Joint Ventures of Holding Company 
Shreenath Realtors 

Fellow Subsidiary Joint Ventures of 
Companies Holding Company 

- 74,033,746 
__[-) (-) 

- -
__[-) (-) 

- 112,500 
(-) (112,500) 

499,530 -
( -) f-) 

- -
(24,788) (-) 

- -
( -) ( -) 

- -
(-) (-) 

As at As at 
31st March 2018 31st March 2017 

- 74,033,746 
499,530 -

69,289,071 69,289,071 

719,655,057 445,340,601 

116,830,194 -

32 The accu mulated losses of the Company have resulted in complete erosion of the net worth of the Company. The Company's management is, however, 
of the view that the said erosion is temporary in nature as the Company has made strategic investments in certain assets 1 projects , the proceeds of 
which would when fructified, would result in turnaround of the Company. The Company to that extent does not consider the erosion of the net worth 
as an impediment to its status as a going concern. 

~&,q &,J_ 

~ M. No ~ t\_ j 
* 152369 (/l ~ (\ ~;;; 
~~ 
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CI1YWOOD BUILDERS PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018 

Pa rtl cui a rs Asat Asat 
31st March 2018 31st M ch 2017 ar 

33. Income Tax Matters fo r, Tax Contim~ent Liability 
Balance 

Financial disputed dues Balance disputed 
Statute and nature of dues Section Year Disputed Dues Amount Paid oavable dues payable 

Income Tax, High Court (Preferred by Department) 143(3) 2009-10 15 313,250 - 15,313,250 -
Income Tax, Commissioner of Income tax (Appeals) 2716 2010-11 100 000 - 100,000 100000 
Income Tax, Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) 143(3) 2012-13 18 216,090 750 860 17,465,230 18,216,090 

Total 33, 629,340 750,860 32,878,480 18,316,090 

Notes: 
There is no contingent liability towards Service Tax, MVAT /Sales Tax as on 31st March, 2018. 

34. In the opinion of the Soard of Directors of the Company, all items of Current Assets, Current Liabilities and Loans and Advances continues to have a realizable value of 
at least the amounts at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet 

35. Trade payable & other current liability are subject to confirmation, reconciliation, and ad justment if any. 

36. capital Management 
The primary objective of company's capital management is to ensure that it maintains strong capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholders 
value. The company's board of directors reviews the capital structure on an annual basis. 

The capital structure of the company consists of net debt (borrowings and offset by cash and bank balances) and total equity of the company. The borrowings consist of 
debentures issued, term loans from financial institutions and loans from companies. 

The gearing ratio at the reporting period was as follows: 

Unsecured Loan 
Interest accured 
Total Debt 
cash and Cash Equivalents 
Net Debt (A) 

Equity Share Capital 
Other Equity 
Total Equity (B) 

Debt Equity Ratio A/B 

37. Fair Value measurement ofFinanciallnstru.ments 

Fjnandai Assets 
Investments 
Trade receivables 
cash and cash equivalents 
Bank balances other than (iii) above 

Loans 
Other financia l assets 
Total of Financial Assets 

Fipandal Liabilities 

Borrowings 
Trade payables 
Other Financial liabilities 
Total of Financial Liabilities 

FVPL 

-

-
-
-
-

The accompanying notes are an integral part of Financial Statements. 

As per our report of even date 

FOR SANKIT R. SHAH & ASSOOATES 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 20th June, 2018 

31st March 2018 
FVOCI Amortised Cost 

-
110279865 

- 12,097 401 
640 000 

-
- 17 355 479 

- 140 372 746 

- 319401,457 
- 213 778 782 

- 856 266 928 

- 1389 447168 

FVPL 

15196 923 

-

-
15196 923 

-
-
-
-

31st March, 2018 
t' 
6,993,319 

6,993,319 
12,097,401 
(5,104,082) 

100,000 
(143,805,816) 

(143,705,816) 

4% 

31st March 2017 
FVOCI 

-

-

-
-
-
-

31st March, 2017 
t' 
7,197,539 

7,197,539 
24,491,531 

(17,293,992) 

100,000 
(138,652,597) 

(138,552,597) 

12% 

Amortised Cost 

-
103145472 

24,491,531 
640,000 

-
100 448,503 

228,725,507 

358,596,877 

116,807,593 
856 761 719 

1 332 166,189 

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD 
l 

~THOD 
DIRECTOR 

DIN: 03140671 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS OF HEADLAND FARMING PRIVATE LIMITED 

Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of HEADLAND FARMING 
PRIVATE LIMITED ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 
2018 the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the 
statement of cash flows and the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended, and 
a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein 
after referred to as "Ind AS financial statement"). 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS 
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 
performance (including other comprehensive income),cash flows and changes in equity of 
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, 
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the 
Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder.This responsibility also includes 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act 
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and 
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and es timates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair 
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on 
our audit. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing 
standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the 
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under 
Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perfo rm the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the Ind AS financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
the disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor's judgment, includ ing the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 



assessments, the auditor cons iders internal financial control relevant to the Company's 
preparation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances . An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
the accounting estimates made by the Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the Ind AS financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our aud it opinion on the Ind AS financial statements. 

Opinion 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in 
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the financial position of the 
Company as at 31st March, 2018, and its financial loss for the year(including other 
comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on 
that date. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

I. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order") issued by the 
Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the 
"Annexure A" statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order; 

II. As required by Section143 (3)of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obta ined all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit; 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by Jaw have been kept by the Company 
so far as it appears from our examination of those books; 

(c) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive 
income ),the statement of cash flows and the statement of changes in equity dealt with by 
this Report are in agreement with the books of account; 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rule issued thereunder; 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 
2018 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 
31st March, 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of 
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report 
in "Annexure B"; and 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with 
Rulell of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of 
our information and according to the explanations given to us : 



i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its 
lnd AS financial statements, if any; 

ii. The Company did not have any long term contract including derivative contracts for which 
there were any material foreseeable losses; and 

iii. There were no amounts which w ere required to be transferred to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Company; 

FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO 
Firm Registrati on No. 105313W 
Chartered Accountants 

LI ___ _....L..__ __ ~_p~ 

LALIT KOTHARI 
Partner 
Membership No.: 30917 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 21st June, 2018 



ANNEXURE"A"REFERRED TO IN OUR REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF HEADLAND FARMING 
PRIVATE LIMITED ON THE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31stMARCH, 
2018; 

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and in terms of the information and 
explanations given to us, we state that: -

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets; 

(b) The Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the Management during the year and 
no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification; 

(c) The Company does not own any immovable property therefore provision of clause 3(1)( c 
) of the sa id order are not applicable; 

(ii) The physical verification of inventory has been conducted at the reasonable intervals by the 
management during the year. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory 
as compared to book records were not material and have been appropriately dealt with in the 
books of accounts; 

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any 
secured or uns ecured loans to companies; firms or other parties covered under section 189 of 
th e Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act'). Therefore, provision of clause 3(iii), 3(iii)(a), 3(iii)(b), 
3(iii)(c) of the said order are not applicable to the company; 

(iv) The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments, or provided any guarantees 
or any security to the parties covered under section 185 and 186. Therefore, the provisions of 
clause 3 (iv) of the said Order are not applicable to the Company; 

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public during the year, Therefore the 
provisions of clause 3 (v) of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to 
the Company; 

(vi) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has 
not crossed the threshold limit as prescribed by the Central Government under sub-section (1) 
of section 148 of the Act for maintenance of cost records and hence the provision for 
maintenance of records are not applicable to the Company; 

(vi i) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the 

(viii) 

Company examined by us, in our opinion, except for dues in respect of Income Tax 
payable, Tax deduced at Source and Interest on tax payable, the Company is generally 
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Sales Tax, Service tax, duty of 
customs, Value added tax, Goods and ~ervice Tax, cess and other material statutory dues, 
as appli cable, with the appropriate authorities. There was an amount of Income Tax 
payable~ 13,51,746 and Interest on tax payable~ 15,42,882 is outstanding as at the 
last day of the financial year for a period exceeding six months from the date they 
became payable. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the 
Company examined by us, there are no disputed dues in respect of Income Tax, Service 
Tax, Custom Duty, Sales tax, Value added tax, Excise Duty or Cess. 



(ix) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer, further public offer 
(including debt instruments) and term loans. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(ix) of the 
Order are not appli cable to the Company. 

(x) Based on th e audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the 
management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or 
employees has been noticed or reported during the year; 

(xi) The Company has not paid or provided managerial remuneration during the year and hence, 
the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable. Accordingly, 
the provisions of Clause 3(xi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

(xii) In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 4 (xii) 
of the Order are not applicable to the Company; 

(xiii) The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the 
provisions of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions 
have been disclosed in th e financial statements as required under lnd AS 24, Related Party 
Disclosures specified under section 133 to the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2015. 

(xiv) The Company has not made any preferential allotment/ private placement of shares or fully or 
partly convertible debentures during the year, the provision of clause 3(xiv) of the Companies 
(Auditors Rep ort) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company; 

(xv) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the 
management, th e Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or 
persons connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company; 

(xvi) The Company is not requ ired to be registered under section 45 lA of the Reserve Bank of India 
Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company. 

L.J. KOTHARI & CO 
Firm Registration No. 105313W 
Chartered Accountants 

LALIT KOTHARI 
Partner 
Membership No. : 30917 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 21st June, 2018 



"ANNEXURE B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE IND 
ASFINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF HEADLAND FARMING PRIVATE LIMITED 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 20 13 (the "Act") 

We have audited the internal fin ancial controls over financial reporting of HEADLAND FARMING 
PRIVATE LIMITED (" the Company") as of 31st March, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind 
AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Co mpany' s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essenti al components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls over Fi nancial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (!CAl). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
orde rly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, 
as required under t he Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsib ility is to express an opmwn on the Company's internal financial controls over 
financial repo rting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audi t of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the 
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the 
Companies Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to 
an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance about w hether adequate internal fin ancial controls over financial 
reporting was established and mainta ined and if such controls operated effectively in all material 
respects. 

Our audit involves pe rform ing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls over financi al reporting included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiven ess of internal control based on 
the assessed risks. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial contro l over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures 
that; 

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the asse ts of the company; 

(2) provide reasonab le assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts 
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of 
management and directors of the company; and 

(3) provide reasonable ass urance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, 
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
internal financial control over financia l reporting may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 
operating effectively as at 31st March, 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company, cons idering the essential components of internal control stated 
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO 
Firm Registration No. 105313W 
Chartered Accountants 

LALIT KOTHARI 
Partner 
Membership No.: 30917 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 21st june, 2018 



:: 

HEADLAND FARMING PRIVATE LIMITED 

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 3151 MARCH, 2018 
Particulars 

II 

ASSETS 
1. Non-Current Assets 

(a) Property, plant and equipment 
(b) Financial assets 

(i) Investments 
(c) Other non-current assets 
Total Non-Current assets 

2. Current assets 
(a) Inventories 
(b) Financial assets 

(i) Cash and cash equivalents 
(ii) Other financial assets 

Total Current Assets 
TOTAL ASSETS 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
1. Equity 

(a) Equity share capital 
(b) Other equity 
Total Equity 

2. Liabilities 
Current Liabilities 
(a) Financial Liabilities 

(i) Trade payables 
(ii) Other financial liabilities 

(b) Other current liabilities 
(c) Current tax Liabilities (Net) 
Total Current Liabilities 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO. 
Firm Registration No. 105313W 
Chartered Accountants 

'----~ ~'p~ 
LALIT KOTHARI 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 30917 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 2151 June, 2018 

Note 

No. 

3 

4 
5 

6 

7 
8 

9 
10 

11 
12 
13 
14 

As at 

31' 1 March, 2018 
~ 

10,000 
610,000 

620,000 

55,989,777 

906,105 
1,487,728 

58,383,610 
59,003,610 

100,000 
(20,361,018) 

(20,261,018) 

77,906,382 
6,500 

1,351,746 
79,264,628 
59,003,610 

As at 

31st March, 2017 
~ 

10,000 
105,004,105 

105,014,105 

37,124,757 

124,381 
1,489,308 

38,738,446 
143,752,551 

100,000 
(3,249,054) 

(3,149,054) 

3,778,750 
139,096,141 

2,674,968 
1,351,746 

146,901,605 
143,752,551 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

~RATHOD 
Director 

DIN: 03147669 

Date: 21st June, 2018 



HEADLAND FARMING PRIVATE LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2018 
Particulars 

Income 
Revenue from Operations 
Other Income 
Share of Loss/ Profit from Partnership Firms 
Total Income 

II Expenses 
Costs Of Development 
Changes in Inventories of Land and ancilliary costs 
Finance Costs 
Other Expenses 
Total Expenses 

III Profit I (Loss) for the year 

IV Other Comprehensive Income 

v Total comprehensive income for the year 

VI Earning per equity share of nominal value of~ 10/- each (in 
Rupees) 

Basic and Diluted 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 

As per our report of even date 
FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO. 
Firm Registration No. 105313W 
Chartered Accountants 

~~ 
LALIT KOTHARI 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 30917 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 21st June, 2018 

Note 

No. 

15 
16 

17 
18 
19 
20 

21 

Year ended Year ended 

31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017 
~ ~ 

7,422,750 13,275,622 
60,700,000 

(1,580) 
68,121,170 13,275,622 

30,500,000 
(20,459,414) 29,466,679 

165,194 1,215 
75,027,354 1,581,859 

85,233,134 31,049,753 
(17,111,964) (17,774,131} 

(17,111,964) (17,774,131} 

(1,711.20) (1,777.41) 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

JA~RATHOD 
Director 

DIN·03147669 

Date: 21st June, 2018 



HEADLAND FARMING PRIVATE LIMITED 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3151 MARCH, 2018 

Particulars 

I. CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Net profit/ (loss) before taxation as per Statement of Profit and Loss 
Add/(Less): 
Finance costs 
Share of loss of firm 

Operating profit before working capital changes 

Add I (Less): 
(Increase)/ Decrease in inventories 
(Increase) j Decrease in trade and other receivebles 
Increase I (Decrease) in trade and other payables 

Net cash flow from operating activities 

II. CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Net cash flow from investing activities 

III. CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Finance costs paid 
Net cash flow from financing activities 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (I + II + III ) 

Add: Balance at the beginning of the period 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 

Components of cash and cash equivalents (Refer Note 7) 
Cash on hand 
Balances with Banks 
-in Current accounts 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 

31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017 

~ ~ 

(17,111,964) (17,774,131) 

165,194 1,215 

165,194 1,215 
(16,946,770) (17,772,916) 

(18,865,020) 29,466,679 
104,395,685 (1,489,308) 
(67,636,976) (10,217,632) 
17,893,689 17,759,739 

946,919 (13,177) 

(165,194) (1,215) 
(165,194) (1,215) 

781,724 (14,392) 

124,381 138,773 

906,105 124,381 

35,943 27,368 

870,162 97,013 
906,105 124,381 

The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS- 7) statement of cash flows. 

As per our report of even date 
FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO. 
Firm Registration No. 105313W 
Chartered Accounta~ts cA-... 
~L---"\ · 

LALIT KOTHARI 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 30917 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 21st June, 2018 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

JAS~THOD 

Date: 21st June, 2018 



HEADLAND FARMING PRIVATE LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2018 (in~) 

Notes Amount 

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 

As at 1st April, 2016 100,000 

Changes in equity share capital -
As at 31st March, 2017 100,000 

Changes in equity share capital -
As at 31st March, 2018 100,000 

B. OTHER EQUITY AND CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS 

Reserves and Surplus Total 
Retained Earnings 

Balance at 1st April, 2016 14,525,077 14,525,077 
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (17,774,131) (17,774,131) 
Balance at 31st March, 2017 (3,249,054) (3,249,054) 
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (17,111,964) (17,111,964) 
Balance at 31st March, 2018 (20,361,018) (20,361,018) 
The accompanymg notes are an mtegral part of the financial statements 

As per our report of even date 
FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Firm Registration No. 105313W 
Chartered Accountants 
L-L ___ _..L. .. ....,6"L--

LALIT KOTHARI 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 30917 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 21st June, 2018 

JAS~THOD 
Director 

03147669 

Date: 21st June, 2018 



HEADLAND FARMING PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315
' MARCH, 2018 

Note 1. Statement of Significant Accounting Policies. 

1.1 Company Overview 
Headland Farming Private Limited is a private limited Company domiciled in India, incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956. The main object of the company is 
to acquire by purchase, lease or otherwise, agricultural land for farming, to establish and run farms and to Construct, erect, acquire, equip, lease, furnish, convert, 
adapt, improve, develop, operate & manage all sorts of Agricultural Parks, Industrial Parks, Special Economic Zone & related infrastructure facilities, commercial & 
social infrastructure facilities & amenities. 

1.2 The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 21" june 2018. 

Note 2. Significant Accounting Policies followed by the Company 

I. Basis of preparation of financial Statements 

(i) Compliance with lnd AS 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the 'Ind AS') as notified by Ministry 
of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('Act') read with of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended 
and other relevant provisions of the Act 

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements. 

(ii) Historical cost convention 
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following: 
1) certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value; 
2) assets held for sale- measured at lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell; 
3) defined benefit plans- plan assets measured at fair value; 

(iii) Current non-current classification 
All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current, wherever applicable, as per the operating cycle of the Company as per the guidance set 
out in Schedule III to the Act Operating cycle for the business activities of the Company covers the duration of the project/ contract including the defect liability 
period, wherever applicable, and extends upto the realisation of receivables (including retention monies, if any) within the credit period normally applicable to the 
respective project 

II. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS requires management to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures, and 
the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to 
the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. 

a) Judgements 
Classification of property 
The company determines whether a property is classified as investment property or inventory property. Investment property comprises land and buildings 
that are not occupied substantially for use by, or in the operations of, the company, nor for sale in the ordinary course of business, but are held primarily to 
earn rental income and capital appreciation. These buildings are substantially rented to tenants and not intended to be sold in the ordinary course of 
business. Inventory comprises property that is held for sale in the ordinary course of business. Principally, these are properties that the company develops 
and intends to sell before or on completion of construction. 
b) Estimates and assumptions 
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a 
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its 
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future 
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are 
reflected in the assumptions when they occur. 

Ill. Revenue recognition 
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will accrue to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured and 
also when it is reasonably certain that the ultimate collection will be made and that there is buyers' commitment to make the complete payment. 

A. Revenue from Sale of Land 
i. Revenue from sale of land is recognised on transfer of all significant risks and rewards of ownership of such land, as per the terms of the contracts 

entered into with buyer/(s), which generally coincides with the firming of the sale contracts/ agreements, except for contracts where the Company still 
has obligations to perform substant_i al acts even after the transfer of all significant risks and rewards. 

B. Interest and dividend: 
Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income 
can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding at the effective interest rate applicable, 
which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying 
amount on initial recognition. 

C. Others: 
Other revenues j incomes and costs j expenditure are accounted on accrual, as they are earned or incurred. 

D. 



HEADLAND FARMING PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2018 

IV. Property plant and equipment and depreciation f ammortisation 

A. On transition to Ind AS, the Company has opted to continue with the carrying values measured under the previous GAAP as at 1st April, 2015 of its 
Property, Plant and Equipment and use that carrying value as the deemed cost on the date of transition i.e. 1st April, 2015. 

B. Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition or construction including attributable interest and finance cost, if any till the date of 
acquisition/installation of the assets, less accumulated depreciation/amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 

C. Subsequent expenditure relating to Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalised only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with 
the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to the 
Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred. The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements, either on 
disposal or when retired from active use and the resultant gain or loss are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

D. Depreciation is provided based on useful life of the assets as prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation on additions to assets 
or on sale/disposal of assets is calculated pro-rata from the month of such addition, or upto the month of such sale/disposal, as the case may be. 

Asset Category 
Computers & Laptops 
Office Equipments 

Estimated useful life (in Years) 
3 
5 

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property plant equipment are reviewed at each financial year and adjusted 
prospectively, if appropriate. 

V. Financiallnstruments 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. 

A. Investment and Financial Assets 
i. Initial recognition 

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business model with an objective to hold these 
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using 
the effective interest rate ("EIR") method. Impairment gains or losses arising on these assets are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

ii. Subsequent measurement 
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories: 

a) Financial Assets at Amortised Cost 
A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect 
contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal 
and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

b) Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value 
Financial assets are measured at fair value through OCl if these financial assets are held within a business model with an objective to hold these assets 
in order to collect contractual cash flows or to sell these financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to 
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Movements in the carrying amount are taken 
through OCJ, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss. Further, in cases where the Company has made an irrevocable election based on its business model, for its 
investments which are classified as equity instruments, the subsequent changes in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income. 

Financial asset not measured at amortised cost or at fair value through OCI is carried at FVTPL. 

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has opted to continue with the carrying values measured under the previous GAAP as at 1st April, 2015 of its 
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures and used that carrying value as the deemed cost of these investments on the date of 
transition i.e. 1st April, 2015. 

iii. De-recognition of Financial Assets: 
The Company de-recognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the financial asset 
and substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. lf the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the 
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognizes its retained interest in the assets and an 
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. 

lf the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the 
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received. 

B. Equity Instruments and Financial Liabilities 
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered 
into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument 

i. Equity Instruments 
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity 
instruments which are issued for cash are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Equity instruments which are issued for 
consideration other than cash are recorded at fair value of the equity instrument 

ii. Financial Liabilities 



HEADLAND FARMING PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3151 MARCH, 2018 
2. Subsequent Measurement 
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below: 
- Financial liabilities at FVTPL 

Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at FVTPL. 
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses on liabilities 
held for trading are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs 
because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument Financial guarantee contracts are 
recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, 
the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of lnd AS 109 and the amount 
recognised less cumulative amortisation. Amortisation is recognised as finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

- Financial liabilities at amortised cost 
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Any difference 
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of the borrowings in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an 
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

3. De-recognition of Financial Liabilities 
Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. When an existing financial 
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, 
such an exchange or modification is treated as de-recognition of the original liability and recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective 
carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

C. Offsetting Financial Instruments 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to 
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

VI Derecognition of financial instruments 

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expires or it transfers the finacial asset 
and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under lridAS 109. A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized from the Company's 
Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires. 

VII. Impairment 

a. Financial assets 

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not fair valued through profit or loss. 
Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to life time ECL. For all other financial assets, 
expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial 
recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL.The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance 
at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognised is recognized as an impairment gain or loss in the statement of profit or loss. 

b. Non-financial assets 

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual 
impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's 
or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the 
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or 
CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount 

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are 
taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation 
multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators. 

Impairment losses, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 
i. Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment 

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability wheneer events or changes in circumstances indicate that their 
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and 
the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other 
assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs. 

ii. Provisions 
A p rovision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that is reasonably estimable, and it is 
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash 
flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. 



HEADLAND FARMING PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2018 

VIII. Taxation 

i. Current Tax 

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax' as reported in the financial statement of profit 
and loss becauseof items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company's 
current tax is calculated using rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

In case the Company is liable to pay income tax ufs llSJB of Income Tax Act, 1961 (i.e. MAT), the amount of tax paid in excess of normal income tax is 
recognized as an asset (MAT Credit entitlement) only if there is convincing evidence for realization of such asset during the specified period. MAT credit 
entitlement is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date. 

ii. Deferred Tax 
Deferred tax is recognized on temporary diferences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding 
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets 
are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those 
deductible temporary differences can be utilized. 
The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that 
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realized, 
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at 
the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. 

iii. Current and deferred tax for the year 
Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in 
equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. 

IX. Inventories 
All inventories are stated at lower of 'Cost or Net Realizable Value'. 

A. 'Incomplete Projects' include cost of land for which the Company has not entered into sale agreements and in other cases where the revenue 
recognition is postponed. 'Incomplete Projects' also include initial project costs that relate to a (prospective) project, incurred for the purpose of 
securing the project These costs are recognized as expenditure for the year in which they are incurred unless they are separately identifiable and it is 
probable that the respective project will be obtained. 

B. Cost included in inventory include costs incurred upto the completion of the project viz. cost of land, services and other expenses (including borrowing 
costs) attributable to the projects. Cost formula used is average cost 

X. Borrowings and Borrowing costs 
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are 
recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss when the liabilities are de-recognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is 
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is 
included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Interests and other borrowing costs included under finance costs calculated as per effective interest rate attributable to qualifying assets, which takes 
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are allocated as part of the cost of construction I development of such assets. Such allocation is 
suspended during extended periods in which active development is interrupted and, no costs are allocated once all such activities are substantially 
complete. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from 
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. Other borrowing costs are charged to the Profit and Loss Account 

XI. Cash Flow Statement 
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any 
deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. 
The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the company are segregated. 

XII. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or 
less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank 
overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash management 

XIII. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets 
A provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as result of past event and it is probable that an outflow of 
embodying economic benefits of resources will be required to settle a reliably assessable obligation. Provisions are determined based on best estimate 
required to settle each obligation at each balance sheet date. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current 
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of 
time is recognised as a finance cost 

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events, whose existence would be confirmed by the occurrence or 
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. A contingent liability also arises, in rare cases, where a 
liability cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. 

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements. 



HEADLAND FARMING PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2018 

XIV. Recent accounting pronouncements 
Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration: On March 28, 2018, Ministry of Corporate Affairs (""MCA"") has notified 
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 containing Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreigncurrency transactions and advance 
consideration which clarifies the date of the transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, 
expense or income, when an entity has received or paid advance consideration in a foreign currency. 

The amendment will come into force from 1 April 2018. The Company exposure towards foreign currency transation is minimal, hence the impact on the 
financial statements and effect on adoption of Ind AS 21 is expected to be insignificant. 

JudAS 115 
In March 2018, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amended Rules, 2018 ("amended rules"). As per 
the amended rules, Ind AS 115 "Revenue from contracts with customers" supersedes Ind AS 11, "Construction contracts" and Ind AS 18, "Revenue" and is 
applicable for all accounting periods commencing on or after 1 April 2018. 

Ind AS 115 introduces a new framework of five step model for the analysis of revenue transactions. The model specifies that revenue should be recognised 
when (or as) an entity transfer control of goods or services to a customer at the amount to which the entity expects to be entitled. Further the new standard 
requires enhanced disclosures about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from the entity's contracts with 
customers. The new revenue standard is applicable to the Company from 1 April 2018. 

The standard permits two possible methods of transition: 
Retrospective approach- Under this approach the standard will be applied retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented in accordance with 

Ind AS 8- Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors 
Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognized at the date of initial application [Cumulative catch- up approach) 

The Company is evaluating the requirement of the amendment and the impact on the financial statements. The effect on adoption of IND AS 115 is expected 

to be insignificent 



HEADLAND FARMING PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3151 MARCH, 2018 
Note 3. Property, plant and equipment 

(in~) 

Computers and 
Office Equipment Total 

La to s 
Cost or deemed cost 

Balance at 1st April, 2016 33,176 6,200 39,376 
Additions 
Disposals 
Balance at 31st March, 2017 33,176 6,200 39,376 

Accumulated depreciation 

Balance at 1st April, 2016 33,176 6,200 39,376 
Eliminated on disposal of assets 
Depreciation expense 
Balance at 31st March, 2017 33,176 6,200 39,376 

Carrying amount as on 31st March, 2017 

Computers and 
Office Equipment Total 

La to s 
Cost or deemed cost 

Balance at 31st March, 2017 33,176 6,200 39,376 
Additions 
Disposals 
Balance at 31st March, 2018 33,176 6,200 39,376 

Accumulated depreciation 

Balance at 31st March, 2017 33,176 6,200 39,376 
Eliminated on disposal of assets 
Depreciation expense 
Balance at 31st March, 2018 33,176 6,200 39,376 

Carrying amount as on 31st March, 2018 



HEADLAND FARMING PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2018 

Note 4. Investments 

Non Current 

Capital Investment in Partnership Firms( Refer Footnote) 

M/s Rising Glory Developers 
Total 

Footnote: 
Details of Investments made in capital of partnership firm: 

Name of Partners 

Hubtown Limited 
Ackruti Safe_guard Svstem Private Limited 
Citygold Education Research Limited 
Citygold Farming Private Limited 
Diviniti Projects Private Limited 
Halitious Developers Limited 
Headland Farming Private Limited 
Heddle Knowledge Private Limited 
Heet Builders Private Limited 
Subhsiddhi Developers Pvt Ltd. 
Sunstream City Private Limited 
Upvan lake Resort Private Limited 
Vega Developers Private Limited 
White bud Developers Limited 
Yantti Buildcon Private Limited 
Total 
Total Capital of the firm in~ 

Note 5. Other assets 

Non-current 
Advances to land owners (Refer Footnote) 

Total 

Footnote: 

As at 

31st March, 2018 
~ 

10 000 
10,000 

31st March, 2018 

Profit Sharing Ratio 

20.00% 
5.34% 
5.34% 
5.34% 
5.34% 
5.34% 
5.33% 
5.33% 
5.33% 
5.33% 

10.66% 
5.33% 
5.33% 
5.33% 
5.33% 
100% 

150,000 

610,000 
610,000 

As at 

31st March, 2017 
~ 

10,000 
10,000 

31st March 2017 

Profit Sharing Ratio 

20.00% 
5.34% 
5.34% 
5.34% 
5.34% 
5.34% 
5.33% 
5.33% 
5.33% 
5.33% 

10.66% 
5.33% 
5.33% 
5.33% 
5.33% 
100% 

150,000 

105,004,105 
105,004,105 

No agreement has been entered into for the above advances paid to landowners (farmers) in earlier year's. Advances amounting to <10,43,94,105/­
has been debited to land cost during the year. Out of the same, an amount of ~ 2,58,62,166/- is carried as Inventory. 

Note 6. Inventories 

Land and ancilliary costs (Refer Footnote to Note 5) 
Total 

Note 7. Cash and cash equivalents 

Balances with banks: 
- in current accounts 
Cash on hand 

Total 

Note 8. Other financial assets 
CJ.u:rent 
Current account balances in partnership firm (Refer note 23) 

Total 

55,989,777 
55,989,777 

870,162 
35,943 

906,105 

1,487,728 
1,487,728 

\ 

37,124,757 
37,124,757 

97,013 
27,368 

124,381 

1,489,308 
1,489,308 



HEADLAND FARMING PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, Z018 

Note 9. Equity share capital 

Authorised Share Capital: 
10,000 (P.Y.: 10,000) Equity Shares of~ 10/- each) 

999,000 (P.Y.: 999,000) 8% non cumulative convertible preference shares of 
noo;- each) 

Issued and subscribed capital comprises: 
10,000 (P.Y. : 10,000) Equity Shares of~ 10/- each) 

Footnotes: 
(i) Reconciliation of the number of Equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year. 

Balance at 1st April, Z016 
Add : Issued during the year 
Less : Bought back during the year 

Balance at 31st March, Z017 
Add : Issued during the year 
Less : Bought back during the year 

Balance at 31st March, Z018 

(ii) Details of shares held by each shareholders holding more than 5% shares 

31st March, Z018 

As at 
31st March, Z018 

~ 

100,000 

99,900,000 

100,000 
100,000 

Number of shares 

10,000 

10,000 

10,000 

As at 
31st March, Z017 

~ 

100,000 

99,900,000 

100,000 
100,000 

Share Capital 
(in~) 

100,000 

100,000 

100,000 

31st March, Z017 
No of shares held %holding of this class of No of shares held 

shares 
%holding of this 
class of shares 

Fully paid equity shares 
Hubtown Limited with Beneficiary Owners 
Total 

10,000 
10,000 

100% 10,000 100% 
100% 10,000 100% 

(iii) Equity shares held by its holding company or its ultimate holding company subsidiaries or associates of the holding company or the ultimate holding 
comuanv: 

Holding Company 
Hubtown Limited with Benificiary Owners 
Total 

(iv) Terms I rights attached to Equity Shares : 

31st March, Z018 31st March, Z017 

10,000 10,000 
10,000 10,000 

The company has a single class of equity shares having a par value of < 10/- per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share. The company declares 
and pays dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting. 

In the event of liquidation of company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. 
The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. 



HEADLAND FARMING PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3151 MARCH, 2018 

Note 10. Other Equity 

Retained Earnings 
Balance at the beginning of the year 
Profit attributable to the owners of the company 

Total 

Note 11. Trade payables 

Due to micro and small enterprises (Refer Footnote) 
Due to others 

Total 

Footnote: 

As at 
31st March, 2018 

~ 

(3,249,054) 
(17,111,964) 

(20,361,018) 

As at 
31st March, 2017 

~ 

14,525,077 
(17,774,131) 
(3,249,054) 

3,778,750 
3,778,750 

As per information available with the Company regarding dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as defined under the Micro Small 
Medium Enterprises Development, Act 2006 (MSMED Act), none of the suppliers of the Company are registered under MSMED Act, and the 
same has been relied upon bv the auditors. 

Note 12. Other financial liabilities 

Current 
Advance received from Body Corporate (Refer footnote (b) ) 
Business Advance from related party (Refer Footnote (a) and Note 23) 
Payable to related parties (Refer note 23) 

Other payables 
Statutory dues 
Others 

Total 

Footnote: 

76,269,000 
2,500 

1,542,882 
92,000 

77,906,382 

60,000,000 
77,619,000 

1,380,673 
96,468 

139,096,141 

(a) The Company has received interest free advances from it's Parent Company, considering the nature of business in which the Company 
operate, the amounts so received are considered to be repayable on call I demand as the repayment period of such amounts so received is not 
measureable precisely. 

(b) Advances received from body corporate in earlier years has been appropriated as no longer payable. 

Note 13. Other liabilities 

Current 
Advance from customers 
Overdrawn bank balances as per books of accounts 
Other payables : 
- Statutory dues 

Total 

Note 14. Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 
Provision for Tax 
Less: Advance Tax Paid 

Total 

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's tax rate 

6,500 
6,500 

4,372,410 
(3,020,664) 
1,351,746 

Since the taxable income is negative, there is no current tax payable; hence reconciliation has not been provided. 

2,653,000 
6,968 

15,000 
2,674,968 

4,372,410 
(3,020,664) 
1,351,746 



HEADLAND FARMING PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH 2018 

Note 15. Revenue from operations 

Sale of plot 
Other operating Revenue: 

Liabilities written back to the extent no longer required 
Sundry credit balances appropriated 

Total 

Note 16. Other Income 

Advances received from Body corporate appropriated (Refer Footnote (b) to Note 12) 
Miscellaneous Income 

Total 

Note 17. Costs Of Development 

La nd cost 
Total 

Note 18. Changes In Inventories Of Land And Ancilliary Costs 

Openi ng Inventory 
Less: 
Purchase Return · Land 
Expenses incurred on above land writton off 

Less: Closing Inventory 
Total 

Note 19. Finance Costs 

Delayedjpenal interest on loans and statutory dues 
Total 

Note 20. Other Expenses 

Brokerage and incentive 
Professional Fees 
Advances and other bebit balance written off (Refer Footnote to Note 5) 
Expense incurred/allocation on purchase return written off 
Land non-utilization charges 
Other expenses (Refer footnote) 

Total 

Footnote: 
Audjtors Remun eration (includ ed jn th e other expenses) 
Audit Fees 

Total 

Note 21. Ea rnings Per Share (EPS) 

Basic And Diluted Earni ng Per Share 

Basic and Diluted EPS 

Year ended 
31" March, 2018 

~ 

2,744,625 

4 678,125 
7,422,750 

60,000,000 
700 000 

60,700,000 

30,500,000 
30 500 000 

37,124,757 

801,250 
793,144 

35,530,363 

55 989 777 
(20,459,414) 

165,194 
165,194 

69,948 
73,694,730 

793,144 
427,680 

41,852 
75,027,354 

35,000 
35 000 

(1,711.20) 

Year ended 
31" March, 2017 

~ 

13,248,250 

27,372 

13,275,622 

66,591,436 

66,591,436 

37124 757 
29,466,679 

1,215 
1,215 

105,000 
57,450 

1,359,360 
60,049 

1,581,859 

35,000 
35000 

(1,777.41) 

The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share are as follows: 

Profit/(Loss) for the year attributable to the owners of the Company (17,111,964) (17,774,131) 

Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic and diluted earnings per share 10,000 10,000 

Note 22 Fair value measurement 

Fair Value measurement 31" March 2018 31' 1 March 2017 
FVPL/ FVPL/ 

Particulars FVOCI Amortised Cost FVOCI Amortised Cost 
Einancial Assets 
Investments 10,000 10,000 
Other fin ancial assets 1 487,728 1,489,308 
Cash and cash equivale nt 906,105 124,381 
Total of Financial Assets 2403 833 1623 689 

Einancial UabUities 
Trade payables 3 778,750 
Other Financial liabilities 77 906 382 139,096,141 
Total of Financial Liabilities 77 906 382 142 874 891 

~ 
-

~ 1:' <:, ~ Ci ~ ~ 
~ f!! ~ :51 -o I 
~ ~ ~~~~· ~ ~R~o cc • ·a~ -----



HEADLAND FARMING PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3151 MARCH, 2018 

Note 23. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (As per IND AS- 24) 

A. 
I 

Name of the related parties and related parties relationship 
Holding Company 

II Other Fellow Subsidiaries 

Ill Firm in which Company is a partner 

Footnote: 
Related party relationship are identified by the Company and relied upon by the Auditors 

B. Transactions with related parties and balance as at year end-

Sr. Nature of Transaction 

No. 

Business advances taken/ recovered / adjusted 
Hubtown Limited 

ii Business Advance givenjrepaidfadjusted 
Hubtown Limited 

iii On behalf payments made 

Heddle Knowledge Pvt Limited 

iv On behalf payments adjusted 
Heddle Knowledge Pvt Limited 

v Share of loss from partnership firm 
M/s Rising Glory Developers 

Note: Previous year figures are given in the brackets 

Sr. Balance outstanding 

No. 

Balance Payables 
Hubtown Limited (Holding Company) 
Heddle Knowledge Pvt Limited (Others Fellow Subsidiaries) 

ii Balance Receivables 
M/s Rising Glory Developers (joint Venturer) 

Hubtown Limited 

Heddle Knowledge Pvt Ltd., 

M/s Rising Glory Developers 

Holding 
Company 

100,000 
(1,500,000) 

1,450,000 

(14,350,000) 

(-) 

(-) 

(-) 

Others Significant 
Influence 

(-) 

(-) 

(-) 

2,500 

(-) 

(-) 

As at 
31st March, 2018 

76,269,000 
2,500 

1,487,728 

in~ 

Firm in which Company is a 
partner 

(-) 

(-) 

(-) 

(-) 

1,580 
(-) 

in~ 

As at 
31st March, 2017 

77,619,000 

1,489,308 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3151 MARCH, 2018 

Note 24. Financial Risk Management Objectives 

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's focus is to foresee the 
unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance. 
1) Market Risk 
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument which fluctuate because of changes in market prices. 

Interest rate risk 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest 
rates. The company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to company's debt obligations with floating interest 
rates. 
· The Company has received interest free advances from its holding company and hence it is not exposed to interest rate risk. 
2) Credit Risk 
Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract leading to a financial loss. 
The company is not exposed to credit risk from its operating activities or trade receivables since the agreement of sale of land is executed only on 
receipt of full consideration. 
Credit risk from balances with banks and inter corporate loans is managed by the company's treasury department in accordance with the 
company's policy. 

3) Liquidity risk 
The operating cash flow requirements are met by interest free funding from shareholders. 

Note 25. Capital Management 
The primary objective of company's capital management is to ensure that it maintains strong capital ratios in order to support its business and 
maximise shareholders value. The company's board of directors reviews the capital structure on an annual basis. 

Gearing Ratio 
In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants 
attached to the borrowings that define the capital structure requirements. 
The gearing ratio at the reporting period was as follows: 

Unsecured Borrowings 
Interest accrued 
Total Debt 
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 
Net Debt (A) 

Equity Share Capital 
Other Equity 
Total Equity (B) 

Debt Equity Ratio A/B * 

* Since there are no borrowings gearing ratio has not been computed. 

Note 26. 

As at 
31st March, 2018 

906,105 
(906,105) 

100,000 
(20,361,018) 

(20,261,018) 

As at 
31st March, 2017 

124,381 
(124,381) 

100,000 
(3,249,054) 

(3,149,054) 

a. The company has obtained permission for purchase of Agricultural lands admeasuring 442.15 hectors in the District Raigad as per villages 
referred in the order dated 12th March 2008 and the details of land shown in the annexure to said order from Directorate of Industries, 
Maharashtra State, for setting up Industrial Estate, Flatted Building, readymade build space, plots custom Built Campuses for IT & ITES services 
sector. 

b. Further same is subject to permission from town planning department and Agricultural Land Ceiling Act and the provisions of section 36 and 
36 A of Maharashtra Land Revenue Code 1966 and of the Maharashtra Restoration of Lands to scheduled Tribe Act 197 4 and permission and 
approval from other Government bodies. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3151 MARCH, 2018 

Note 27. 

The accumulated losses of the Company have resulted in complete erosion of the net worth of the Company. The Company's management is, 
however, of the view that the said erosion is temporary in nature as the Company has made strategic investments in certain assets 1 projects, the 
proceeds of which would when fructified, would result in turnaround of the Company. The Company to that extent does not consider the erosion of 
the net worth as an impediment to its status as a going concern. 

Note 28. Contingent Liability 
The company does not have any contingent liabilities as on the balance sheet date as certified by the management and relied upon by the auditors. 

Note 29. 

In the opinion of the board of Directors of the Company, all the items of current assets, current liabilities & loans and advances continue to have a 
realisable value of at! east the amount at which they are stated in the balance sheet 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO. 
Firm Registration No. 105313W 
Chartered Accountants 

LALIT KOTHARI 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 30917 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 21st june, 2018 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

JASM'}t';HOD 
Director 

3147669 

INDE 

Date: 21st june, 2018 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS OF HEDDLE KNOWLEDGE PRIVATE LIMITED 

Report on the lnd AS Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial s tatements of HEDDLE KNOWLEDGE 
PRIVATE LIMITED ("the Company"), w hich comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 
2018 the statem ent of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the 
statement of cash flows and th e s tatement of changes in equity for the year then ended, and 
a summary of the s ignificant accoun ting policies and other explanatory information (herein 
after referred to as "lnd /\S financia l statement"). 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsib le for the matters s tated in Section 134(5) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial 
s tatements that give a true and fair view of the financia l pos ition, financial performance 
(including uthcr cun1preltensive income),cash flows and cha nges in equity of the Company in 
accon.iancc.: with the accounting princip les generally accepted in India, including the Indian 
Accounting Standards (lnd AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant 
rules issued there under. This responsibi li ty a lso includes maintenance of adequate 
accounting reco rds in accordance with the provis ions of the Act for safeguarding of the 
assets of the (ompany and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of app ropri ate accoun ting policies; making judgments and 
estimates th ~tt arc n.:aso nahle and prudent; a nd design, implementation a nd maintenance of 
adcquaw intemal fi nancial controls, that were ope rating effectively for ensuring the 
accu racy and completeness of the accounti ng records, re levant to the preparation and 
presentation of the lnd AS financia l statements that give a true and fair view and are free 
from material misstatement, w hether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our 1·esponsibility i:-. to l!Xpress <1 11 opinion on these lnd AS financia l statements based on our 
audit. We ha ve taken imo accou nt the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing 
standards .:md matters which arc required to be included in the audit report under the 
provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under. 

We conducted our audit in accordance w ith the Standards on Auditing specified under 
Section 143( lOJ l'f' the Act. Those Standards require that we comply w ith ethical 
requin•menls and plan ;]ll tf perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the lnd AS fi11c1ncial s latl'ments <~ re free from mate ria l misstatement. 

An audit invo lves perfo rming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
the disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the lnd 



AS fin ancia l statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the 
auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation of the Ind 
AS financia l statements that g ive a true and fa ir view in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropria te in the circumstances . An audit also includes evaluating the appr opriateness 
of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the account ing estimates made by 
the Company's Directors, as well as eva luating the overall presentation of the Ind AS 
financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for ou r audit opinion on the lnd AS financial statements. 

Opinion 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and acco rding to the explanations given to 
us, the aforesaid lnd AS financial statements give the information requ ired by the Act in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 
principles ge nerally accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the financia l pos ition of the 
Company as at 31st March, 2018, and its financial loss for the year(incl uding other 
comprehensive income),its cash flo ws and the changes in equity for the year ended on that 
date. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

I. As required by the Companies (A uditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order") issued by the 
Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the 
"Annexure A" statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order; 

II. As requ ired by Section 143 (3)of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit; 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company 
so far as it appears from our examination of those books; 

(c) The bal<Jnce sheet, the state1nent of profit and loss (includ ing other comprehensive 
income ),the statement of cash !lows and the statement of changes in equity dea lt with by this 
Report are in agreement with the books of account; 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid lnd AS fi nancia l statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards specifi ed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rule issued thereunder; 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 
2018 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 
31st March, 2018 fro m being ap pointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of t he Act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the interna l financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in 
"Annexure B"; and 

(g) With respect to the other mallers to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with 
Rule11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Ru les, 2014, in our op inion and to the best of 
our information and acco rding to the explanations given to us : 



i. The Company has d isclosed the im pact o f pending li tigations on its financial posit ion in 
its lnd AS financia l s tatements, if any; 

ii. The Company dicl not have any long term contract including deriva tive contracts for 
w hich there were a ny mate ria l foreseeable losses; and 

iii. There were no amounts which we re required to be t ransferred to the Investor Educatio n 
and Pro tectio n Fund by the Company; 

FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO 
Firm Regis t ration No. 105313W 
Chartered Accountants rft... 
t __. ">f£---N~ 

LALIT KOT HARI 
Partner 
Membership No .: 30917 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 21st june, 2 0 18 



ANNEXURE"A"REFERRED TO IN OUR REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF HEDDLE 
KNOWLEDGE PRIVATE LIMITED ON THE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 
ENDED 315 tMARCH, 2018; 

On the basis of such checks as vve considered approp riate a nd in terms of the info rmation a nd 
explanations give n to us, we state that:-

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and si tuation of fixed assets; 

(b) The rixed Asse ts have bee n physica lly verifi ed by the Management during the year and 
no material discrepancies wel"c noticed on such verification; 

(c) The Company does not own any immovable property therefore provision of clause 
3( I)(c) ofthc said order a rc not applicable; 

( ii) The phys ical veri fication of inventory has bee n conducted at the reasonable intervals by the 
management du ring the year. The discrepancies noti ced on physical ve rification of inventory 
as compared to book reco rds we re not ma terial and have been appropriately dealt with In the 
books of accounts; 

(iii) Accord ing to the information and explanations given to us, th e Company has not granted any 
secu red or unsecured loans lo companies; firms or other parties covered under section 189 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act'). Therefore, provision of clause 3(iii), 3(iii)(a), 3(iii)(b), 
3(iii)(c) of the said order arc not applicable to the company; 

(iv) The Comp<tny has not granted any loans or made any inves tments, or provided any gua rantees 
or any securi ty to the parties cove red under section 185 and 186. Therefo re, the provisions of 
clause 3(iv) of the said Order a re not applicable to the Company; 

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public during the year, Therefore the 
provisions of clause 3 (v) of the Compani es (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to 
the Company; 

(vi) ln ou r opinion, and according to the in formation and explana tion given to us, the Co mpany has 
not crossed the threshold limit as prescribed by the Centra l Government under sub-section (1) 
of section 148 of the Act for maintenance of cost records a nd hence the provision fo r 
maintenance of records are not applicable to the Compa ny; 

(vii) (a) According to the Informa tion and explana tions given to us and the records of th e 
Company exa mined by us, in ou r op inion, except fo r dues in respect of Tax d educed at 
Suurcl'. St•Jvice tax, Provident fund and Interest on tax payable, the Company is generally 
regular 111 depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Sales Tax, duty of customs, 
VJ lue added tax G0ods And Service Tax, cess and other ma terial statutory dues, as 
applicable, with the appropriate authori ties. There was an amo unt of Service tax { 
1,67,615/-, Interest on lax payable { 4,17,748/- a nd Goods a nd Service Tax { 5,448/- is 
outstanding as at the last day of the financi al year for a period exceeding six months 
from th e date they became payable. 

(b) 011 the basis of ou r examinatio n of docu me nts and records of the Company, and 
expla nati0n provided to us, there a re no disp uted dues in respect of Income Tax, Sales 
Tax Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty or Cess. 



(viii) As the Company does not h;Jve any loans or borrowings from any financial insti tu tion or bank 
or Government, nor has it issued any debentures as at the balance sheet date. Therefor, the 
provisions of Cl<tuse 3(viii) of the Order ar·c no t applicable to the Company. 

(ix) The Company has no t raised any moneys by way of initial public offer, furthe r public offer 
(including debt instruments) and term loans. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(ix) of the 
Order are not applicable to the Company. 

(x) Based on the audit p rocedu res per formed and the information and exp lana ti ons given by the 
management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or 
employees has been no ticed or reported duri ng the year; 

(xi) The Company has not paid or provided managerial remuneration during the year and hence, 
the provisions of section 197 read w ith Sched ul e V to the Act are not applicable. Accordingly, 
the provi sions of Clause 3(xi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

(xi i) In our opinion , the Company is not a Nidh i Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 4 (xii) 
of the Order arc not applicable Lo the Company; 

(xiii) The Company has entered into transactions w ith related pa rti es in compliance with the 
provis ions of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions 
have been disclosed in the fin ancial statements as required under Ind AS 24, Related Party 
Disclosures specified under section 133 to the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2015. 

(xiv) The Comp;:my lws not made any preferential a llotment I private placement of shares or fully or 
partly converti ble debentures during the year, the provision of clause 3(xiv) of the Companies 
(Audito rs Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company; 

(xv) Based upon the aud it procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the 
management, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or 
persons con nected with him. Accordingly, the provis ions of cla use 3 (xv) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company; 

(xvi) The Company is not required to be regis te red under section 45 lA of the Reserve Bank of India 
Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provis ions of clause 3 (xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Compa ny. 

L.J. KOTHARI & CO 
Firm Registration No. 105313W 
Chartered Accountallt_i 

~~ 

LALIT KOTHARI 
Partner 
Membership No.: 30917 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 21sr june, 2018 



"ANNEXURE B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE IND AS 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF HEDDLE KNOWLEDGE PRIVATE LIMITED 

Report on the Inte rnal Financial Contro ls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act") 

We have audited the internal financial contro ls over financial reporting of HEDDLE KNOWLEDGE 
PRIVATE LIMITED ("the Company") as of 31st March, 2018 in conjunctio n with our audit of the 
Ind AS financi::ll statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is respons ible for estab lishing and mainta ining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financia l reporting criteria es tablished by the 
Company considering the essenti a l components of interna l control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Interna l fo'i nancia l Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (!CAl). These responsibiliti es include the design, implementa tion and 
maintenance of adequa te internal financia l controls t ha t were operating effectively for ensuring 
th e orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, 
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection o f frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the acco unting records, and the timely preparati on of reliable financial 
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibi li ty is to express an op m1 on on the Company 's internal financial controls over 
financia l reporting based on ou r audit. We conducted our audit in acco rdance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and 
the Standards on Auditing, issued by !CAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of 
the Companies Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financia l controls, both 
applicable to an audit of Internal Financia l Controls and, both issued by the !CAl. Those Standards 
and the Guidance Note require that we comply w ith eth ica l requirements and plan and perform 
the audit to obt<1in reasonable assura nce abo ut w hether adequate internal financial controls 
over fillanCJal reporting was estab lis hed and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in a ll material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obta in audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
inte rnal financial controls system over financia l reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our 
aud it of internal financia l controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding 
of internal financial control s ove r financia l repor t ing, assess ing the risk that a material w eakness 
exists, and test!ng and evaluating the des ign and opera ting effectiveness of internal control based 
on the assessed risks. The procedures se lected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment or the risks of materia l misstatement of the Jnd AS financial s ta tements, whether due 
to fraud or error. 

We believe tl1at the audit evidence we have obta ined is sufficient a nd ap propriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on th e Company's inte rnal financial controls system over financial 
reporting. 



Meaning of lnterual Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assura nce rega rding the reliabil ity of financia l reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with genera lly accepted accounting 
principles. A company's internal financial control over fi nancial reporting includes those policies 
and procedures thal; 

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

(2) provide reasona ble ass urance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company arc being made only in accordance with authorizations 
of management and directors of the company; and 

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial staremcnls. 

Inherent Limitations oflnternal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to erro r or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the inte rnal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject 
to the risk that the internal tlnancial control over financ ial reporting may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures 
may detet"iorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 
system over finlln cial reporting and such internal financ ial control s over financial reporting were 
operating effectively as at 31st March, 2018, based on the in ternal control over financial 
reporting criteria establi shed by the Company, considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO 
Firm Registration No. 105313W 
Chartered Accou nt~nts G1 

4 • \~~ 

LALIT KOTIIARI 
Partner 
Membership No.: 30917 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 21st june, 2018 



HEDDLE KNOWLEDGE PRIVATE LIMITED 

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2018 
Particulars 

I ASSETS 
1 Non-Current Assets 

(a) Property, plant and equipment 
(b) Financial assets 

(i) Investments 
(c) Current tax assets (Net) 
Total Non-Current assets 

2 Current asse ts 
(a) Inventories 
(b) Financial assets 

(i) Investments 
(ii) Trade receivables 
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 
(iv) Other financial assets 

(c) Other current assets 
Total Current Assets 
TOTAL ASSETS 

II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Equity 
(a) Equity share capital 
(b) Other equity 
Total Equity 

Liabilities 
Non-Current Liabilities 
(a) Provisions 
Total Non-Current Liabilities 

Current Liabilities 
(a) Financial Liabilities 

(i) Trade payables 
(ii) Other financial liabilities 

(b) Other current liabilities 
(c) Provisions 
Total Current Liabilities 
Total Liabilities 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO. 

Proprietor 
Membership No. 30917 

Mumbai 
Date: 21st june, 2018 

Note 
No. 

3 

4 
5 

6 

4 
7 
8 
9 
10 

11 
12 

13 

14 
15 
16 
13 

As at 
31st March, 2018 

t' 

1,095,876 

10,000 
8,777,251 
9,883,127 

41,857 
351,021,600 

393,181 
52,208,860 

500,000 
404,165,498 
414,048,625 

100,000 
(100,424,540) 

(100,324,540) 

439,818 
439818 

16,467,899 
495,172,887 

1,714,660 
577,901 

513,933,347 
514,373,165 
414,048,625 

As at 
31st March, 2017 

~ 

98,595 

10,000 
8,766,175 

8,874,770 

304,315,902 

40,319 

428,569 
113,494,721 
180,906,450 

599,185,961 
608,060,731 

100,000 
(99,142,699) 

(99,042,699) 

79,789,267 
592,834,129 

34,317,489 
162,545 

707,103,430 
707,103,430 
608,060,731 

Director 
DIN: 03134932 

c;~ 
JEEVAN PARAMBAN 

Director 
DI N: 03141200 

Date: 21" june, 2018 



HEDDLE KNOWLEDGE PRIVATE LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2018 
Particulars 

Income 
Revenue from Operations 
Other Income 
Share of Profit I (Loss) of Firm 
Total Income 

II Expenses 
Changes in Inventories of Land and ancilliary costs 
Employee Benefits Expense 
Finance Costs 
Depreciation Expenses 
Other Expenses 
Total Expenses 

Ill Profitl(loss) before Tax 
Tax Expense 

Excessi(Short) provision for taxation in respect of earlier years 
IV Profiti (Loss) for the Year 

v Other Comprehensive Income 
Remeseaurement of the net defined benefit liabiliy I asset 

VI Total comprehensive income for the Year 

VII Earning per equity share of nominal value of~ 101- each (in f) 
Basic and Diluted 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO. 
Firm Registration No. 105313W 
Chartered Accountants 

---{J~ 

LALIT KOTHARI 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 30917 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 21st june, 2018 

Note 
No. 

17 
18 

19 
20 
21 
22 
23 

24 

Year ended Year ended 
31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017 

~ ~ 

371,780,000 
100,829,774 217,581 

(1,580) 4,435 
472,608,194 222,016 

180,605,765 
7,254,842 4,763,216 

168,573 161,601 
102,679 142,817 

284,989,247 8,068,185 
473,121,106 13,135,819 

(512,912} (12,913,803} 

(512,912} (12,913,803} 

(768,929) 102,485 

(1,281,841} (12,811,318} 

(51.29) (1,291.38) 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Director 
DIN: 03141200 

Date: 21st June, 2018 



HEDDLE KNOWLEDGE PRIVATE LIMITED 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2017 

Particulars 

I. CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM OPERATING ACTIYITIES 
Net profit I (loss) before taxation as per Statement of Profit and Loss 
Add I (Less): 
Depreciation 
Share of loss of fi rm and joint venture 
Remeseaurement of the net defined benefit liabiliy f asset 
Finance Costs 
Sale of fixed assets 

Operating profit before working capital changes 
Add 1 (Less): 
(Increase)/ Decrease in inventories 
(Increase) f Decrease in trade and other receivebles 
Increase I (Decrease) in trade and other payables 
Increase 1 (Decrease) in provisions 
Direct taxes (paid)frefund 

Net cash flow from operating activities 

II. CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Inflow I (Outflow) on account of: 
Sale 1 (Purchase) of fixed assets 
Interest income received 
Acquisition of current investment 
Net cash flow from investing activities 

III. CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Inflow 1 (Outflow) on account of: 
Finance costs paid 
Net cash flow from financing activities 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ( I + II + III ) 

Add: Balance at the beginning of the year 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 

Components of cash and cash equivalents (Refer Note 8) 
Cash on hand 
Balances with Banks 
- in Current accounts 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO. 
Firm Registration No. 105313W 
Chartered Accountants ~ 

~ ..__L--1'\' 

LALIT KOTHARI 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 30917 

Mumbai 
Date: 21'1 june, 2018 

~=~ 

31st March, 2018 
~ 

(512,912) 

102,679 
(1,580) 

(768,929) 
168,573 
183,136 

(316,121} 
(829,033) 

304,315,902 
(109,329,290) 
(193,914,837) 

855,174 
(11,076) 

1,915,873 
1,086,840 

(952,117) 

(1,538) 
(953,655) 

(168,573) 
(168,573) 

(35,388) 

428,569 
393,181 

46,096 

347,085 
393,181 

31st March, 2017 
f 

(12,913,803) 

142,817 
4,435 

102,485 
161,601 

411,338 
(12,502,465) 

6,534,846 
3,402,272 
(213,438) 

9,723,680 
(2,778,785) 

3,004,933 
4,153 

3,009,086 

(161,601) 
(161,601) 

68,700 

359,869 
428,569 

91,366 

337,203 
428,569 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

~ 
Director 

DIN: 03134932 

Director 
DIN: 03141200 

Date: 21st june, 2018 



H~DDLE KNOWLEDGE PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2018 

Note 1. Statement of Significant Accounting Policies. 

1.1 Company Overview 
Heddle Knowledge Private Limited is a private limited Company domiciled in India, incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956. The main object of the company is 
to acquire by purchase, lease or otherwise, agricultural land for farming, to establish and run farms and to Construct, erect, acquire. equip, lease, furnish, convert, 
adapt, improve, develop, operate & manage all sorts of Agricultural Parks, Industrial Parks, Special Economic Zone & related infrastructure facilities, commercial & 
social infrastructure facilities & amenities. 

1.2 The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 21•' june 2018. 

Note 2. Significant Accounting Policies followed by the Company 

I. Basis of preparation of financial Statements 

(i} Compliance with lnd AS 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the ' lnd AS') as notified by Ministry 
of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('Act') read with of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended 
and other relevant provisions of the Act 

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements. 

(ii) Historical cost convention 
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following: 
1) Certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value; 
2) Assets held for sale- measured at lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell; 
3) Defined benefit plans- plan assets measured at fair value; 

(iii) Current non-current classification 
All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current, wherever applicable, as per the operating cycle of the Company as per the guidance set 
out in Schedule III to the Act Operating cycle for the business activities of the Company covers the duration of the project/ contract including the defect liability 
period, wherever applicable, and extends up to the realisation of receivables (including retention monies, if any) within the credit period normally applicable to the 
respective project 

II. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of Jnd AS requires management to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures, and 
the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to 
the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. 

a) judgements 
Classification of property 
The company determines whether a property is classified as investment property or inventory property. Investment property comprises land and buildings 
that are not occupied substantially for use by, or in the operations of, the company, nor for sale in the ordinary course of business, but are held primarily to 
earn rental income and capital appreciation. These buildings are substantially rented to tenants and not intended to be sold in the ordinary course of 
business. Inventory comprises property that is held for sale in the ordinary course of business. Principally, these are properties that the company develops 
and intends to sell before or on completion of construction. 
b) Estimates and assumptions 
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a 
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its 
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future 
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are 
reflected in the assumptions when they occur. 

Ill. Revenue recognition 
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will accrue to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured and 
also when it is reasonably certain that the ultimate collection will be made and that there is buyers' commitment to make the complete payment. 

A. Revenue from Sale of Land 
i. Revenue from sale of land is recognised on transfer of all significant risks and rewards of ownership of s uch land, as per the terms of the contracts 

entered into with buyer/(s), which generally coincides with the firming of the sale contracts/ agreements, except for contracts where the Company still 
has obligations to perform substantial acts even after the transfer of all significant risks and rewards. 

B. Interest and dividend: 
Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income 
can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding at the effective interest rate applicable, 
which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying 
amount on initial recognition. 

C. Others: 
Other revenues 1 incomes and costs 1 expenditure are accounted on accrual, as they are earned or incurred. 

D. 



Hf;DDLE KNOWLEDGE PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3151 MARCH, 2018 

IV. Property plant and equipment and deprecia tion 1 ammortisation 

A On transition to lnd AS, the Company has opted to continue with the carrying values measured under the previous GAAP as at 1st April, 2015 of its 
Property, Plant and Equipment and use that carrying value as the deemed cost on the date of transition i.e. 1st April, 2015. 

B. Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition or construction including attributable interest and finance cost, if any ti ll the date of 
acquisition/installation of the assets, less accumulated depreciation/amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 

C. Subsequent expenditure relating to Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalised only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with 
the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to the 
Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred. The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements, either on 
disposal or when retired from active use and the resultant gain or loss are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

D. Depreciation is provided based on useful life of the assets as prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act. 2013. Depreciation on additions to assets 
or on sale/disposal of assets is calculated pro-rata from the month of such addition, or upto the month of such sale/disposal, as the case may be. 

Asset Category 
Vehicles 
Computers & Laptops 
Furnitures & Fixtures 
Office Equipments 

Estima ted useful life (in Years) 
10 
3 

10 
5 

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property plant equipment are reviewed at each financial year and adjusted 
prospectively, if appropriate. 

V. Financiallnstruments 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a fi nancial liability or equity instrument of another entity. 

A Investment and Financial Assets 
i. Initial r ecognition 

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business model with an objective to hold these 
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the fi nancial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using 
the effective interest rate ("EJR") method. lmpairmentgains or losses arising on these assets are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

ii. Subsequent measurement 
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories: 

a) Financial Assets at Amortised Cost 
A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect 
contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal 
and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

b) Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value 
Financial assets are measured at fa ir value through OCI if these financial assets are held within a business model with an objective to hold these assets 
in order to collect contractual cash flows or to sell these financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to 
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Movements in the carrying amount are taken 
through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss. Further, in cases where the Company has made an irrevocable election based on its business model, for its 
investments which are classified as equity instruments, the subsequent changes in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income. 

Financial asset not measured at amortised cost or at fair value through OCI is carried at FVTPL. 

iii. De-recognition of Financial Assets: 
The Company de-recognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the financial asset 
and substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the 
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognizes its retained interest in the assets and an 
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. 

If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset. the Company continues to recognise the 
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received. 

B. Equity Instruments and Financial Liabilities 
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered 
Into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity mstrument 

i. Equity Instruments 
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity 
instruments which are issued for cash are recorded at the proceeds received. net of direct issue costs. Equity instruments which are issued for 
consideration other than cash are recorded at fair value of the equity instrument 

ii. Financial Liabilities 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31"' MARCH, 2018 
2. Subsequent Measurement 
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below: 
· Financial liabilit ies at FVTPL 
Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at FVTPL 
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses on liabilities 
held for trading are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs 
because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument Financial guarantee contracts are 
recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, 
the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Jnd AS 109 and the amount 
recognised less cumulative amortisation. Amortisation is recognised as finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

• Financial liabilities at amortised cost 
After initial recognition, interest·bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Any difference 
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of the borrowings in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an 
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

3. De-recognition of Financial Liabilities 
Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. When an existing fi nancial 
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, 
such an exchange or modification is treated as de-recognition of the original liability and recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective 
carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

C. Offsetting Financial Instruments 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to 
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

VI Derecognition of financial instruments 
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expires or it transfers the finacial asset 
and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under lndAS 109. A fi nancial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized from the Company's 
Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires. 

VII. Impairment 

a. Financial assets 
The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not fair valued through profit or loss. 
Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to life time ECL. For all other financial assets, 
expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial 
recognition in which case thoseare measured at lifetime ECL.The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance 
at the reporting date to t11e amount that is required to be recognised is recognized as an impairment gain or loss in the statement of profit or loss. 

b. Non-financia l assets 
The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual 
impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's 
or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset. unless the 
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or 
CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount 

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are 
taken into account If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation 
multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators. 

Impairment losses, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 
i. Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment 

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability wheneer events or changes in circumstances indicate that their 
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fai r value less cost to sell and 
the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other 
assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs. 

ii. Provisions 
A provision is recogmzed if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that is reasonably estimable, and it is 
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash 
flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. 
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VIII. Taxation 

i. Current Tax 
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax' as reported in the financial statement of profit 
and loss becauseof items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company's 
current tax is calculated using rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

In case the Company is liable to pay income tax ufs llSJB of Income Tax Act, 1961 (i.e. MAT), the amount of tax paid in excess of normal income tax is 
recognized as an asset (MAT Credit entitlement) only if there is convincing evidence for realization of such asset during the specified period. MAT credit 
entitlement is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date. 

ii. Deferred Tax 
Deferred tax is recognized on temporary diferences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding 
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets 
are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those 
deductible temporary differences can be utilized. 
The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that 
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. 
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realized, 
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at 
the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. 

iii. Current and deferred tax for the year 
Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in 
equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. 

IX. Inventories 
All inventories are stated at lower of'Cost or Net Realizable Value'. 

A. 'Incomplete Projects' include cost of land for which the Company has not entered into sale agreements and in other cases where the revenue 
recognition is postponed. 'Incomplete Projects' also include initial project costs that relate to a (prospective) project, incurred for the purpose of 
securing the project These costs are recognized as expenditure for the year in which they are incurred unless they are separately identifiable and it is 
probable that the respective project will be obtained. 

B. Cost included in inventory include costs incurred up to the completion of the project viz. cost of land, services and other expenses (including borrowing 
costs) attributable to the projects. Cost formula used is average cost 

X. Borrowings and Borrowing costs 
Borrowing are initally recognised at Net off transation cost incurred and measured at amortised cost Any difference between the proceeds ( net of 
transation costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in statetment of profit and loss over ther period of the borrowings using the effective interest 
method. 

Interests and other borrowing costs included under finance costs calculated as per effective interest rate attributable to qualifying assets, which takes 
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are allocated as part of the cost of construction I development of such assets. Such allocation is 
suspended during extended periods in which active development is interrupted and, no costs are allocated once all such activities are substantially 
complete. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from 
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. Other borrowing costs are charged to the Profit and Loss Account 

Xl. Cash Flow Statement 
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any 
deferra ls or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and i'tem of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. 
The cash flows from operating. investing and financing activities of the company are segregated. 

XII. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or 
less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank 
overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash management 

XIII. Provisions, contingent liabilit ies and contingent assets 
A provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as result of past event and it is probable that an outflow of 
embodying economic benefits of resources will be required to settle a reliably assessable obligation. Provisions are determined based on best estimate 
required to settle each obligation at each balance sheet date. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current 
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of 
time is recognised as a finance cost 
Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events, whose existence would be confirmed by the occurrence or 
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. A contingent liability also arises, in rare cases, where a 
liability cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. 
Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financia l statements. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2018 

XIV. Recent accounting pronouncements 
Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration: On March 28, 2018, Ministry of Corporate Affairs (""MCA""} has notified 
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards} Amendment Rules, 2018 containing Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreigncurrency transactions and advance 
consideration which clarifies the date of the transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, 
expense or income, when an entity has received or paid advance consideration in a foreign currency. 

The amendment will come into force from 1 April 2018. The Company exposure towards foreign currency transation is minimal, hence the impact on the 
financial statements and effect on adoption oflnd AS 21 is expected to be insignificant 
IndAS 115 
In March 2018, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards} Amended Rules, 2018 ("amended rules"). As per 
the amended rules, lnd AS 115 "Revenue from contracts with customers" supersedes Ind AS 11, "Construction contracts" and lnd AS 18, "Revenue• and is 
applicable for all accounting periods commencing on or after 1 April 2018. 

lnd AS 115 introduces a new framework of five step model for the analysis of revenue transactions. The model specifies that revenue should be recognised 
when (or as} an entity transfer control of goods or services to a customer at the amount to which the entity expects to be entitled. Further the new standard 
requires enhanced disclosures about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from the entity's contracts with 
customers. The new revenue standard is applicable to the Company from 1 April 2018. 

The standard permits two possible methods of transition: 
Retrospective approach -Under this approach the standard will be applied retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented in accordance with 

lnd AS 8- Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors 

Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognized at the date of initial application (Cumulative catch- up approach} 

The Company is evaluating the requirement of the amendment and the impact on the financial statements. The effect on adoption of JND AS 115 is expected 
to be insignificent 
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Statement Of Changes In Equity For The Year Ended 3151 March, 2018 

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 
As at 1st April, 2016 
Changes in equity share capital 
As at 31st March, 2017 
Changes in equity share capital 
As at 31st March, 2018 

B. OTHER EQUITY AND CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS 

Notes 
(in~) 

Amount 

100,000 

100,000 

100,000 

Reserves and Surplus Total 
Securities Premium 

Reserve 

Balance at 151 April 2016 
Profit I (Loss) for the Year -
Remeasurement of net defined benefit recognised in other -comprehensive income 

Balanceat3151 March 2017 -
Profit I (Loss) for the Year -
Remeasurement of net defined benefit recognised in other -comprehensive income 

Balance at 3151 March 201R -
The accompanymg notes are an mtegral part of the financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO. 
Firm Registration No. 105313W 
Chartered Accountants 

LALIT KOTHARI 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 30917 

Mumbai 
Date: 21st June, 2018 

Retained Earnings 

(86,331,381) (86,331,381) 
[12,913,803) (12,913,803) 

102,485 102,485 

(99,142,699) (99,142,699)_ 
rs12,912) (512,912~ 

(768,929) (768,929) 

(100,424,540) (100,424,540) 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

~AH 
Director 

DlN:03134932 

Date: 2151 )une, 2018 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31•' MARCH, 2018 

Note 3. Property, plant and equipment 

Computers and Furniture and 
Vehicles 

Office 
Total 

LaQtOQS Fixtures EguiQment 
Cost or deemed cost 

Balance at 1st April, 2016 4,26,116 9,26,340 24,90,855 10,59,760 49,03,071 
Additions 
Disposals 
Balance at 31st March, 2017 4,26,116 9,26,340 24,90,855 10,59,760 49,03,071 

Accumulated depreciation and impairment 

Balance at 1st April, 2016 4,26,116 8,84,406 22,91,377 10,59,760 46,61,659 
Eliminated on disposal of assets 
Depreciation expense 41,934 1,00,883 1,42,817 
Balance at 31st March, 2017 4,26,116 9,26,340 23,92,260 10,59,760 48,04,476 

Carrying amount as on 31st March, 2017 98,595 98,595 

Computers and Furniture and 
Vehicles 

Office 
Total 

LaQtOQS Fixtures EguiQment 

Cost or deemed cost 

Balance at 31st March, 2017 4,26,116 9,26,340 24,90,855 10,59,760 49,03,071 

Additions 11,41,040 11,41,040 
Disposals (10,00,122) (10,00,122} 
Balance at 31st March, 2018 4,26,116 9,26,340 26,31,773 10,59,760 50,43,989 

Accumulated depreciation and impairment 

Balance at 31st March, 2017 4,26,116 9,26,340 23,92,260 10,59,760 48,04,476 
Eliminated on disposal of assets (9,59,042) (9,59,042) 

Depreciation expense 1,02,679 1,02,679 
Balance at 31st March, 2018 4,26,116 9,26,340 15,35,897 10,59,760 39,48,113 

Carrying amount as at 31st March, 2018 10,95,876 10,95,876 
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Note 4. Investments 

Non Current 

A) Capital Investment in Pa rtnership Firms and joint Ventures 

M/s Rising Glory Developers (Refer Footnote (a)) 

Total 

B) Cur rent Investments (At FVTPL) (Quoted) 
Investment In Mutual Fund · Daily Dividend Plan: 
(State Bank of India Mutual Fund: 24.072(P.Y.: 24.071) Units of n 675.03/· each) 

Total 

Footnote: 
(a) Details of Investments made in capital of Rising Glory Developers (partnership firm): 

Name of Partners 

Hubtown Limited 
Ackruti Safeguard Svstem Private Limited 
Citygold Education Research Limited 
Citygold Farming Private Limited 
Diviniti Projects Private Limited 
Halitious Developers Limited 
Headland Farming Private Limited 
Heddle Knowledge Private Limited 
Heet Builders Private Limited 
Subhsiddhi Builders Private Limited 
Sunstream City Private Limited 
Upvan lake Resort Private Limited 
Vega Developers Private Limited 
Whitebud Developers Limited 
Yantti Buildcon Private Limited 
Total 
Total Capital of the firm in ~ 

Note 5. Current Tax Assets (Net) 

Advance Tax paid 
Less: Provision for Tax 
Curent Tax Asset 

Income Tax expense 
(a) Income Tax expense 

Tax in respect of earlier years 
Current tax expense 
Income tax expense 

(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's tax rate 

As at 
31st March, 2018 

~ 

10,000 

1 0,000 

41,857 

41,857 

31st March, 2018 
Profit Sharin~ Ratio 

20.00% 
5.34% 
5.34% 
5.34% 
5.34% 
5.34% 
5.33% 
5.33% 
5.33% 
5.33% 

10.66% 
5.33% 
5.33% 
5.33% 
5.33% 
100% 

150,000 

8,777,251 

8,777,251 

Since the taxable income is negative, there is no current tax payable; hence reconciliation has not been provided. 

As at 
31st March, 2017 

~ 

10,000 

10,000 

40,319 

40,319 

31st March, 2017 
Profit Sharin~ Ratio 

20.00% 
5.34% 
5.34% 
5.34% 
5.34% 
5.34% 
5.33% 
5.33% 
5.33% 
5.33% 

10.66% 
5.33% 
5.33% 
5.33% 
5.33% 
100% 

150,000 

8,766,175 

8,766,175 



HEDDLE KNOWLEDGE PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2018 

Note 6. Inventories 

Inventories (lower of cost or net realisable value) 
-Incomplete projects, at cost (Refer Footnote) 

Total 
Footnote: 
During the year the company has sold its entire Inventory. 

Note 7. Trade Receivables 

Current 
Unsecured, considered good 

Other trade receivables 
Related Party (Refer Note 28) 
Total 

As at 
31st March, 2018 

~ 

62,741,600 
288,280,000 

351,021,600 

As at 
31st March, 2017 

~ 

304,315,902 
304,315,902 

Footnote :Trade Receivable includes~ 15,35,30,000 from a Director (Refer Footnote 28) 

Note 8. Cash and cash equivalents 

Balances with banks: 
- in current accounts 
Cash on hand 

Total 

Note 9. Other financial assets 

Current 
Security deposits 
Business Advance to a related party 
Advances to others 
Other receivables (Other than Trade Receivables): 
- Related Party (Refer Note 28) 
-Others 

Note 10. Other assets 
Current 
Advances to land owners (Refer Note 31) 

Other Advances 
- Prepaid Expense 
- Advance to Suppliers 

Total 
Footnote: 

347,085 
46,096 

393,181 

25,100 

50,061,437 

1,354,463 
767,860 

52,208,860 

500,000 

500,000 

337,203 
91,366 

428,569 

25,100 
19,809,156 
93,155,845 

504,620 
113,494,721 

180,831,936 

26,514 
48,000 

180,906,450 
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Note 11. Equity share capital 

Authorised Share Capital: 
10,000 (P.Y.: 10,000) Equity Shares of~ 10/- each 

9,99,000 (P.Y.: 9,99,000)8% Non-Cumulative Convertible Preference 
Shares of~ 100/- each 

Issued and subscribed capital comprises: 

10,000 (P.Y.: 10,000) Equity Shares of~ 10/- each fully paid up 

(i) Reconciliation of the number of Equity shares outstanding at the beginning and atthe end of the year. 
Balance at 1st April, 2016 

Add : Issued during the year 
Less: Bought back during the year 

Balance at 31st March, 2017 
Add : Issued during the year 
Less : Bought back during the year 

Balance at 31st March, 2018 

(ii) Details of shares held by each shareholders holding more than 5% shares 

As at 31st March, 2018 
No of shares held % holding of this 

class of shares 

Fully paid equity shares 
Hubtown Limited with Benificiary Owners 10,000 100% 

(iii) Terms/rights attached to each class of shares : 

As at 
31st March, 2018 

~ 

100,000 

99,900,000 

100,000 
100,000 

As at 
31st March, 2017 

~ 

100,000 

99,900,000 

100,000 
100,000 

Number of shares Share Capital 
(in~) 

10,000 100,000 

10,000 100,000 

10,000 100,000 

As at 31st March, 2017 
No of shares held 

10,000 

% holding of this 
class of shares 

100% 

The company has a single class of equity shares having a par value of ~ 10/- per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share. The 
company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of shareholders in the 
ensuing annual general meeting. In the event of liquidation of company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the 
company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. 
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Note 1 2. Other Equity 
Retained Earnings 
Balance at the beginning of the year 
Profit attributable to the owners of the company 
Items ofOCI recognised directly in retained earnings 
Balance at the end of the year 

Note 13. Provisions 
Non-current 
Employee Benefits 

Provision for Gratuity 
Provision for leave benefit 

Total 

Cw:r.ent 
Employee Benefits 
Provision for Gratuity 
Provision for leave benefit 

Total 

Note 14. Trade payables 

Cw:r.ent 
Due to micro and small enterprises (Refer Footnote) 
Due to others 

Total 
Footnote: 

As at 
31st March, 2018 

~ 

(99,142,699) 
(512,912) 
(768,929) 

(100,424,540) 

430,302 
9,516 

439818 

424,210 
153 691 

577 901 

16 467 899 
16,467,899 

As at 
31st March, 2017 

~ 

(86,331,381) 
(12,913,803) 

102,485 
(99,142,699) 

15,969 
146 576 

162 545 

79 789 267 
79,789,267 

As per information available with the company regarding dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as defined under the Micro Small 
Medium Enterprises Development, Act 2006 (MSMED Act), none of the suppliers of the company are registered under MSMED Act, and 
the same has been relied upon by the auditors. 

Note 15. Other financial liabilities 

Cw:r.ent 
Current account balance in firms and joint ventures. (Refer Note 28) 
Business Advances ((Refer Footnote) 
- Related Party (Refer note 28) 
-Others 
Other payables 
- Related Party (Refer note 28) 
-Others 

Total 

Footnote: 

12,591 

69,731,483 
43,400,000 

380,976,000 
1,052,813 

495,172,887 

365 

163,172,772 
43,400,000 

382,220,341 
4,040,651 

592,834,129 

The Company has received interest free advances from it's Parent Company, considering the nature of business in which the Company 
operate, the amounts so received are considered to be repayable on call I demand as the repayment period of such amounts so received 
is not measureable precisely. 

Note 16. Other current liabilities 
Cw:r.ent 
Advance from customers 
Other payables : 
- Employee Benefit Payable 
-Statutory dues 
Overdrawn bank balances as per books of accounts 

Total 

65,103 
1,142,362 

507 195 
1,714,660 

31,900,000 

65,103 
2,121,071 

231315 
34,317,489 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2018 

Note 17. Revenue from operations 
Sale from operations : 

Sale of Plot 
Total 

Note 18. Other income 

a) Compensation I surrender of rights (Refer Note 28) 
b) Dividend Income 

Dividends from equity instruments 
c) Other gains and losses 

Surplus on sale I discardment of fixed assets (Net) 
Sundry creditors balance written back 
Excess provision written back 
Total 

Note 19. Changes In Inventories Of Land and Ancilliary costs 
Opening Inventory 
Less: 
Purchase Return - Land 
Expenses incurred on above land writton off (Refer Note 23) 

Closing Inventory 
Total 

Note 20. Employee benefit expenses 
Salaries, bonus, etc. 
Contribution to provident and other funds 
Staff walfare Expenses 
Total 

Note 21. Finance Costs 
Delayed/ penal interest on loans and statutory dues 
Total 

Note 22. Depreciation Expenses 
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 
Total 

Note 23. Other Expenses 
Advances and other debit balances written off (Refer Footnote to Note 10) 
Work in progess written off (Land expenses) (Refer Note 19) 
Legal and professional fees 
Other expenses (Refer Footnote) 
Total 

Footnote: 
Auditors Remuneration (included in the other expenses) 

Audit Fees 
Total 

Year ended 
31st March, 2018 

~ 

371 780,000 
371,780,000 

100,000,000 

1,537 

183,136 
630,000 

15,101 
100,829,774 

304,315,902 

26,586,154 
97,123,983 

180,605,765 

180,605,765 

6,830,206 
405,234 

19,402 
7,254,842 

168,573 
168,573 

102 679 
102,679 

184,390,690 
96,623,983 

2,828,186 
1,146,388 

284,989,247 

35,000 
35,000 

G 

Year ended 
31st March, 2017 

~ 

1,848 

11,643 
204,090 

217,581 

304,315,902 

304,315,902 

304,315,902 

4,414,722 
312,895 

35,599 
4,763,216 

161,601 
161,601 

142,817 
142,817 

5,977,015 
2,091,169 

8,068,185 



HEDDLE KNOWLEDGE PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31'1 MARCH, 2018 

Note 24. Basic and Diluted Earning Per Share 

Basic and Diluted EPS 

As at 
31 March, 2018 

f 

(51.29) 

As at 
31 March, 2017 

'{ 

(1,291.38) 

The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share are as follows: 

Profit for the year attributable to the owners ofthe Company (in f) 

Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic and diluted earnings per share 

Note 25. Financial Risk Management Objectives 

(512,912} 

10,000 

(12,913,803) 

10,000 

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's focus is to foresee the 
unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance. 
1) Market Risk 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument which fluctuate because of changes in market prices. 
Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument wilt fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. 
The company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to company's debt obligations with floating interest rates. 

· The Company has received interest free advances from its holding company and hence it is not exposed to interest rate risk 
2) Credit Risk 
Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract leading to a financial loss. 
The company is not exposed to credit risk from its operating activities or trade receivables since the agreement of sale of land is executed only on 
receipt of full consideration. 

Credit risk from balances with banks and inter corporate loans is managed by the company's treasury department in accordance with the company's 
policy. 

3) Liquidity risk 
The operating cash flow requirements are met by interest free funding from shareholders. 

Note 26. Capital Management 

The primary objective of company's capital management is to ensure that it maintains strong capital ratios in order to support its business and 
maximise shareholders value. The company's board of directors reviews the capital structure on an annual basis. 

Gearin!:' Ratio 
The gearing ratio at the reporting period was as follows 

Unsecured Borrowings 
Interest accrued 
Total Debt 
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 
Net Debt (A) 

Equity Share Capital 
Retained Earnings 
Total Equity (B) 

Debt Equity Ratio A/B 

Note 27 Fair Value Measurements 

Iinan~:ial Assets 
Investment 
Other financial assets 
Trade Receivables 
Loans 
Cash and cash eQuivalent 
Total 

Einan~:iall.iabilities 

Trade payables 
Other Financial liabilities 
Total 

31st March, 2018 
FVPL&FVOCI Amortised Cost 

41,857 10,000 
- 52,208,860 
- 351,021,600 
- -
- 393,181 

41,857 403,633,641 

- 16,467,899 

~or I • ~ - 495,172,887 

//...'+-? Ret~ - 511,640,786 

As at 
31 March, 2018 

393,181 
(393,181) 

100,000 
(100.424,540) 

(100,324,540) 

0.00 

As at 
31 March, 2017 

428,569 
(428,569) 

100,000 
(99,142,699) 

(99,042,699) 

0.00 

(f) 
31st March, 2017 

FVPL&FVOCI Amortised Cost 

40,319 10,000 
- 113,494,721 
- -

- -
- 428,569 

40,319 113,933,290 

- 79,789,267 
- 592,834,129 

~ 672,623,396 

tt~'~ lCl ~ (~ :r0\ 9. N • OS17 It! 
~?p # 
~'>~~~~ . ~~ 

·nn'\~ 



HEDDLE KNOWLEDGE PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018 

Note 28. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 

A. Name oft be related parties and related parties relatlonsblp 
Holding Company 

II Fellow Subsidiary 

Ill Firm In wblcb Company Is a partner 

IV Key Management personnel and tbelr relatives 

Footnote: 

Hubtown Limited 

Citygold Farming Private Limited 
)oynest Premises Private Limited 
Twenty Five South Realty Limited 
Citygold Education Research Ltd 
Headland Farming Private Limited 

M/s Rising Glory Developers 

Mr. Khllen V Shah 
Mrs. Meha Rushank Shah 
Mrs. Pratiti K. Shah 

Related party relationships are identified by the Company and relied upon by the Auditors 

B. Transaction with Related Parties· 

Sr. 
No. 

Nature of Transaction 

Bus iness advances taken/ recovered I adjusted 
Hubtown Limited 

Cltygold Farming Private Limited 

Twenty Five South Realty Limited 

joynest Premises Private Limited 

II Business Advance given/ repaid/adjusted 
Hubtown Limited 

)oyncst Premises Private Limited 

Ill On behalf payments made/ received (Including reimbursment of expenses) 
Citygold Education Research Ltd 

Citygold Farming Private Limited 

Headland Farming Private Limited 

iv Compensation I surrender of Rights 
Citygold Education Research Limited 

v Loan taken 
Akruti Safeguard Systems Private Limited 

vi Share ofloss from partnership Orm 
M/s Rising Glory Developers 

vii Transactions tbrougb Partners current account 
M/s Rising Glory Developers 

viii Sale of plot 

c. 

Mr. Kbilen V Shah 

Mrs. Meha Rushank Shah 

Mrs. Pratiti K. Shah 

Balance outstanding 

Balance Payahles 
iiubtown Limited 
M/s Rising Glory Developers 
Akruti Safeguard Systems Private Limited 
Citygold Farming Private Limited 
Rubix Trading Private Limited 

II Balance Receivables 
Twenty Five South Realty Limited 
)oynest Premises Private Umlted 
Headland Farming Private Limited 
Citygold Farming Private Limited 
Citygold Education Research Ltd 
Mr. Khilen V Shah 
Mrs. Meha Rushank Shah 
Mrs. Pratiti K. Shah 

footnotes: Previous year figures are given in brackets. 

Holding 
Company 

232,789,111 
(58,635,000) 

(·) 

(·) 

(·) 

326,230,400 
(8,168,000) 

(·) 

(·) 

(-) 

(·) 

(·) 

(·) 

(·) 

(·) 

(·) 

(·) 

(·) 

Fellow Subs idiary 

(·) 

( l ,D40,500) 
14,309,156 

(·) 
5,500,000 

(·) 

(·) 

(56,500,000) 

517,685 
(·) 

1,874,778 
(·) 

2.500 
(·) 

100,000,000 
(·) 

(1.400,000) 

(·) 

(·) 

(·) 

(·) 

(·) 

Firm In wbich 
Company is a 

partne r 

As at 

(·) 

(·) 

(·) 

(·) 

(-) 

(·) 

(·) 

(·) 

[·) 

(·) 

1,580 
(365) 

(691) 

(·) 

(·) 

(·) 

31st March, 2018 

69,731,483 
12,591 

1,400,000 

379,S76,000 

2,500 
834,278 

100.517,685 
153,530,000 

12,850,000 
21,900,000 

(in~) 

Key Management 
personnel, their 

relatives and 
enterprises 

(·) 

(·) 

(·) 

(·) 

(·) 

(·) 

(·) 

(·) 

(-) 

(·) 

(·) 

(·) 

176,030,000 
(·) 

18,350,000 
(·) 

23,200,000 
(·) 

As at 

31st March, 2017 

163,172,772 
11,011 

1,400,000 
1.040,500 

379,576,000 

14,309,156 
5.500,000 



HEDDLE KNOWLEDGE PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2018 

Note 29. Post Retirement Benefit Plans 
The Prinicipal assumptions used for the purpose of the acturial valuations were as follows, 
Gratuity: 
Discount Rate 
Expected rate of salary increase 
Expected average remaining service 

Service cost 
Current service cost 
Net interest expense 
Component of define benefit cost recognised in profit or loss 

Acturial (gains) 1 losses for the period 
Component of defined benefit cost recognised in other comprehensive income 

Total 

Present value of funded defined benefit obligation 
Fair value of plan assets 

Funded status 

Movement in PV of defined benefit obligation 

Opening define benefit obligation 
Current service cost 
Interest cost 
Actuarial (gains) and losses on obligation 
closing define benefit obligation 

Movements in fair value of plan asstes 
Opening fair value of plan assets 
Interest income 
Return on plan asstes (excluding amounts included in net interest expense) 
Contribution from employer 
clsoing fair value of plan assets 

Asset Information: 

Gratuity Fund 

Expected Payout: 
Expected Outgo First Year 
Expected Outgo Second Year 
Expected Outgo Third Year 
Expected Outgo Fourth Year 
Expected Outgo Fifth Year 
Expected Outgo Sixth to Tenth Years 

Sensitivity Analysis: 

Year ended 
31st March, 2018 

~ 

7.67% 
5% 

9.52 

76,670 
1,189 

77,859 

768,929 
768,929 

846,788 

1,512,947 
658,435 

(854,512) 

629,034 
76,670 
38,314 

768,929 
1,512,947 

613,065 
37,125 

8,245 

658,435 

Total Amount 

PVO Payout 
723,250 

12,360 
14,309 
16,483 
18,900 

140,585 

Year ended 
31st March, 2017 

~ 

7.44% 
5% 
10 

69,268 
3,644 

72,912 

(101,069) 
(101,069) 

(28,157) 

629,034 
613,065 

(15,969) 

611,884 
69,268 
48,951 

(101,069) 
629,034 

566,342 
45,307 

1,416 

613,065 

Target Allocation 
% 

As of 31st March, 2018, every percentage point increase in discount rate will affect our gratuity benefit obligation Rs.12,21,434. 
As of 31st March, 2018, every percentage point decrease in discount rate will affect our gratuity benefit obligation Rs.13,58,155. 
As of 31st March, 2018, every percentage point increase in salary escalation rate will affect our gratuity benefit obligation Rs. 13,58,696. 
As of 31st March, 2018, every percentage point decrease in salary escalation rate will affect our gratuity benefit obligation Rs. 12,19,978. 

Sensitivity for significant actuarial assumptions is computed by varying one actuarial assumption used for the valuation of the defined benefit 
obligation by one percentage, keeping all other actuarial assumptions constant. 
Projected service cost as on 31st March, 2019 is Rs. 1,27,253. 

Narrations: 
1 Analysis of Defined Benefit Obligation 



HEDDLE KNOWLEDGE PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2018 

Note30. 
a. The company has obtained permission for purchase of Agricultural lands admeasuring 442.15 hectors In the District Raigad as per villages referred in the order 

dated 12th March 2008 and the details of land shown in the annexure to said order from Directorate of Industries, Maharashtra State, for setting up Indus trial 
Estate, Flatted Building. readymade build space, plots custom Built Campuses for IT & ITES services sector. 

b, Further same is subject to permission from town planning department and Agricultural Land Ceiling Act and the provisions of section 36 and 36 A of Maharashtra 
Land Revenue Code 1966 and of the Maharashtra Restoration of Lands to scheduled Tribe Act 1974 and permission and approval from other Government bodies. 

Note 31. Advance paid for purchase of land. 
Particulars As at 31st March, 2018 As at 31s t March, 2017 

(Amount In ~) (Amount In ~) 
Advance paid to farmers for which no agreement have been entered 500,000 79,787,290 
Advances paid to farmers for which agreements have been executed in the name of company. - 97,468,476 
Advances paid to farmers for which agreements have been executed in the name of nominees of company. - 3,576,170 

Note 32. 
The accumulated losses of the Company have resulted in complete erosion of the net worth of the Company. The Company's management is, however, of the view that 
the said erosion is temporary in nature as the Company has made strategic investments in certain assets/ projects, the proceeds of which would when fructified, would 
result in turnaround of the Company. The Company to that extent does not consider the erosion of the net worth as an impediment to its status as a going concern. 

Note33. Contingent Liability 

As at As at I Particulars 
31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017 

Claims against the Company, not acknowledged as debts on account of:-

Properties purchased pending registration and other formalities under different statutes, for which Amount not ascertainable 
confirmations are pending. with regards to consideration paid for the purchase of land through aggregator. - at present 

Income Tax matters under appeal with IT AT for the Financial Year 2008-09 1,298,946 

Note 34. 
In the opinion of the board of Directors of the Company, all the items of current assets, current liabilities & loans and advances continue to have a realisable value of 
at! east the amount at which they are stated in the balance sheet 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

FOR L.j. KOTHARI & CO. 
Firm Registration No. 105313W 
Chartered Accountants 

... , _ __ __.1. 

LALIT KOTHARI 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 30917 

Mumbai 
Date: 21st june, 2018 

DIN: 03134932 

G~ 
RAjEEVAN PARAMBAN 

Director 
DIN: 03141200 

Date: 21st june, 2018 



Heddle Knowledge Private Limited 

Assessment Year: 2018-2019 

NOTES FOR TAX AUDIT U/5 44AB OF THE INCOME TAX ACT, 1961 

Clauses:-

13(a) Accounting policies followed by the Company are stated in Note 2 to the financial 
statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018. 

16(d) Contributions received from employees, considered under section 2(24) (x) and 
disclosed under the clause 20(b) as per the consistent accounting practice, are not 
credited to Statement of Profit & Loss. 

17 Disclosure under clause 17 is made on the basis of property registered during the 
year. The Stamp Duty Ready Reckoner Value of Non-Agriculture Land is 
considered instead of Agriculture Land since the Department of Registration and 
Stamps, Maharashtra has considered Stamp Duty Ready Reckoner Value of Non­
Agriculture Land at the time of registration of agreements whereas it is observed 
that the Company has sold agricultural plots of land during the year. 

18 Written down value of block of assets as on 01-04-2017 is taken as per Returns/ 
Financials filed along with the Income Tax Return for Assessment Year 2017-2018. 

Classification of block of assets is as compiled by the assesse and being a technical 
matter accepted by the tax auditors, as correct. 

Date 1 Month in case of additions to fixed assets put to use are as certified by the 
Management. 

Depreciation is computed as per Section 32 of the Income-tax Act, 1961. 

Non Depreciable Building is not considered in the block as it was charged under 
the head Income from House Property. 

22 In our opinion, as the assessee has neither paid nor provided for any interest 
payable to Micro Enterprises or Small Enterprises as per the MSMED Act, 2006, 
hence the question of any interest inadmissible does not arise. We a lso invite 
attention to Note No. 14 of the notes to Accounts disclosing information required 
to be disclosed under clause 22 of the 3CD Report. 

26(A) The information relating to amounts not allowed in the assessment of any 
preceding previous year have been determined on the basis of Return of Income 
filed by the assesse, wherever assessments are yet to be completed. 



26(8) The disclosure under this clause is restricted to liab ilities which were incurred in 
the previous year and were outstanding as at the end of the relevant previous year 
based on the requ irements of section 438, whereby specified expenditure are 
allowable only in the year of payment, irrespective of the year in which the 
liability is incurred and debited to the statement of Profit and Loss. Considering 
the same, reporting under this clause is disclosed for such unpaid amounts which 
are to be tested for disallowability. 

Input Tax Credit (lTC) or any other indirect tax, levy, cess, imposed, etc passed 
through the statement of Profit & Loss account. Since sales tax, goods & service tax 
(GST) and service tax collected during the year and paid do not pass through the 
statement of Profit & Loss account, according to the consistent accounting practice 
fo llowed by the Company, they are not considered as revenue receipts. 

27 Based on the recommendation of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, 
in its publication "Guidance Note on Tax Audit under Section 44AB of the Income­
tax Act", expenditure of earlier year means expenditure which arose or accrued in 
an earlier year and which does not include any expenditure though of an earlier 
yea r but for which the liability to pay has crystalized during the year. Income of 
earlier year does not include write backs of excess provisions made in earlier 
years and also excludes other credits which are received during the year and 
accounted as and when claims are made and/or admitted or whenever arisen. 

31(a) The requirement is understood to mean, it does not cover loans from banks, 
financial institutions and trade deposits. 

31(b) Immovable property in the nature of inventories have not been considered for 
the purpose of this sub clause. 

34(a) Based on recommendation of the ICAI, in the supplementary guidance note on tax 
audit under Section 44 AB of income tax act, 1961, the reporting requirement 

under clause (a) is understood as restricted to the specific non compliance stated 
under Clause (b). Tax deducted at source on salary has been ve rified on the basis of 

the declaration of income made by the employee of the company. 

35 As the company is construction company Clause 35(a)(b) are not app licable. 



General:-

1. It is not possible for us to certify whether the payment in excess of Rs. 10,000/­
made by cheques has been made by crossed account payee cheque or bank draft, 
as the necessary evidence is not in the possession of the assessee. 

2. The management certifies that all expenses claimed in the Profit & Loss account 
have been incurred for business purpose. 

3. The management certifies that all expenses incurred and claimed in the profit and 
loss account are in the nature of revenue expenses and that no expenses of a 
capital nature have been claimed in the profit and loss account, during the year. 

4. The closing stock is prepared, valued and quantified by the management of the 
company. The same is verified on Sample check I test check basis depending on 
the size and nature of the company and the number of transaction entered into 
during the year. 

5. Debtors, Creditors and Loans and advances are subject to confirmations, 
reconciliation and adjustments and are considered payable/realizable, as the case 
may be. 

6. In the opinion of the management, all items of Non- current assets, Non- Current 
Liabilities, Current Assets, Current Liabilities and Loan and Advances continues to 
have a realizable value of at least the amounts at which they are stated in the 
balance sheets. 

7. Depending upon facts of each case and based on management evaluation and after 
due evaluation of legal aspects, claim against the company if any, not 
acknowledged as debts are treated as contingent liab ilities and disclosed in 
financial statements. In the opinion of the management, the company does not 
have any liabilities, which have not been provided for, other than contingent 
liabilities as disclosed in note 33 of Financial Statements. 

8. There are no Indirect Tax refunds, during the year that is in the nature of income 
assessable to tax for the year. 

9. The management certifies that it has not incurred any expenses in the nature of 
penalty or fine or in contravention of any law. 

10. We have verified the compliance with the provisions of Chapter XVII-B regarding 
the deduction of tax at source and regarding the payment thereof to the credit of 
the Central Government in accordance with the Auditing Standards generally 
accepted in India which include test checks and the concept of materiality. Such 



audit procedures did not reveal any significant non-compliance with the 
provisions of Chapter XVII-B. 

11. The management further certifies that there are no demand I refund under the 
central Excise Act, Customs act or any other acts I laws 

12. During the year sale of properties include sale of parcels of Agricultu ra l land 
which had been converted from capital asset into stock-in-trade in earlier fi nancial 
years. 

13. The management of the firm certifies that all demand 1 refund during the previous 
yea r under tax laws other than Income Tax Act, 1961 and Wealth tax Act, 1957 are 
disclosed in the financials of the firm. 

14. Supporting of some of the expenses may not be available, hence the examination 
has been based on vouchers and entries made in the books of accounts. 

15. The registration I identification number and other related deta ils with regards 
indirect taxes like excise duty, service tax, sales tax, customs duty, etc. is taken 
from documents in possession of the company. The details provided in the audit 
report with regards the same cover only disclosures purposes. 



M. H. DALAL& ASSOCIATES 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS OF TWENTY FIVE SOUTH REALTY LIMITED 

Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements 

301/308, Balaji Darshan, 
Tilak Road, Santacruz (W) 
Mumbai - 400 054. 
Phone · 2649 4807 

: 2649 0862 
E-ma1l : mhdalal@gmall.com 
Website : www dalalgroup 1n 

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of TWENTY FIVE SOUTH 
REAL TV LIMITED ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2018 
the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the statement of cash 
flows and the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the 
sign ificant accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein after referred to as 
"lnd AS financial statement"). 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters .stated in Section 134(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial 
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance 
(including other comprehensive income), cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in 
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian 
Accounting s·tandards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant 
rules issued thereunder. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the lnd AS financia l 
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these lnd AS financial statements based on our 
audit. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing 
standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the 
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 
143(10) ofthe Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the lnd AS financial 
statements are free from material misstatement. 



An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the 
disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the I nd AS financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation of the Ind AS 
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances . An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the 
Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind AS financial 
statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements. 

Opinion 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the financial position of the Company as at 
31st March, 2 018, and its financial loss for the year (including other comprehensive income), 
its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date. 

Other Matter 

The audited financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2017, was carried out and 
reported by Dalal Doshi & Associates, vide their unmodified audit report dated 26th May, 2017, 
whose report has been furnished to us by the management and which has been relied upon by 
us for the purpose of our audit of the financial statements. Our audit report is not qualified in 
respect of this matter. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

I. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order") issued by the 
Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the 
"Annexure A" statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order; 

II. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of 
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit; 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books; 

(c) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive 
income), the statement of cash flows and the statement of changes in equity dealt with 
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account; 



(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rule issued 
thereunder; 

(e) Based on information received from the directors of the Company as at 31st March, 
2018, along with details available on record, we are of the opinion that two of the 
Directors of the Company stand disqualified from being appointed I continue as 
Directors of the Company in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

We are however informed by the management that at the signing date of the balance 
sheet, the Company has received a declaration from two disqualified directors who 
have confirmed that all the Companies with respect to whom their disqualification has 
occurred have subsequent to the reporting date and before the signing date have 
complied with the annual filings and thereby condoned the delay under Condonation of 
Delay Scheme of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide circular no. 16/2017 dated 29th 
December 2017. 

(t) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting 
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate 
report in "Annexure B"; and 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance 
with Rulell of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to 
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us : 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial 
position in its lnd AS financial statements; 

ii. The Company did not have any long term contract including derivative contracts 
for which there were any material foreseeable losses; and 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 
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ANNEXURE"A"REFERRED TO IN OUR REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF TWENTY FIVE SOUTH 
REALTY LIMITED ON THE INO AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st 
MARCH. 2018; 

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and in terms of the information and 
explanations given to us, we state that: -

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets; 

(b) The Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the Management in a phased 
manner, designed to cover all the items over a period of three years, which in our 
opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of 
its assets. According to information and explanation given to us, no material 
discrepancies were noticed on such verification; 

(c) The Company does not own any immovable property therefore provision of 
clause 3(i)( c) of the said order are not applicable; 

(ii) The physical verification of inventory has been conducted at the reasonable intervals 
by the management during the year. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification 
of inventory as compared to book records were not material and have been 
appropriately dealt with in the books of accounts; 

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
granted any secured or unsecured loans to companies; firms or other parties covered 
under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act'). Therefore, provision of 
clause 3(iii), 3(iii)(a), 3(iii)(b), 3(iii)(c) of the said order are not applicable to the 
company; 

(iv) The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments, or provided any 
guarantees or any security to the parties covered under section 185 and 186. 
Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(iv) of the said Order are not applicable to the 
Company; 

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public during the year, Therefore 
the provisions of clause 3 (v) of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 are not 
applicable to the Company; 

(vi) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanation given to us, the 
company has not crossed the threshold limit as prescribed by the Central Government 
under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act for maintenance of cost records and 
hence the provision for maintenance of records are not applicable to the Company: 



(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the 
Company examined by us, in our opinion, except for dues in respect of Service 
tax and Provident fund the company is generally regular in depositing 
undisputed statutory dues, including Tax deducted at source, duty of customs, 
Value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the 
appropriate authorities. The extent of arrears of statutory dues outstanding as at 
Balance sheet date, for a period extending six months from the date they became 
payable are Rs 54,104/- relating to Service tax including interest thereon and Rs. 
2,999 related to Provident Fund. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the 
Company examined by us, there are no dues of Tax deducted at source, Custom 
Duty, Sales tax including value added tax, Excise Duty or cess. The dues related to 
income tax are under dispute the amount of which is not ascertainable. 

(viii) On the basis of records examined by us and the information and explanations given to 
us, the Company has not defaulted in payment of dues to any financial institutions, 
bank and debenture holders. 

(ix) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term 
loans raised during the year has partly been used for repayment of existing loan and 
applied for the purposes for which they were obtained. 

(x) Based on the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given 
by the management, we report that no fraud by the company or on the company by its 
officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year; 

(xi) The company has not paid or provided managerial remuneration during the year and 
hence, the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable. 
Accordingly, the provision of Clause 3(xi) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company; 

(xii) In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of 
clause 3 (xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company; 

(xiii) The Company has entered into transactions with related parties are in compliance 
with the Section 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions 
have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the applicable 
accounting standards; 

(xiv) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares 
or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the provision of 
clause 3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company; 



(xv) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations 
given by the management, the Company has not entered into any non-cash 
transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions 
of clause 3 (xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company; and 

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45 lA of the Reserve Bank 
of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xvi) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company; 
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"ANNEXURE B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE 
IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TWENTY FIVE SOUTH REALTY LIMITED 

Report on the lnternal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub~section 3 of Section 143 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of TWENTY FIVE 
SOUTH REALTY LIMITED ("the Company") as of 31st March, 2018 in conjunction with our 
audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (lCAl). These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of 
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial 
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls 
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the 
"Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be 
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, to the extent applicable to an 
audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial 
Controls and, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial 
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 
material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of 
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design 
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risks. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the lnd AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting. 



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial 
reporting includes those policies and procedures that; 

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and 

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect 
on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to 
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion. the Company has. in all material respects, an adequate internal financial 
controls system over financia l reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 
reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March, 2018, based on the internal control 
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company, considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India. 
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.. TWENTY FIVE SOUTH REALTY LIMITED 

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2018 
Particulars 

ASSETS 

1. Non-Current Assets 
(a) Property, plant and equipment 
(b) Capital work-in-progress 
(c) Financial assets 

(i) Other financi al assets 
(d) Current tax assets (Net) 
(e) Deferred tax assets (Net) 
Total Non-Current Assets 

2. Current Assets 
(a) Inventories 
(b) Financial assets 

(i) Cash and cash equivalents 
(ii) Bank balances other than {i) above 
(iii) Other financial assets 

(c) Other current assets 
Total Current Assets 
TOTAL ASSETS 

II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
1. Equity 

(a) Equity share capital 
(b) Other equity 
Total Equity 

2. Liabilities 
(i) Non-Current Liabilities 

(a) Financial Liabilities 
(i) Borrowings 
(ii) Other Financial Liabilities 

(b) Provisions 
Total Non-Current Liabilities 

(ii) Current Lia bilities 
(a) Financial Liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 
(ii) Trade payables 
(iii) Other financial liabilities 

(b) Other current liabilities 
(c) Provisions 
Total Current Liabilities 
Total Liabilities 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 

As per our report of even date 
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Date: 25th May, 2018 

Note 
No, 

3 
3 

4 
5 
6 

8 

9 
10 
4 
7 

11 
12 

13 
15 
16 

13 
14 
15 
17 
16 

As at 

31st March, 2018 
~ 

29,555,063 
85,295,729 

39,500 
21,243,543 
62,877,338 

199,011,173 

11,550,719,457 

166,234,662 
1,434,341 

95,594,929 
166.905.638 

11,980,889,02 7 
12,179,900,200 

481,350 
1,708,835,423 

1,709.316.773 

6,6 77,354,77 4 
24,615,161 

1,143_221 
6 ,703.113.156 

438,209,975 
98,487,676 

1,693,097,094 
1,537,429,821 

245.705 
3, 767,470,271 

10.470.583.427 
12,179,900,200 

As at 

31st March, 2017 

' 
4,570,967 

64,738,711 

39,500 
14,524,106 
48,339.215 

132.212,499 

9,838,653,252 

95,933,272 
1,341.570 

44,417,435 
176.482.598 

10,156,828,127 
10,289,040,626 

481,350 
1,762,370,188 

1,762,851.538 

4,060,394,758 
17,029,553 

951.031 
4,078,375.342 

316,766,469 
195,130,933 

2,507,487,509 
1,428,169,644 

259191 
4.447,813,746 
8,526.189,088 

10,2891040,626 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

09~!:, 
DIRECTOR 

DIN 02960155 

~Ill 
DIRECTOR 

DIN 03142640 

Mumbai 
Date: 25th May, 2018 



TWENTY FIVE SOUTH REALTY LIMJTEO 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018 
Particulars 

I Income 
Revenue from Operations 
Other Income 
Total Income 

II Expenses 
Costs Of Construction 1 Development 
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Stock-in-Trade and Work-in· 
Progress 
Employee Benefits Expense 
Finance Costs 
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 
Other Expenses 
Total Expenses 

Ill Profit I (Loss) before Tax 
IV Tax Expense 

(1) Current Tax 
(2) Deferred tax (charge) 1 credit 
(3) Excess I (Short) provision for taxation in respect of earlier years 

V Profit I (Loss) for the Year 
VI Other Comprehensive Income 

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 
Remeseaurement of the net defined benefit plans 

VII Total comprehensive income for the year 

VIII Earning per equity share of nominal value of' 101- each 
Basic and Diluted 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 

As per our r ep on of even date 
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Membership No. F-109049 
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Note 

No. 

18 
19 

20 

21 
22 
23 
24 
25 

26 

Year ended Year ended 

31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017 

' IP 

83,889,757 
11.440.365 743.221 

95!330,122 743.2Zl 

419,306,437 474,838,684 
32,812,081 

(1,709,379,723) ( 1, 708,124.594) 
27,278,899 31,629,124 

1,263,528,170 1.059,668,069 
12,773,962 876,445 

117,338.413 202,626,010 
163,658,239 61,513,738 

(68,328,117) (60,770,517) 

14,538,123 17,456,937 

(160,775] 
14.538.123 17,296,162 

(53,789,994) (43,474,355) 

2551229 91,510 
(53,534, 765) (43,382,845) 

(1,117) (903) 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

C#.:,;:;K~ 
!)[RECTOR 

DIN 0£960155 

D~ 
DIRECTOR 

DIN 03142640 

Mumbai 

Date: 25th May, 2018 



TWENTY FIVE SOUTH REALTY LIMITED 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31'' MARCH. 2018 
Particulars 

I. CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES' 
Net profit/floss) before taxation as per Statement of Profit and Loss 
Add 1 (Less): 
Finance costs 
Depreciation and amortisation 
Interest income 
Rcmeseaurement of the net defined benefit liabiliy 1 asset 
Loss on foreign currency fluctuation (Net) 
Excess provision written hack 

Operating profit before working capital changes 
Add I (Less) : 
(Increase) in inventories 
(Increase) I Decrease in Other Current & Non current Asset 
(Increase) I Decrease in Loans and advances 
Increase I (Decrease) in trade and other payables 
Direct taxes paid 

Net cash flow from operating activities 

II. CASH El OWS ARISING FROM INYESJING ACTIVITIES 
Inflow I (Outflow) on account of: 
Interest income received 
Decrease in loans given 
Purchase of fixed assets 
Net cash flow from investing activities 

IJI. CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVJIIES 
Inflow I (Outflow) on account of: 
Proceeds from Long Term Borrowing 
Proceeds from Short Term Borrowing 
Finance costs paid 
Net cash !low from financing activities 
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (I+ II+ III) 
Add: Balance at the beginning of the year 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 

Components of cash and cash equivalents (Refer Note 9} 
Cash on hand 
Balance.~ with banks 
· in Current accounts 
·in Deposits with maturity of less than three months 

The accompanving notes are an integral part of the financial statements 
Note: 

3ht March, 2018 31st March, 2017 

" 
(68.328,117) ( 60,770,51 7) 

1,266,619,204 1,025,665.407 
12,773,962 876,445 

(11.440,365) (737,852) 
255,229 91,510 
561,647 456,528 

(52,352,742) 
1.216.416.935 1.026.352.038 
1,148,088,818 965,581,521 

(1,712,066,205) (1.712.481.880) 
('J2. 771) 14,473.260 

( 41,602,304) (130.000,408) 
98,960,011 525.859,110 
(6,719,439) (5.266,493) 

(1.661. 520. 708} {1,307,416,411) 
(513,431,890) {341,834,890) 

11.442,135 739,126 
29,687,081 

(58.315.075] (65,020,528) 
(46.872,940) (34,594,321) 

1.656, 960,0 16 84!l,BOO,OOO 
121,413,506 1R7.390,463 

(1.147.797,3021 ((,02.442.445) 
630,606,220 433,748,018 

70,301,390 57,318,807 
95.933.272 38,614,465 

166,234,662 95,933.272 

27,313 28.120 

156,253,043 85,%0,R4fi 
9,954,306 9,954,306 

166,234,662 95,933,272 

The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS· 7) statement of cash flows. 

1\s pe• our report or even date 

FOR M. H. DALAL & ASSOCIATES 
Firm Registration No. - 112449 W 
CHARTERED ACCQU, ANTS 

Devang Dalal 
PARTNeR 
Membership No. F·109049 

Mumbai 
Date: 25th May, 2018 

For and on beha~d=~ 

l ¥-;USHANK SHAH 
DIRECTOR 

DIN 02'J601SS 

Jt 
DIRECTOR 

DIN 03142640 

Mumbai 
Date: 25th May. 2018 



TWENTY FIVE SOUTH REALTY LJMITED 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018 

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 
As at 01st April, 2016 
Changes in equity share capital 
As at 31rt March, 2017 
Changes in equity share capit<Jl 
As at 31rt March. 2018 

B. OTHER EQUITY {Refer Note 12) 
Reserves and Surplus (Amount') 

Securities Premium Debenture General reserve 
reserve Redemotion Reserve 

Bala nce at 1st April, 2016 1,866,259,694 

Profit I (Loss) for the vear . 
Remeasurement of net 
defined benefit recognised in 
other comprehensive income 

Bala n ce at 31st March, 
1,866,259,694 

2017 

Balance at 1st April, 2 017 1,866,259,694 . 

Profit 1 (l.oss) for the year . 

Remeasurement of net 
defined benefit recognised in . 
other comprehensive income 
Balance at 31st March, 

1,866,259,694 
2018 

The accompanying notes are an lntegnl part of the financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

FOR M. H. DALAL & ASSOCIAT!!S 
Firm Registration No. - 112449 W 

~·=J'"'' 
Devang Dala l 
PARTNER 
Membership No. F-109049 
Mu.mbal 
Date: 25th May, 2018 

. 

. 

Notes 

11 

Retained Earnings 

(60,506,661) 

[43.474.355) 

91,510 

(103.889.506) 

(103,889.506} 

(53,789,994) 

255,229 

(157,421-,271) 

Amount 

' 
481.350 

4-81,350 

481,350 

Total 

1,805,753,033 

( 43,4 74,3 55) 

91,510 

1,762,370.188 

1,762,370,188 

(53.789,994) 

255,229 

1.708,835,423 

For and on behalf of the BQard of Directors 

/:-?~~ 
' ~ RUSHANK SHAH 

DIRECTOR 
DIN 02960155 

.. Q J/ 
~!~~ DIRECTOR 

DIN 03142640 

Mumbai 
Date: 25th May, 2018 



, • NOTES TO THE fiNANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR TilE YEAR EN OF.[) :l1J;T MARCH, Z018 

Note 1. STATEMENT OF IGNIFJCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

1 1 Company Overview 
Twenty Fiv~ South Reulty l..fmited is " list<'d public limit•d company rlom icilt'd in lndla, incorporated undt'r rh~ provosion of th~ Comp~uies 
Act, 1 '156 r•ad with the general corcular 1.~ I 2013 dat•d l~ S•ptr.mber.2U13 of'th~ Mini<try nf Corporate Afl'airs on rc<pect of s t•ctioJo 133 of' 
the Cotnpani•s Act, 2013 Tho! Company is engaged in real e<t:ate business of' cun•tructlnn a nd developrnent of re<ldential and cummerdal 
pr~mts~s 

ll The financial <tiitements ar~ approved for issue by the f.on~pany's lloanl uf Directo rs on 25th May. 2018 

Note 2. Si)!nilicant Accountln~ Pollcies fo llo wed b y the Co mpany 

I. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL ~IATEMENTS 
(f) Compllanct! with tnd AS 
These financial statement.< have been p repared in accordan"" with the Indian ActOundrog Standards (hereinafter rtferred to as the 'lnd AS') 
as notitio;d by Ministry of Corpurate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 ofthe Cumpanie< Act, 2013 ('Act') read with nf the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) 1\ul•s. 2015 as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act 

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all rho per iods presented in the 1lnanclal statement' 

[If) Historical cost conve ntion 

The financial statemen ts havo; been prepa red on a historical co <t basis, except for th e l'o llowing: 
1) cer tain fina ncial assets and liabilities that are mea<urcd at fair valu e; 

2) assets held fur sale · measured al luwer of carrying amount nr fair value Jess cost tu sell; 
3) defin .. d benefit plans · piJn asset.< measured at f'ai r v:tlue; 

f ill) Current non-current classification 
All the asset< and liahilities have b•en cla«ified as current or non-current, who;rever applicable, as per the oporating cycle of th~ Company 
as p"r the guidanc<.> set out in Schedule Ill to the Jlct Operating cycle rur the bu<incss activities of the Com pany covers the duration of tl>c 
project/ contract indu<l in~t the defett liabil ity period, wherever applicohlc, and e xtends upto the realisation of r.ceivables [inclu ding 
retention monie<, if any) within the credi t period normally applicable to the resp e<tive project. 

II Si)!nlllont a<:countii)J! JU dJlements, emmates and aaumption.s 
The proparaliou of rinand " l statements in conformity Y.1th the re.:ugnition and measurement principles ofind AS requiru management 
to make judgement<, estimates a nd as;umptions that aff ... ct the rO>ported balancts of revenu<>.<, expenses. assets and liabilit ies and the 
accompanying disclosuru, and the disclosure "'contingent liabilities. Uncertainty nbout these assumption.• a nd estimatt's could result 
in outcomes that r•qulre a material adjustment I:Q the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. 

a) ludJ!'ements 
Classiflcalion of p roperty 

The c<~mpany determin•s whether a prope rty is d assificd as iuv.stment prnp.,rty or inventory prop.,rty Investment pr<Jp• rty 
comprises land a n~ buildings that ar e not occupied substantially for u.•c by, or In the op<.>rations of, the comp~ny, nor lor sale in th" 
ordinary cours~ of business. but are held primarily to earn rental income and ~apil.al appreciation These buildings a rc .ubstaotially 
renr,;,d tu !Enonts a nd not Intended to be sold In the ordinary course of bosin~s~ Inventory comprises property that i< held for sale in 
th• "rdinary course or busine.<.< Principally, tb""" are f1ropcrties that the m mpany dr.vctops and intends to .ell br.fnre Ot on compl•tiun 
of c:on~truction 

b) Es!lmates and assumpt1ons 
Tho key assumption• cnncernmg the future anrl other key source< of e<timatlon unl't r t.ainty at the reJ>orting date. that have a <i.~:nificant 
rrs k ol causing a maren al al.fj ostmentto th.<.> carrying a mou nts of assets and liabil ities with in the n~xt finan cial year, arc described below 
The Company based 1l' us"rmptions and estimate< nn parameters avai lable when the financial statement< w"r~ prepared lixistin~ 
circum stanco;s and u.<su mpttons about future develo pments, however, may cha nge due to market changes or ci rcum stances arising that 
are beyond tho control of th e Comfl"ny Such changes a re reflected in the assumption< whe n th.,y occur 

i) Revenue Recojtnition 
The Company uses the r•rce ntage·of-compll'tiun method in accounting fur rt< revenue The percentage ul completion is measured by 
reference to the stage of the projo;cts a nd contracts determine<! based on the proportion of rontract costs Incur red for work performC"d 
to d~t• bear to the esnmateol total contract costs. Co$!.' of the proiect are base<! "" the management's estimate ur the cn<t to be incurred 
uptn th~ con1pletion of the projects and include co<t of land, Floor Space Index [FSI) , materials, services and other expenses attributable 
to the projects F.stimatcs of project Income. as well as project costs, nrc reviewed perioolkally Costs expended have been u<ed to 
measure progress towards co mpletion of work. Provisions for estimated los:.-s, if any .. on uncompl eted contract.' arc recorded in th e 
peri<>d in which such losses hccome prob~ble based on the expt>cted contract e.ti mntcs at th e reporting da te 

ill E;t1mallon of net rea lisable va lu e for inventory 
fnvCil tory are stated at the lower of cost and net rcS~Jisabl e valu• (NRV) 
NRV for comp.letw property IS assessed hy reference ro market conditions and prices exi>'ting at the reportmg dare anti is determinr.d 
by the Company. based on t·omparnhle tmns .. ctlons identified by th.e Company f<Jr properties in the same geograph ical market s erving 
the same real estate se!(ment · 

NRV in respect of inwntnry under construtt oon f incnmplct~ prvjerts rs asse.<.<"d with reference to mark• t prices at the reporting date 
fnr similar COilliJfete<lflropercy,less e.<hm;otcd cnscs to complete mnstructiom and an estimate of the time value of money to the dat." of' 
('0 11\p)~tiOH 

Wi th respect to Ad va nce f:: JVC n tu l;,nd owners. the 1\l!t recoverable vo luc is based un the prese nt volu c of future cash f).,w,. whoch 
dep~nd' on the t!Stimatc ot, a mnng othe r thi ngs, the li kelihood that a project wi ll he cn mplctcd, th~ expo!cted date nf completion, th e 
di.s:cnunt rate us~d and the t.lliti marion of saJe prices and construction c~1.s 

Iii I lncume tax Provisons are ha•od on Company's jud)!emcnt of Allowances/Di."<aflowance considering rotnputdtion ullncomc 
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Ill REVENUE RECOGNITION 
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that th e economic benefits will acrTue to tile Company and the revenue can be 
reliably measured and also when it is reasona bly certain that tfle ultimate collection will be made and that there is buyers' commitment 
to make the complet.. payment 

A. Revenue from Construction Activity 
L The company has adopted tfle principles of revenue recognition on the basis of • Guidance note on Accounting for Real F.•totc 

Transactions" issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. for the entitles to whom JndAS is applicable 
ii Revenue from sale or•nnished properties 1 build inll• 1 rights' is recognised on transfer of all significant risks and rewards of ownership 

of such properties I bu ilding I rights, as per the terms of the contracts entered Into with buyer/(s), which generally coi ncides with the 
flnning of the sales contnrts/ agreements. except for contract.' where the Company still has obligations to perform substantial acts 
eve11 after the transfer o( all signifkant risks and rewards 

iii Revenue from sale or incumpletc properties 1 projects is recognized on the bL<i~ nf percentage of completion method only if the 
following thro;sholds hove been met; 

a. All critical approvals necessary for the commencement of the project have been obtained; 
b The expenditure incurred on constmction and development costs, excluding land costs. is not less than 25% of the total estimated 

construction and development costs of the project; 
c Atleast 25% of the saleable project area i~ ~r.cured by agreements with the b11yers; and 
d. Atleast 10% of the sale co nsideration nf each sold unit has been received at the reporting date in respect of such contract.< with tfle 

buyers 

Further, revenue recocnized in the aforesaid manner and related casts are both restricted to 90% un til tbe construction activity and 
r~ated formalities are sobstantiaUy completed Recognition or revenue relating to agreements entered into with the buyers, which are 
subject to fulftUment of obligations I conditions impo.<ed on the Company by •tJtutnry a utflorities is postponed till <11ch obligations ar~ 
substantially discharged. 

f..<tim.1ted costs ~Ia line to construction 1 devel11pm.,nt ore charged to the statement of profit and Joss in pr<>portion with the revenue 
recognized during the year. The balance co•t• are carried as part of 'Incomplete Projects' under inventories under current assets 
Amounts receivable I payable are retlected as Trade RecdvHble<l Unbillcd Receivabl.s or Advances from Customers, respectively. alter 
considering income recognized in the aforesaid manner. 

iv. Losses expected to be Incurred on projects und er con£truction, are charged in the statement of profit and Joss In the period in which the 
losses are known. 

v. Costs of the project< are based on the management's estimate of the cost to be Incurred upto the completion of the projects and include 
cost of land, l'loor Space Index (FSI), matmals, servic:« and other npense• attributable to the projects. Estimates nf project income, as 
well as projel'tcosts. arc reviewed periodically. 

B. Revenue from Tradln1 Materials: 
Revenue from .sale of trading material is recognised when significant ri•ks and rewards associated with the sale of material is 
tr.IMferred to the buyer 

C. Interest 
Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it Is probable that rhe econa mic benefit< will now to the Company and the 
amount of income can be measu red reliably. Interest inrome is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal out.ta nding at the 
effective interest r•te applicable. which is the rate that exactly discounts estlm~ted future cash receipts th ruugh the expected life of the 
financial asset to that asset's net t arrying amount on onirial recognition 

D. Others 
kevenu•s f Income and Costs{ lixpenditure arc g¢nerally accounted on accrual. as they are earned or incurred 

IV PROPERTY PLANT ANO EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION f AMMORTISA TION 

A. On transition tu lnd AS, the Contpa ny has opted to conti nue with the carrying values measured under the previous GAAP as at 1st April, 
2015 of its Property, Plant Bnd Equipment and Investmen t property and use that t·arrying value as the deemed cost on the date of 
transition i.e 1st Ap rll, 2 0 IS. 

B. Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition or construction ind~ding attributable interest and finance cost, If any till the da1" 
of acquisition/installation of the assets, lt'ss accumulated dcpreciation/amorUsatlon and accumulated impairment losses, if any 

t. Subsequent expenditure relating to Property, Plant and Equipment is capitdised only wht'n it Is probable that future e<:onomic benefits 
associated with the item will now to the Company a nd the ca•t of the item can be measured reliably All othor repairs and maintenance 
costs are charged to the Statement of Proftt and Loss as incurred The cost and related acc~mulated depreciation are eliminated from 
tfle financial statements. either on disposal or when retired from active un and the r£>sultant gain or los~ are recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. 
Depreciation is provided based on useful life of the assets as prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 Depreciation on 
odditions to assets or on sale/disposal of assets is calculated pro·rata from tbe month or sucb addition, or upto the month or Stlc:h 
sale/disposal, as the case may be 

wet Cate~tory 
Plant and Maohinery (Mivan System) 
Computer 
omce F.quipments 
Furniture and Fixture 

Eslimated useful life fln Vurs) 
3 
3 
5 

10 

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depredation nf property plant equipment are reviewed at each financial year and 
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YF.AR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2.018 
V FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

A financial ins trument Is any contract that gives rise to a financ1al asset of one entity and a finanwli liability or oqulty Instrumen t of another 
entitY 
Investments and Fina ncial Assets 

i. TnitiaJ rrcognition 
Pinancial ass('tS are subsequently measured at anwrtised cust if these financial assets are held within a bus ine>S model with an objective tu 
hold these assets ln order tCJ collect c.:ontrat:tua l c4t.sh flows and the contractu.JI term.s of tile financial ass~t gi~e n"e on !flt!Cirie-d date.c; to ca~h 
nows that are sul<ly payment• of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding lntcrc<t incnmo from thc~e finnncial asset5 is 
included in finance income using the effective interest rate c·EIR") method Impairment gains or IOSSE'S arising 01\ these assets are 
recognised in the StatementofProfitantll.os.~ 

H. Subsequent me asurement 
For purpose• of sub.,oquent mea<uremeot, financml assets are classified in followinl: catr.Ji:Oric.•· 

a} Financi<d Anets at Amortised Cost 
A financial asset Is subsequeotly 1neasured at a mortised cost if it is held within a bus;ness model whose obiatovc is tu htJid the 3Sset in order 
to oollei:t cont.-actual Cl<h nnw• and the contractual terms of the fina ncial asset give rise on specified dates to ca sh nows that arc solely 
payments of principal and interest on me principal amount outst:andmg. 

b) financiAIAsntll Meuured at fair Value 
~inandal as.sl::'tS are m~as:ured at fair value through OCI if these ftnancjal as-sets are he-ld within a business model with an objective to ho)d 

the.•e asset< in order to collect contr~ct•al cash Oows or to sell these financial ass<'ts and the contractual terms of the fioanclal asset give rise 
on specified dates to casb Oows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding Movements in the 
carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, inter<st rewnue and l'orolgn exchange 
gains and lo.•.••s which arc rccn~niscd in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Further. in cases where the Company has mndc an irrevocable 
election based on its business model, for its investment5 which are classified as equity instruments, the subsequent changes In fair value are 
recognized in other cotnprehenslve inmme 

Financial asset not measured at amortised cost or at fair value through OCI is carried at I'VTI'L 

iii De· recognition offinaadal Assets: 
The Company tle-rocognis~~" flnanciol a<.<ct only whr.n the contractual rights to thr. cash flows from thr. •~~ct. expire. or It transfers the 
financial •sset and substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity If the Company neither transfers nor 
retains substantially all the risk~ and rewards of ownership and continu.s to control the transferred as.<et. the Com pony recognizes it< 
retainetl interest In tbe as~ets and an ai<ociated liahility for amount< it may have tn pay 

If the Co mpany retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership ur a transferred finandal asset. the CompMy continues to 
recognise the nnauctal 3$S~t and also r~tcognises a colh.Jteralised borrowing for the proceeds received 

ll Equity Instrumenu a nd Financial UablliU"s 
Financ•all iohilities ~nd equ ity Instruments issued by Ute Company are classified according to the substance of the contracrual arrangements 
<>ntered into and th e dell nitlons of a rlna odalliability anLI an equity instrument 

i Equity lnstrum~nts 

An equity mstrumcnt is any contract that evidences a residual int•rest m the assets or the Company arttr deducting all or its liabilities 
liquity instruments which are i:b11ed for cash are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct i.-ue ca<t< F.q ulty ln<trumenL< which are 
l<.<ued fnr cooold~rotion othc.r tha n cash are recorded at fair valu" oftbe equity instrument 

ii Financial Liabilities 

t.lnltial Recognition 
~1nant-.al liabilities are cla,..ified, at initial recognitioo, as financial liabilit ies at FVPL. loa ns a nd borrowings ~nd p;oyable.< a• appropr iate All 
financial liabilitil>< or~ recngnl~ed lnit:ially at fai r Vlllue a nd. in the case of loans and borrowings and payablcs. net of directly attributable 
transaction costs 

2. Subsequent Measurement 
The measurement of flnanclalliabilllles depend., on their das .. ification, as descrit>ed below: 
· Financial liabilities ~~ FVTPL 
Financial liabilities at FVTPL Include financial liabilities held ror trading and financial liabilities designated U()OII initial recognition as at 
FVTPL... ~inaodalllabilitle• are L"lassilied as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose or repurcha• lng in tb~ near term (;ain< or 
losses on liabilities h~ld for trading are recogni•ed in the Statement of Profit and l.os• 
Financial~toarantee cnntr~ct< i<~ucd l)y the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a 
loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to ntake a J>ayment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt Instrument Financial 
guarantee contraels ar~ r•cugnlsod initially as a liability at fair value, adju<ted for transaction co.<t< that ar~ directly attribut:::lble to the 
;,._<uancc of the guurantee Suh<cquently. the liability is measured at the higher of the amount <Jf l<>ss a llnwancc determined ~~ pr.r 
impairment requirementS of Jnd AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation Amortisation IS recognised as finance 
iocome m the Statement of Profit and Loss 
• Finandalliabllirtes .at amortised colt 

filter initial recognition, JOtere<t-hearlng loans and borrowings are subsequently measured •t amortised cost using the EIR method Any 
difference between the proceeds (net or transaction costs) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings Is recogn ised over the term of 
the borrowings In the Statement of Prorit and Loss Alnuttisetl cost is cakulated by taking into account any discount or premi um on 
acquisition and fees or cost• that ure an in tegral part of the F.IR The EIR amortisation i!< included •• finonce cost< In the Statement of Profit 
and l.os.s 

3. DerecogniUon of nnanclallnstruments 
The C:ompony derecognlzc.< a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial nsset expire or it transfers the 
fonarial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under lndAS 109 A financial liability (or a part or a financial liability) is 
derecoglllozetl from th • Company"s ha la nce <heel wheothl! obligation spec ified in the contract l< di.charged or cnnc<:ll~d or "xrire.• 

C Offsetti~ financiallnstnamenu 
Finauci:af assets and flna no at lntbllities are off!l>et and the net amount is reported in the R;JJance Sheet U then~ L'ii a currentJy enforce3ble legal 
right to oiT.et the rccognoscd ornount• and there is an intention to so:ttlc on a net basis to rcallsr. the a<•et< aod ""ttfc the lklhilitics 
simultaneously 

VI Derecor.nition of financial insrrument:s 
The C:ompaoy de recognizes a financial asset when the contractual rigllts to the cash flows from the finooclal asset expires or it tran.<fers the 
finacial asset and the transfer qualifies for der~cognition under JndAS 109. A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is 
d~recognized ftum the Company"s Bolo nee Sheet when the nhligation specified in the contract is discharxed or cancelled or expires 
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VII IMPAIRMENT 
a. Financial assets 

The Company measures the expected credit loss asscclated with it.< assets based on historical trend, industry practices and thP. business 
environment In which the entity operates or any other appropriate basis The impairment me!)1odology applied depends on whether there 
hu bee n a signific-ant increase in credit rl.-k 

b. No~t-lh•andal assets 
The Company assesses. at each reporting date. whether there is an indic-dtion that an asset may be impaired If any indication exist.<. or when 
annual impairment testing for an asset i.< rrquired. the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount An asset's rpcovorable amount Is 
the higher of an asset's or cosh-~ncrating unU's (CGU) fair value less casts of disposal and its value In use Recoverable amount is 
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset doe.< not generate cash inflows that are largely in<!ependcnt of those from oth~r auet< 
or xrnups of assets When the carrying •mount of an asset or CGU exceeds It< reraverohlc amount. the asset is considered impDirecl and is 
written down ro its recoverable amount 

In as<e<.<lng value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discountetl to their pre~ent value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the limo value of money and the risk< spcdfic to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, 
rece nt market transactions are taken into arrount If no such transactions can be Identified, an appropriate valuation model is used Thr<e 
calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other avDilabl c fair value 
indicators 

lmp.,irment losses, including impairment oa inventories, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss 

I. lntanclble ••sets and property, plant and equipment 
lntan1ible assets and property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability whencer eve11ts or d1anges in circumstances indicate 
that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable For the purpose of impairment testing. the recoverable amount (i.e the higher of the 
fair value less cast to sell and the value-ln· u.se) i• determint>d on an individual asset b•.<is unless the asset does not generate cash flows that 
are largely independent C>f those rram other assets. In such cases, th• reooverab!e amount Is determined for the CGU to which the asset 
belongs. 

n. Provisions 
A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event. the Company has a present legal or constructive ohligatian that is rtoasonably 
estimable, and it i< probable that an outflow of tt(lnomic benefits will be required to settle the obligation Provisions are determined by 
dis<ounting the expected future cash !lows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money a nd the 
risks specific to the liability 

Vlll TAXATION 
1. curre.nt Tax 

The tax cu rrently payable is based on taxable prot1t for the year. Taxable profit differs frum ' profit before tax' as reported in the liuancbl 
statement of profit and loss because of Items of Income or expense that""' t~~able or deductible In other years and It~ th~t are never 
taxable or deductible. Th• Company's current tax os calculated using rates that have been enacted or substantively eaactcd by the end of the 
reportln!l" period 

In case the Company is liable to pay income tax ujs 115)8 of Income Tax Mt, 1961 [I e MAT), the amount of tax paid in excess of normal 
income taX Js recognized as an asset [MAT Cre~it entitlement) only if there is convincing evidence for realization of such asset during the 
specified p•riod. MAT credit entitlement is reviewed at each Balance S.he"t date 

II. Deferred Tax 
Oeferrcd tax Is recognized on temporary diferences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statementS and 
the corresponding tax base.< used in the computJotlon of taxable profit Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized far all taxable 
remoorary differences. Deferred tax assets are g•nerally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is rrohahle 
that tauhle pro/its wi!J be availabl" agaln•t which thos<' deductible temporary differences can be utilized 

The ca rrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewrd at tho end of each reporting perlud ""d reduced to the extent that it is no luneer 
probable that suffiCient mxable profits will he available to allow all or part of the a<>et to b( recovered 

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at th~ tax rates tbatare expected to apply In the period in which the liability is seWed or the 
asset realiz~d. based on tax rates [3od tax laws} that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of th• reporting period 

'fhe measuremPnt of deferred tax liabilities ancJ assets reflects the tax consequenoes tllat would follow from the manner in which the 
Company rxpects, at the end of the reporting period. to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. 

Ill. Cu~nnt and deferred ux for the year 
Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that arc recognized in other comprehensive 
income or directly in equity. in which cas.-. the current and deferred tax are also recognized ln other comprehensive in rome or directly ln 
equity respectively 

IX INVENTORJES 
All inventories are stated at Cost or N~t Realizabl e Value, whichever is lower 

A. Stock of material at Site' includes cost of purchase. other costs Incurred in bringing them to their respective present loc<~tion and condition 
Cost formula used is average cast 

B. Incomplete Projects' include cost of incomplete properties for wbich the Company bas not entered into sale agreements and in other cases 
where tbe revenue recognition is postponed 'Incomplete Projects' also include Initial proJect m<t< that relate directly to a (prospective) 
project. incurred for the purpose of securing the project. These costs are r.cognized as expenditure for the year in which th"y at• Incurred 
unles~ they are separately identifiable and it is probable that the n.-spectivc project will be obtainE-d. 

Inventory valu• Includes co.~ts incurred upto the completion of the project viz cost of' land 1 rights, value of floor space index (I'SI), 
materials, servicrs and other expenses [includinK borrowing costs} attributable to the project<. Cost formula used is average cost 

X TRAD£ANDOTH£RPAYABLES 

These amounts represent liabilities for good~ and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid 
Trade nnd other payables are presented as curre nt liabilities unless payment is not due within 1Z ononths after reporting period. For trade 
and other payables maturing within one year from tile balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due ta che short 
maturity of these instruments 
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XI TRADE RECEIVABLES 

A receivable is dassitled as a 'trade receivable' if it is In respect of the amount due an acrount nf goods sold or services rendered In the 
nQf"mol cour•e of business. Trade receivables are recognised inltiany at fair value and subsequently m<>asured at amortc~ ci>M using the 
F.IR methnd, les.• provision for impainnenl 

XII EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
;a) Defined Contribution Plan 
Contributions to defined contribution schemes such as provident fund, labour welfare fund are charged as an expense based on the ~mnunt 
nf contrit>utJon required to be made as and when services arc rendered by the employees Company's provident fund contribution is made to 
a government administered rund anti cha11:ed as a n expense to thl' Statement of Profit and l.o« The a hove bene [its are classified as OeJ'In•d 
Contribution Schemes as the f.ompony has no further obligations beyond the monthly contrlhutlnns. 

b) Defined Bene fir Plan 

The Company provides for gratuity which is a den ned b~nefit plans the liabilities of which I• determ ined b~sed on valuations, as at th• 
balance sheet date', made by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gaiM 
and los<es, in respect of gratuity are recognised in the OC!, in the perio<l in which they occur Re -measurement reco~:niscd in OC I are not 
rcclasslfK!d to the Statement of Profit and Lo.'-• in •ubscquent periods 

The classification of the Company's obligation into current and non-curnnt is as per the actuarial valuation report. 
c l Leave Entitlement 
Leave entitlement are provided ba.<ed on a.n actuarial valuation, similar to that of gratuity benefit. Re·mcasurement, romp rising uf .lttuarial 
gains and losses, in respect of leave entitlement are recognised in the Statcm<>nt of Profit and Loss in the period in which they <>ccur 

dl Short·oorm Benefits 
Short-term employee benefit< su(b as salaries, performance incentives etc. arc recognised as expenses at the undiscounted amounts in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss of the period in wh ich the related service is rendered Expenses on non-accumulating compensated absences Is 
recognised in the period in which the ahscncos occur 

Xlll BORROWJNGS AND BORROWING COSTS 
Borrowing are initally recognised at Net off tran~tion cost incurred and measured at amortised cost. Any difference hetwecn the proceeds 
( net or transation costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in statetment of profit and loss over ther pei'iad of the borrowing.< using 
th• effective interest mt>thod 

Pre.f'erencc shares, which aJ'l' mandatorily redeema ble on a specific date are classified as liabtlln•s The dividend on these prefer~nce shares 
is TfCO&h!sed in the statement or profit and loss as flnanc:t> cost. 

Interests and other borrowing casll< cakulat•d a.< per effective interest rate attributable tu qualifying asset< ¥e allocated as part of the cost 
of construction I development of such assets. Such allocation is susp•ntled during extended periods in which active development i.s 
inte rrupted and, no costs are all~>eated onco all such activities are substantially complete. Investment intome earned on the temporary 
mvestment of specific bnrrowings pending their upenditure on qualifying assets ls deducted from the borrowing cost< eligible for 
oapitoll•atfnn. Other borrowing costs are charged to the Profit and Loss Account 

XIV EARNING PER SHARE 
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to elJUity shoreholder. hy the weigh ted 
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year The weighted average number nf equity .<hares outstanding during the year Is 
adju sted fo r events of bonus issue, if any 

For the purpose nf calculating diluted earninll" per •hare, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to ~qulty shareholders and the 
weighted average number of shares oul•l'lnding during the yea r are adjusted for the effect• of all dilutivc potential equity shares. 

)I(V CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
Cash flows are rPpa~·ted using th.e indirect m~>thod, wh.,reby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of trdnsactions of a non·ca5h 
nature, any dl'ferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts <>r payments and Item of income or expenses associated wirtl 
investJng or financing cash flows fhe cash flow> from operating. investing and financing actJvities of the company are segregated 

XVI CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT 
Cllsh and oash equivalent in the balance sh~et comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposit< with an original maturity of 
three montll$ or IP.s<. which are subject to an lnsll{n lfica nt risk of changes in value. 
For the pu rpose of the statement of ca<h flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of ca~h and sho rt· term deposits. as defined abuvt, net ol' 
ourstandin2 bank overdrafts as they are considertd an lntee-ral part of the Companv's cash manaa:ement 

XVII FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS 
A. All transactions in foreign curre ncy are recorded fn tht' reportin~: cu rrency, based on dosing rates of exchange prev-dlent on tbe date< nr the 

relevant transactions. 
B Monetary o<:<a• and liabilities in fo...,ign currency, outstanding as on the ltalanl-t Sheet d~le, are mnverted in reporting currency at the 

closing rates of exchange prevailing un the said date Resultant gain or loss is recugnioetl during the year in the statement of profit and loss 

C. Nun monetary asset.< and liabilities denominated in fnrcign currencies are carried at the exchange rate prevalent on the date of lh~ 
transactlnn. 

XVIII SEGMENT REPORTING 
Operating segment< are reported in a milnner con<i<tent with the internal reporting provlt.led to th" chief operating decision maker The 
chief operating decision maker regularly monitors and reviews the operating result o!' the whole Company as one segment of "Real Estate 
Development" Thus, as detined in lnd AS 106 "Operating S~gments", the Company's entire b usiness falls under this one operational segmen t 
and hence the necessary information has already been disclosed in the Balance Sheet and th e Statemel\t of Pro lit and Loss 

)l(lX PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 
A provision is r.-cognized when an enwrprise has a pn:,..,nl obli~:ation (l~al or constructive) as result of past event a nd It Is probable that an 
outnow or embodyin& economic benefits of resources will be required to set!le a reliably assessable obligation Provisior.s are determined 
based nn best estimate required to settle each obligation at each balance she<>t date II' the effect of the time value of money is material, 
provisions are discounted using a c-urrent prc·tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the ri~ks specific to the liability When disrounting i> 
used, the increase in the provisinn due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost 

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that ari<e frnm past event.<, whose ~xistence would be confirmed by the 
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertoln future events not wholly within rhe control of th• Company. A cor.tingr.nt liahillty 
also arls•s, In rare cases, where a liability cannot be recognised bt.cause it cannot be measu r~d reliably 

ContJngentnsset< are neither recognised nor di<closcd In the financial statements 
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" NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FORTHEVI!AR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018 

XX RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUCEMENT$ 
Appendix I! to lnd AS 21. Forelt~n currency transactions and advance consideration: On March 28. 201a. Ministry of Cnrpnr~te Affairs 
('~MCA"'1 has notified the Companie< (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 containing Appendix B to lnd AS 21. 
Foreigncurrency transactions and advance consideration which clarifies the date of the transaction for the purpose of dete rmining the 
exchange rat>< to u~ on Initial recognition of the related asset expense or income, when an entity has received or paid advance 
consideration in a foreign currency 

The amendment will come Into force from 1 April 2018. The Company elC)losure towards foreign currency transation i• minimal, hence the 
impact on the financial statements and effect on adoption of lnd AS 2lls expected to be insignificant 

ID<IAS 115 
In Marcil 2018, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs bas notified the Compani~ ( Indian Accounting Standards) Amended Roles, 2018 
("amended rules"). As per the ar1U!nded rules, ind AS 115 "Revt>nllt' from contracts with customers" supe~edos lnd AS 11, "Conmuction 
contracts" and lnd AS 18. "Revenue' and is applicable for all accounting perlads commencing on or after 1 April 2018. 

fnd AS U .S introduces a new framework of five step model for the analysis of revenue transactions. The model specifies that revenue should 
be reco&nised when (or as) an entity transfer control of goods or services to a Cllstomer at the amount tu which the entity ex:pects Ill be 
entitled. Further the new standard requires rnhanced disdos"res about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash 
nows arising from the entity's contracts with customers. The new revenue standard is applicable to the Company from 1 April 2018. 

The standurd permits two pn.<sihle methods oftran.<ltion: 
Retrospective approach · Under this approach the standard will be applied retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented in 

uccordanre with Jnd AS B · Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors 
Retrospectively with cumulative effe<t of Initially applying the standard recognized at the date of initial application (Cumulative catch· 

up approach) 
The Company is ~valuating the requirement nf the amendment on the financial statements. 
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NOTES TO THE FJNANCIALSTATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315'1' MARCH, 2018 

Note 3. Property, plant ~tnd equipment and capital work-In-progress 

in('~:) 

Building 
Computers and Furniture and 

Office Equipm .. nt Total 
Capital work-in· 

Laptops FilCtures progress 

eon or deemed cost 

Balance at 1st April. 2016 3,685,543 S49.426 4,182,607 1.130,036 9,547.612 
Additions 218.015 63,802 281.817 64,738,711 
Disposals 
Balance at 31st March, 2017 3,685.543 767.441 4,182,607 1,193,838 9.829,429 64,738,711 

Accumulated depreciation and lmpainnent 

Balance at 31st Marcb, 2016 3.685,543 90,708 394,562 211,204 4,382,017 
Eliminated on disposal of assets 
Depreciation expense 225.346 418,261 232.838 876,445 
Balance at 31st March, 2017 3,685,543 316,054 812.823 444.042 5,2S8,462 

Carrying amount as at 31st March, 2017 451,387 3,369,784 749,796 4,570,967 64,738,711 

Mivan 
Computers and Furniture and Capital work-in-

Building System(Recli Office Equipment Total 
formliner 

Laptops Fixrures progress 

Cost or deemed cost 

Balance at 31st March, 2017 3,68S,543 767.441 4,182,607 1,193,838 9,829,429 64.738,711 
Additions 35,867,948 283.466 853,742 752.902 37,758,058 56.424,966 
OisposalsfDiscarment (3,685,543) (3.685.543) 
Transferred ro addition 35.867.948) 

35,867,948 1.050,907 S,036,349 1,946,740 43.90L944 85,295,729 

Accumulated depredation and Impairment 

Balance at 31st Ma~b. 2017 3,685,543 316,054 812.823 444,042 5.258.462 
Eliminated on disposal/dlscardment of assets (3.685.543) (3.685,543) 
Depreciation expense 11,700,501 281.878 464,503 327,080 12.773,962 
Balance at 31st March, 2018 11,700,501 597,932 1.277.326 771.122 14,346.881 

Carrying amount as at 31st Marcb, 2018 24,1671447 452,975 3,759,023 1,175,617 29,555,063 85,295,729 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018 

Note -4. Other financial assets 

Non-current 
Security deposits 

Total 

~ 
Security deposits (Refer Note 28) 
Other Advances and Receivables 
Related party (Refer Note 28) 
Others 

Interest accrued and due on fixed deposits 

Total 

Note 5. Current tax assets {Net) 

Advance Income Tax paid 
Less: Provision for Tax 

Total 

Income Tax expense 
(a) Income Tax expense 

Current Tax 
Current Tax on taxable income for the year 
Tax in respect of earlier years 

Current tax expense 

Deferred tax 
Decrease I (increase) in deferred tax assets 
(Decrease) I increase in deferred tax liabilities 

Deferred tax charge I {credit) 

Income tax expense 

As at 
31st March, 2018 

' 

39,500 
39,500 

95,538,140 
95,538,140 

56,789 

95,594,929 

21,243,543 

21,243,543 

31st March, 2018 
f 

(14,538,123) 

(14,538,123) 

(14,538,123) 

(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's tax rate 
Since the taxable income is negative, there is no current tax payable; hence reconciliation has not been provided. 

As at 
31st March, 2017 

f 

39,500 
39,500 

15,000,000 

21,952,172 
7,406,704 

44,358,876 

58,559 

44,417,435 

14,524,106 

14,524,106 

31st March, 2017 
f 

160,775 
160.775 

( 17,421,058) 
[35,879) 

(17,456,937) 

(17,296,162) 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018 

Note 6. Deferred tax assets (Net) 

As at 
31sr March, 2018 

I!' 

The following is the analysis of deferred tax asset I (liabilities) presented in the balance sheet 

Deferred Tax Asset 
Deferred Tax Liability 

2017-2018 

Deferred tax assets I (liabilities} In relation to: 
On account of Tax losses 
Impact of expenditure charged to the Statement of Profit 
and Loss in the current year but allowed for tax purposes 
on payment basis. 
On account of Inventory 

On account of Unamortised Ancillary Cost of Arranging the 
Borrowings 
On accountofTerm Loan 

On account oflnterestAccrued but not due on Borrowings 
Property, plant and equipment 

Total 

2016-2017 

Deferred tax assets f (liabilities) in relation to: 
On account ofT ax losses 
Impact of expenditure charged to the Statement of Profit 
and Loss in the current year but allowed for tax purposes 
on payment basis. 

On account of Inventory 

On account of Unamortised Ancillary Cost of Arranging the 
Borrowings 
On account of Term Loan 

On account of Interest Accrued but not due on Borrowings 
Property. plant and equipment 

Total 

Opening Balance 
f 

48,052,686 

371,484 
( 4, 7 50.5 38) 

(53, 151,555) 
63,811.755 

(5,909,663) 
(84.954) 

48,339,215 

Opening Balance 
f 

30,850,253 

152,859 
( 4,750,538) 

(53,151.555) 
63,811,755 

(5,909.663) 
(120.833) 

30,882,278 

126,774,048 
(63,896,710) 
62,877,338 

Crediti (Charge) in 
statement of Profit and Loss 

(26,598,056) 

87,737 
43,517,702 

53.151.555 
(63,811,755) 

5,909,663 
2.281.277 

14,538,123 

Crediti(Charge) in 
statement of Profit and Loss 

17,202,433 

218,625 

35.879 
17,456,937 

As at 
31st March, 2017 

~ 

112,235.925 
(63.896.710) 
48,339,215 

Closing Balance 
f 

21,451.630 

459,221 
38,767,164 

2,1%,323 
62,877.338 

Closing Balance 
f 

48,052.686 

371,484 
( 4,750,538) 

(53,151,555) 
63,811,755 

(5,909,663) 
(A4.954) 

48,339,215 

Significant estimates: Based on the approved plans and budgets, the company has estimated that the future taxable income will be sufficient 
to absorb carried forward losses and unabsorbed depeciation, which management believes is probable, accordingly the company has 
recognised deferred tax assets. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH. 2018 

Note 7. Other assets 

.cummt 
Advance to Suppliers 
GST input credit receivable 
Other Advances 

- Prepaid Expense 
- Others 

Total 

Note 8. Inventories 

Inventories (lower of cost or net realisable value) 
- Stock of material at site 
-Incomplete projects (Refer Foontote) 

Total 
Footnote: 

As at 
31st March, 2018 

f 

116,282,310 
48,938,746 

1,267,849 
416,733 

166,905,638 

8,697,755 
11,542,021,702 

11,550,719,457 

As at 
31st March, 2017 

' 

116.796,567 
57,902,063 

1,718,335 
65,633 

176,482,598 

6,011,273 
9,832,641,979 

9,838,653,252 

a. 15,042 sq ft. of the project is mortgaged in favour of India bulls finance Limited for term loan availed by Hub town Limited. 
b. The Project is under Construction. and it has obtained loans/financial facilities against the mortgage of units to be constructed on the said 
projects and the same is reflected as inventory. The Company has also sold units are under construction and the lender has issued NOC for the 
same. 

Note 9. Cash and cash equivalents 

Balances with banks: 
- in current accounts 
- in deposit with maturity of less than three months 
Cash on hand 

Total 

Note 10. Other bank balances 

Margin money deposits with maturity of more than 
three months but less than twelve months (Refer 
Footnote) 

Total 

Footnote: 

156,253,043 
9,954,306 

27,313 
166,234,662 

1.434.341 
1.434,341 

Balances with bank in margin money and fixed deposits are kept as security for gurantees I other facilities. 

85,950,846 
9,954,306 

28.120 
95,933,272 

1.341.570 
1,341,570 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018 

Note 11. Equity share capital 

Equity share capital 
Total 

Authorised Share Capital: 
95,000 ( PY: 95,000) Ordinary Equity Shares of~ 10 each 
50,000 (PY: SO,OOO)Class A Equity Shares of~ 10 each 
5,000 (PY: S,OOO)Class 8 Equity Shares on 10 each 
50,000 ( PY: 50,000), 10% Non Cummulative Redeemable Preference Shares of~ 10 each 
(Refer Note 13 (iii)) 

Total 

Issued and s ubscribed capital comprises: 
Ordinary Equity Shares 
37,306 ( PY: 37,306) Equity Shares of~ 10/- each fully paid up 

Class A Equity Shares 
10,200 (PY: 10,200) Equity Shares on 10/- each full paid up 

Class B Equity Shares 
629 (PY: 629) Equity Shares of~ 10/- each full paid up 

Total 

a) Reconciliation of Number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year 

Ordinary Equity Shares 
Ba lance at 1s t April, 2016 

Add I (Less) : Issued I (Bought back) during the year 
Balance a t 31st March, 2017 

Add 1 (Less): Issued I (Bought back) during the year 
Balance at 31st March, 2018 

Class A Equity Shares 
Balance at 1st April, 2016 

Add I (Less): Issued I (Bought back) during the year 
Balance a t 31s t March, 2017 

Add I (Less) : Issued I (Bought back) during the year 
Balance a t 31s t March, 2018 

Class B Equity Shares 
Balance at 1st April, 2016 

Add I (Less) : Issued I (Bought back) during th e year 
Balance at 31st March, 2017 

Add I (Less): Issued I (Bought back) during the year 
Balance a t 31st March, 2018 

b) Terms I rights attached to Equity Shares: 

As at As at 
31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017 

~ f 

481,350 181,350 
481,350 481,350 

950.000 950,000 
500,000 500,000 

50,000 50,000 

500,000 500,000 
2,000,000 2,000,000 

373,060 373,060 
373,060 373,060 

102,000 102,000 
102,000 102,000 

6,290 6,290 
6,290 6,290 

481,350 481,350 

Share Capital 
Number of shares (~) 

37,306 373,060 

37,306 373.060 

37,306 373,060 

10,200 102,000 

10,200 102,000 

10,200 102,000 

629 6,290 

629 6,290 

629 6,290 

i. The ordinary equity shares have a face value of n o;- per share. In the event of liquidation of company, the holders of equity 
shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution 
will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. 

ii. Class A shareholder will have preference to dividend and aditional voting rights as per shareholder agreement depending on 
performance mil estones. 

iii. Class B shareholder will have preference to dividend and aditional voting rights as per shareholder agreement depending on 
performance milestones. 
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c) Details of shares held by each shareholders holding more than 5% shares 
i . Equity Share Capital 

As at 31st March, 2018 As at 31st March, 2017 
No of shares held %holding of this No of shares held % holding of this 

Ordinary Equity Shares 
Hubtown Limited 
Distictive Realty Private Limited 
Kimwil Investment Holdings Limited 

Class 'A • Equity Shares 
Kimwillnvestment Holdings Limited 

Class 'B' Equity Shares 
Kimwil Investment Holdings Limited 

22,859 
2,704 

11.191 

10,200 

629 

class of shares class of shares 

61.27% 22,859 61.27% 
7.25% 2,704 7.25% 

30.00% 11,191 30.00% 

100% 10,200 100% 

100% 629 100% 
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Note 12. Other Equity 

Securities premium reserve 
Balance at the beginning of the year 
Add I (Less): 
Premium on account of shares a\Joted during the year 
Balance at the end of the year 

Retained Earnings 
Balance at the beginning of the year 
Profit attributable to the owners ofthe company 
Other comprehensive income for the year 
Balance at the end of the year 

Total 

Note 13. Borrowings 

Non-current 
(i) Debentures- Secured 

57 (PY : 57) 15% Listed, Rated Secured Cumulative, 
Redeemable non-convertible debentures of the face 
value of ~ 1 crore each 
(Refer footnote a) 

(ii) Term Loans- Secured 
• From financial institutions 
(Refer footnote band c) 

(iii) Liability Component of Preference Shares 
1,865 (PY : 1,865) 10% Non Cummulative 
Redeemable Preference Shares of~ 10/- each 
fully paid up 
(Refer footnoted and e) 

Less: Transferred to Current Maturities 
Of Long Term Loan from Financial Institutions 
{Refer Note 15) 

Total 

Footnotes: 
a. 
i. Debentures are to be redeemed on 29th December, 2021. 

As at 
31st March, 2018 

~ 

1,866,259,694 

1,866,259,694 

(103,889,506) 
(53,789,994) 

255,229 
(157,424,271) 

1.708,835,423 

570,000,000 

6,107,336.124 

18,650 

6.677,354,774 

6,677,354,774 

As at 
31st March, 2017 

f 

1,866,259,694 

1,866,259,694 

(60,506,661) 
(43,474,355) 

91,510 
(103,889,506) 

1,762,370,188 

570,000,000 

4,450,376,108 

18,650 

5,020,394, 758 

(960,000,000) 

(960,000,000) 
4,060,394, 7 58 

ii. Debentures carry coupon at the rate of 15%, the debentures are to be redeemed at 25 % IRR post tax as on redemption date less coupon 
payments annually subject to availability of distributable surplus .. 

iii. The debentures are secured against second floating charge on the receivables of the project 
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b. 
i. Term loan of~ 63,410 lakhs carry effective interest at the rate of 14.25% pa 

As at 
31st March, 2018 

f 

A sat 
31st March, 2017 

f 

ii. Amount of~ 2.336.64lakhs related to deferred expenses towa1·ds processing charges is debited to loans from financial institutions. 

iii. Term loans are secured against Property situated at Prabhadevi, Mumbai. and future receivables from the said project Further 14.737 
Equity shares of the Company held by Promoter Company Hubtown Limited are pledged for the term loan. 

IV The term loan is disbursed in the month of December 2017, it has moratorium period of27 months there after loan repaymenl schedule 
is as follows · 
Particulars Amount(~ in lakhs) 

December 17 to March 2020 Nil 
Aprii2020-Jan 2023 (quarterly~ 25 Cr) 30,000 
Apri12023·0ct 2023 (quarterly~ 40 Cr) 12.000 
]anuary24 8,000 
Total sanctioned amount 50,000 

c. Period of continuing default as on Balance sheet date in repayment of term loans 
Particulars 31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017 

Term Loan from Financial Institutions: 
Interest 
Penal Interest 

d. Details of Preference shares held by preference share holders 
Preference Share Capital 

Hubtown Ljmjted 
No of shares held 
% holding of this class of shares 

f f 

82,946,257 
16,807,837 

1,865 

100% 

e. Reconciliation of Number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year 

Preference Shares 
Balance at 1st April, 2016 

Add : Issued during the year 
Less : Bought back during the year 

Balance at 31st March, 2017 
Add : Issued during the year 
Less : Bought back during the year 

Balance at 31st March. 2018 

Note: 

Number of shares 

1,865 

1,865 

1,865 

Amount (l in lakhs) 

Nil 
30.000 
12,000 
8,200 

50,200 

Period 

l"eb'l7·Mar'17 
Apr'l6·Mar' 17 

Amount 
~ 
18,650 

18,650 

18,650 

The preference shares have been classified as a financial liability as per lnd AS 32 and 109. As per lnd AS 32 and 109 iflhe issuer does 
not have the unconditional right to avoid cash outflow at the end of the term of preferem:e shares. the instrument i.s classified as a 
financial liability. Hence they have been grouped under non-current borrowings. 

~ 
Unsecured [Refer Footnote) 
(i) Loans repayable on demand: 

· From Related Party 
· From Companies 

Total 

Footnote: 

246.419,832 
191.790,143 

438,209,975 

203,166,469 
113,600,000 

316,766,469 
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Note 14. Trade payables 
Due to micro and small enterprises (Refer Footnote) 
Due to others 

Total 

Footnote: 

As at 
31st March, 2018 

f 

98,487,676 
98,487,676 

As at 
31st March, 2017 

f 

195,130,933 
195,130,933 

As per information available with the Company regarding dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as defined under the Micro Small 
Medium Enterprises Development, Act 2006 (MSMED Act), none of the suppliers of the Company are registered under MSMED Act, and the 
same has been relied upon by the auditors. 

Note 15. Other financial liabilities 

Non-current 
Retention money payable (Refer footnote) 

Total 

Footnote: 

24,615,161 17,029,553 
24,615,161 17,029,553 

Retention Money liability to contractors which are due for payment as at 31st March, 2018 have beeen shown under the head "Other 
Financials Liabilities as per lnd AS-32. As per the management, the retention liability is in the nature of holding the amount as guarantee 
towards performance and does not relate to credit period given by the contractor. Further, in the opinion of the management, there has not 
been any authoritative clarification/interpretation with regard to measurement of fair value in respect of above item and hence retention 
liability has not been discounted as on 31st March. 2018. 

~ 
Current maturities of long-term debts (Refer Note 13) 
Interest accrued and due on borrowings (Refer footnote a) 
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings (Refer footnote b) 
Security deposits (Refundable) . 
Other payables (Refer footnote c) 

Total 
Footnote: 

947,042,241 
700,000,000 

46,054,853 
1,693,097,094 

960,000,000 
120,350.322 
707,870,017 
700,000,000 

19,267,170 
2,507,487,509 

a. Interest accrued and due on borrowings includes~ Nil (P.Y.: 'f 1,43,09,156/-) due to related parties. Further attention invited to Note 28 

b. Interest accrued but not due on borrowings includes ~ 6,13,50,489/· (P.Y.: ~ 1,77,84,883/-) due to related parties. Further attention invited 
to Note28 
c. Other payable includes { 17,64,105/· due to related parties (P.Y.: Nil). Further attention invited to Note 28 

Note 16. Provisions 

Non-current 
Employee Benefits 

Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note 27) 
Provision for leave benefit 

Total 

~ 
Employee Benefits 

Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note 27) 
Provision for leave benellt 

Total 
Note 17. Other current liabilities 

.cw:wu 
Advance from customers (Refer footnote) 
Other payables : 
- Statutory dues 
- Employees benefit payables 

Total 
Footnote: 

770356 
372,865 

1,143,221 

24,094 
221,611 
245,705 

1,465,318,228 

70,174.865 
1,936,728 

1,537,429,821 

492,964 
458,067 

951.031 

13,789 
245,402 

259,191 

1,310,634,044 

114,843,928 
2,691,672 

1,428,169,644 

Income Received in advance (advance from customer) in dudes~ Nil. (P.Y. ~ 51,46,89,798/-) from the related party. Further attention is 
invited to Note 28 
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Note 18. Revenue from operations 
Revenue from Sale of trading materials 
Other operating revenue: 

Excess provision written back 
Royalty Income 

Total 

Note 19. Other Income 

Interest Income: 
Bank fixed deposits 
Others 

Mis<:ellaneous income 
Total 

Note 20. Costs Of Construction I Development 

Construction costs incurred during the year: 
Material and labour costs 
Approval and consultation expenses (Refer footnote a) 
Other direct development expenses 

Total 
Footnote: 

Year ended 
31st March, 2018 

f 

28,655,090 

52.352,742 
2,881,925 

83.889,757 

679,624 
10,760,741 

11.440,365 

11,440.365 

24 7,068,580 
171,978,156 

259 701 
419,306,437 

a. Consultation Expense includes amount'( 62,06,000/· (P.V. Nil) from the related party. Further attention invited to note 28 

Note 21. Changes In Inventories of Finished Goods. Stock·ln·Trade and Work·ln·Progress 

Opening Inventory : 
Incomplete projects 

Closing Inventory : 
Incomplete projects 

Total 

Note 22. Employee Benefits Expense 

Salaries, bonus, etc. 
Contribution to provident and other funds 
Staff welfare expenses 
Other fund expenses 

Total 

Note 23. Finance Costs 

Interest costs:· 
Interest on Debentures 
Interest on Fixed loans 
Other interest expense (Refer foot note b) 
Delayed/penal interest on loans and statutory dues 

Total 
Footnote: 

9,832,641.979 
9,832.641,979 

11,542,021,702 
11,542,021,702 

{1,709,379,723) 

25,860,776 
896,448 
485,560 

36,115 
27,278,899 

342.352,941 
672,548,155 
234,234,045 

14,393,029 
1,263,528,170 

Year ended 
31st March, 2017 

f 

725,902 
11,950 

737.852 

5 369 
743,221 

332,804,929 
142,014.598 

19.157 
474,838.684 

8,124.517,384 
8.124,517,384 

9,832,641,979 
9,832,641, 979 

(1,708,124,594) 

30,362,834 
709,239 
514,980 
42.071 

31,629,124 

275.007.846 
562,997,113 
195,071,395 
26,591,715 

1,059,668,069 

a. In the line with IND AS·23 'Borrowing Costs,' the borrowing cost of'( 1,24,91,35.141/· (P.Y. ~ 101,87,09,345/·) have been capitalised to 
Inventory. 

b. Other Interest Expense includes amount ~ 13,06,00,808/· (P. Y. '{ 9,45 ,73,845/·) from the related party. Further attention invited to note 28 

Note 24. Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 
Total 

12,773,962 
12,773,962 

876,445 
876,445 
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Note 25. Other Expenses 

Insurance 
Rent 
Rates and taxes 
Advertisement expenses (Refer footnote a) 
Advances and other debit balances written off 
Donations 
Brokerage 
Travelling and conveyance 
Repairs and society maintenance charges 
Legal and professional fees 
Loss on foreign currency fluctuation (Net) 
Other expenses (Refer footnote b) 

Total 

footnote: 

Year ended 
31st March, 2018 

f 

1.882.758 
4,264,907 

50,849,247 
40,554,423 

19,063 
4,000,000 

615,923 
346,619 

9,220,981 
561,647 

5,022.845 
117,338,413 

Year ended 
31st March. 2017 

' 

1.{!48,336 
4,441,500 

164,849.083 
8,516,389 

13,189,139 
188,955 
629,607 

3,398,397 
456,528 

5,108,076 
202,626,010 

a. Advetisement Expenses includes amount 't 1,30,94,133/· (P.Y. ~Nil) from the related party. Further attention invited to note 28 
b. Auditors Remyneratjon Onc!uded jn other expenses) 

Audit fees 
Other certification fees 
Limited review fees 
Service tax/GST on above 

Total 

Note 26. Earnings Per Sbare (EPS) 

Earning Per Share has been computed as under: 
Profit /(Loss) for the year 
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 
Earnings Per Share(~)· Basic (Fave valueofUO per share) 

Diluted earning per share is same as basic earning per share. 

250,000 
75,000 
25,000 
63000 

413,000 

Year Ended 
31st March, 2018 

(53,789,994) 
48,135 
(1,117) 

252,500 
75,000 
25,125 
52,894 

405,519 

Year Ended 
31st March, 2017 

(43,474,355) 
48,135 

(903) 



TWENTY FIVE SOUTH REALTY LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31•• MARCH, 2018 

Note 27. Post Retirement Benefit Plans 
The Prinicipal assumptions used for the purpose of the acturial valuations were as follows, 
Gratuity: 
Discount Rate 
Exp~cteu rate of salary increase 
Expected average remainlng service 

Service cost 
Current service cost 
Past service cost and (gain}/loss from settlement 
Net interest expense 
Component or define benefit cost recognised In profit or loss 

Acturial (gains) I losses for the period 
Component of defined benefit cost recognised in other comprehensive Income 

Total 

Present value of funded defined benefit obligation 
Fair value of plan assets 

Funded status 

Movement in PV of defined benefit obligation 

Opening de line benefit obligation 
Current service cost 
Interest cost 
Actuarial (gains) and losses a rising from changes in financial assumption 
Actuarial (gains) and losses arising from changes In experience adjustment 
dosing define benefit obligation 

Movements in fair value of plan asstes 
Opening fair value of plan assets 
clsoing fair value of plan assets 

Asset Information: 
Gratuity Fund 

Expected Payout: 
Expected Outgo First Year 
Expected Outgo Second Year 
Expected Outgo Third Year 
Expected Outgo Fourth Year 
Expected Outgo Fifth Year 
Expected Outgo Sixth to Tenth Years 

Sensitivity Analysis: 

Year ended 
31st March, 2018 

" 
7.67% 

6% 
16.74 

505224 

37702 
5 42,926 

(255,229) 
(255,229) 

287,697 

794,150 

(794,450) 

506,753 
505,224 

37.702 
(21,950) 

(233.279) 
794,450 

Total Amount 

PVO Payout 
24,094 
38,470 
53,285 
68.559 
84.338 

134,858 

As of 31st March, 2018, every percentage point increase in discount rate will affect our gratuity benefit obligation ~ 7,07 43 7 
As of 31st March, 2018, every percentage point decrease in discount rate will affect our gratuity henefit obligation ~ 8,95,841 

Year ended 
31st March, 2017 

f 

7.11% 
6% 

16.86 

431,119 

12,359 
443,778 

(91.510) 
(91,510) 

352,268 

506,753 

(506,753) 

154,485 
131,419 

12,359 
33.860 

(125,370) 
506,753 

Total Amount 

PVO Payout 
13,789 
26.692 
39,971 
53.666 
61,385 

111,068 

As of 31st March, 2018, every percentage point increase in salary escalation rate will affect our gratuity benefit obligation ~ 8,95.332 
As of 31st March, 2018. every percentage point decrease in salary escalation rate will affect our gratuity benefit obligation~ 7,06,407 

Sensitivity for significant actuarial assumptions is computed by varying one actuarial assumption used for the valuation oft he defined benefit 
obligation by one percentage, keeping all other actuarial assumptions constant. 

Projected service cost as on 3 1st March. 2019 is ~ 5,17,396 

Narrations: 
1 Analysis of Defined Benefit Obligation 

The number of members under the scheme have increased by 5.560,1,. Similarly the total salary increased by 9.67% during the accuunting period 
The resultant liability at the end of the period over the beginning of the period has increased by 56.77% 

2 Expected rate of return basis: 
Scheme is not funded. EORA is not applicable 

3 Description of Plan Assets and Reimbursement Conditions 
Not applicable 



" TWENTY FIVE SOUTH REALTY LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 ot MARCH, 2018 

Note 28. Related Party Disclosure 

l) List of related parties (as certified and confirmed by the managementl: 

A. Entities with joint control over the reportin,11 entity 
1 Hubtown Limited 

B. Subsidiaries of entitles with joint control over the reporting entity (with whom transactions have taken place) 
1 Divinity Projects Private Limited 
2 Heddle Knowledge Private Limited 

C. Other Companies (with whom transactions have taken place) 
1 Citygold Manangement Services Pvt Ltd 
2 Distinctive Realty Private Limited 

Note: Related party relationships are as tdentlfied by the Company and relied upon by the Auditor 

II) Related party transactions and balance as at year end: 
Particulars 

A. Transactions f Related parties 

I. Loans iiDd Advances received\ recovered\ adjusted 
Hubtown Limited 

Divinity Projects Pvt Ltd 

Distinctive Realty Private Limited 

II. Loans and Advances given\ repaid\ recovered\ adjusted 
Divinity Projects Pvt Ltd 

Hubtown Limited 

iii. Advances received against sale or fiats 
Diviniti Projects Private Limited 

tv. Security Deposit recovered 
Distinctive Realty Private Limited 

v. Interest accured and due paid 
Heddle Knowledge Pvt Ltd 

Divinity Projects Pvt Ltd 

vi. Advance repaid 
Divinity Projects Pvt Ltd 

vii. Consultancy charges Paid 
Citygold Management Services Pvt Ltd 

Entities with joInt 
control over the 
reporting entity 

134.173.305 
(97.431,577) 

29,569,453 
(11,000,000) 

m 
Subsidiaries of Other companies 

entitles with joint 
control over the 
reporting entity 

410,000,000 
(-) 

21,952,172 
[-) 

410,000.000 
(.) 

(13,629.200) 

15,000,000 
(·) 

14,309,156 
(-) 

8,312,228 
(-) 

5 11,500,000 
(·) 

6,670,000 
(·) 



TWENTY FIVE SOUTH REALTY LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31,.. MARCH, 2018 

viii. Interest expense 
Hubtown Ltd 

Divinity Projects Pvt Ltd 

lx.Selllng and Marketing Expenses 
Hubtown Ltd 

x. On behalf expenses received (including reimbursement of expenses) 
Citygold Management Services Pvt Ltd 

xi. Paid against Credit balances 
Divinitv Projects Pvt Ltd 

Citygold Management Services Pvt Ltd 

Huhtown Ltd 

Note: Figures in brackets are of the previous year. 
B. Balance outstanding payables 1 receivables: 

a. Receivable 
Other companies 

Distinctive Realty Private Limited 

b. Balance Payable 
Holding company 

Hubtown Limited · Loan 
Hubtown Limited -Interest 

Subsidiaries of entities with joint control over the reporting entity 
Diviniti Projects Private Limited 
Heddle Knowledge Pvt Limited 

Other companies 
Citygold Management Services Pvt Ltd 

121,364,999 

(94.573,845) 

15,451.077 

(·) 

15,189,194 
(-) 

9,235.809 

H 

4,095 
(2,000) 

1,687.671 
(-) 

6,138,495 
(-) 

As at As at 
31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017 

f ' 
36,952,172 

2 46,419,832 203,166,469 
61,350.489 17,784,883 

1.764.105 513,264,105 
14,309,156 

44,400 



.. TWENTY FIVE SOUTH REALTY LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2018 

Note 29. Contin,Rent Liability 

Sr. No. Particulars 

1 Liability towards Property tax, Wa ter tax and Sewerage tax 
2 Workmen's liability of earstwhile, Hindoostan Spinning and 

Weaving Mills Limited (Refer Foot note) 
3 Income tax matters u/s 271 (1) (c) pending: 

Foot note: 

For F. Y. 2011·12; A.Y. 2012·13 
For F.Y. 2012·13: A.Y. 2013 ·14 

For F.Y. 2013·14: A. Y. 2014-15 

A~ at 

31st March, 2018 
~ 

10,068.115 

Nil 
Nil 

Nil 

As at 

3 t st Mart·h, 2017 

' 

10,068, 11 5 

Amount not 
ascertainable 

Amount not 
ascertainable 

The Hindoostan Spinning and Weaving Mills Limited (HSWML.), a body corporate had in the year 2002 had declared a Voluntary Retirement Scheme (VRS). The VRS 
liability. alongwith other assets and liabilities. vide scheme of the Board of Industrial and Financial Reconstruction (BTI'R). dated 1.4.2004 was inherited by floary Realty 
Limoted (Fonnerly known as Chaitra Realty Limited). Some of the workers didn't accept VRS and insisted on continuation of job The Company thereupon declared 
closure. After going through various appellant bodies the matter was referred to the Industrial Tribunal which passed its order confirming closure. A writ petition was 
filed by tlle workers Union against the order of Industrial Tribunal. The said dispute is yet to be resolved fully. 

Note30. 

In the opinion of The Board of Directors o f the Company, all items of Current Assets, Current Liabilities and Lo<Jn and Advances continue to have a reali zable va lue of at 
least the amounts at which they are stated in the balance sheet 

Note 31. Financial Risk Management ObJectives 

The Company's financial risk management is an intl!gral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies. The Company's financial risk management policy is set by 
the Managing Board. 

The Company manages market risk through a treasury department which evaluates and exercises independent control over the entire process of market r isk 
management. The treasury department recommend risk management objectives and policies which are approved by the senior management. The activities of this 
department Include management of cash resourses, borrowing ~trategies and ensuring compliance with the market risk limi ts and policies. 

1) Market Risk 
a) Inte rest rate r isk 
Inte rest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financia l instruml!nt will fluctuate because of changes in market interest r<~te s. The company's 
exposure to the risk of cha nges in market interes t ra tes re lates primarily to company's long tenn debt obligations with tloatl ng interest rates. 

Interest rates on loans are fixed as per HDFC CPLR at the time of the giving loans. It takes care of the change in interest ra te hil<e risk. 

b) Foreign currency risk 
Foreign currency risl< is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate on account of changes m foreign exchange rates. The company does 
not have any exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange ra tes from its operating activities or investments in foreign companies. 
There is no significant purchase of materials of imported materials hence foreign currency risk does not arise. 

c) Commodity price risk 
The Company is not affected by the price vola tility of commodities 
The Company has awarded building construction contracts to its contr<~ctors on turnkey basis 

Zl Credit Risk 
Credit r isk is the risk that the customer may not meet its ob liga tion on time as per Agreement to Sales leading to dela y in co llection. The company is not exposed to credit 
r isk from Its rrade receivab les since the underlying asse ts is in possession of the company If any default is caused by the customer. 

Credit risk from balances wi th banks a nd inter corporate loans Is managed by the company's treasury department in accordance with the company's policy. Investments 
of surplus funds are made only with approved companies and \vi thin credit limits assigned to each company The credit limits of parties to whom loans are granted are 
reviewed by bo3rd of Directors on an annual basis The limits are set to minimise the co ncentration of risks and therefore mongate financial loss through counterparty's 
potential failure to make repayments. 

3) Liquidity risk 
The company is in s tage of construction of buildings. All allowable expenses are inventorisl!d by as per the policy of the company. Liquidy risk is dependent on the market 
demand for completed flats. 

Note 32. Disclosure of derivatives 

a. No derivative instrument were outs tanding at the end of the year 
b. Uncovered ri sk in foreign currency transactions are as unde r : 

Trade Pay11bles USD 
INR 

31st March, 2018 

130,21q 
8,481,915 

31st March, 2017 

47,125 
3,056,433 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2018 

Note 33. Capital Management 

The primary objective of company's capital management is to ensure that it maintains strong capital ratios in order to support its bu~iness 
and maximise shareholders value. The company's board of directors reviews the capital structure on an annual basis. 

The capital structure of the company consists of net debt (borrowings and offset by cash and bank balances) and total equity of the 
company. The borrowings consist of debentures issued, term loans from financial institutions and loans from companies. Preference shares 
issued by the company have been considered as debt in calculation of financial ratios, as it is in the nature of debt. 

Gearing Ratio 

The gearing ratio at the reporting period was as follows: 

Florrowings including current Maturities 
Interest accured and duejand but not due 
Total Debt 
Less: Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Net Debt (A) 

Equity Share Capital 
Other Equity 
Total Equity (B) 

Debt Equity Ratio A/8 

Note 34: Categories of Financial Instruments 

Fair Value measurement 

Einan~:ial Asset:i 
Loans 
Other financial assets 
Cash and cash equivalent 
Bank balances other than above 
Total of Financial Assets 

Financial Liabilities 
Borrowings 
Trade payables 
Other Financial liabilities 
Total of Financial Liabilities 

As per our report of even date 

FORM. H. DALAL & ASSOCIATES 
Firm Registration No. · 112449 W 

CH~C~rN~ 

Devang Dalal 
PARTNER 
Membership No. F-109049 

Mumbai 
Date: 25th May, 2018 

31st March 2018 

FVPLj FVOCl Amortised Cost 

. . 

. 95,634,429 

. 166 234.662 
1,434,341 

. 263,303,432 

. 7.115.564,749 

. 98,487,676 

. 1,717,712.255 
. 8,931,764 680 

As at 
31st March, 2018 

~ 

7,115,564,719 
947,042,241 

8,062,606, 990 
166,234,662 

7,896,3 72,32 8 

481,350 
1,708,835.423 

1. 709,31 6,773 

4.62 

As at 
31st March, 2017 

~ 

5,337,161,227 
828.220,339 

6,165,381,566 
95,933,272 

6,069,448,294 

481,350 
1,762.370,188 

1,762,851,538 

3.41 

( ~) 

31st March 2017 

FVPL I FVOCI Amortised Cost 

. . 
44,456,935 
95.933.272 

. 1,341.570 

. 141,731,777 

. 5,337.161.227 
. 195,130,933 
. 1,564,517,061 
. 7.096,809,22 1 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

~~IIAH 
DIHECTOI{ 

DIN 02%01 55 

~ 
D. V. PRABHU 

DIRECTOR 
DIN 03142610 

Mumbai 
Oate: 25th May. 2018 


	Financial Statement_Heddle Knowlegde Pvt Ltd.pdf
	Audit Report_Heddle Knowlegde Private Limited.pdf
	Financial Statement_Heddle Knowlegde Pvt Ltd
	Scan


